4.

5.

9.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-IS

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17.1(b)
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

. Check the appropriate box:

Preliminary Information Statement
Definitive Information Statement

. Name of Registrant as specified in its charter

PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

. Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization

Manila, Philippines

SEC Identification Number
22401

BIR Tax Identification Code
000491007

. Address of principal office

16TH FLOOR CITIBANK TOWER, 8741 PASEO DE ROXAS MAKATI CITY
Postal Code
1227

. Registrant's telephone number, including area code

8314479

. Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

CR06844-2018

03 DECEMBER 2018, METROPOLITAN CLUB INC. ESTRELLA COR. AMAPOLA STS.

GUADALUPE VIEJO, MAKATI CITY

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security holders

Nov 9, 2018

10. In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor
N/A

Address and Telephone No.
N/A

11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding and Amount of Debt Outstanding



700,298,616

Common
Preferred 14,366,260
13. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed on a Stock Exchange?
Yes No

If yes, state the name of such stock exchange and the classes of securities listed therein:
PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE/ COMMON SHARES

The Exchange does not warrant and holds no responsibility for the veracity of the facts and representations contained in all corporate
disclosures, including financial reports. All data contained herein are prepared and submitted by the disclosing party to the Exchange,
and are disseminated solely for purposes of information. Any questions on the data contained herein should be addressed directly to

the Corporate Information Officer of the disclosing party.

Prime Media Holdings, Inc.
PRIM

PSE Disclosure Form 17-5 - Information Statement for Annual or
Special Stockholders' Meeting
References: SRC Rule 20 and
Section 17.10 of the Revised Disclosure Rules

Date of Stockholders’ Dec 3, 2018

Meeting

Type (Annual or

Special) ANNUAL

Time 9:30 A.M

Venue The Metropolitan Club Inc., Estrella corner Amapola Sts., Guadalupe Viejo, Makati City
Record Date Oct 26, 2018

Inclusive Dates of Closing of Stock Transfer Books

Start Date N/A
End date N/A

Other Relevant Information

none

Filed on behalf by:



Name Joanna Manzano
Designation Junior Compliance Officer



10.

1.

12.

SECURITIES AMD EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 20-15 -
SECURITIES AND EXCHANCE

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTIBRY01ISSION
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATIO TR TIA

©0CT30 206 |
_.El:ll\l.l_“’i W plel g M

[ ]Preliminary Information Statement MARKET REGULATION DI;E:T{'
o TIME: 4

[X] Definitive Information Statement

Check the appropriate box:

Mame of Registrant as specified in its charter: PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC,

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization
Metro Manila, Philippines

SEC Identification Number: Reg. Mo. 22401
BIR Tax Identification Code: TIN 000-491-007

Address of principal office:
16F Citibank Tower, Paseo de Roxas, Makati City Postal Code 1226

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code, Tel. Nos.: (632) 831-4479
Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

03 December 2018 (Monday) at 9:30 am at The Metropolitan Club Inc., Estrella corner
Amapcla 5ts., Guadalupe Viejo, Makati City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to security
holders

9 Movember 2018 (Friday)
In case of Proxy Solicitations

Mame of the Person Filing the Statement/ Solicitor: MNA
Address and Telephone No.: NA

Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of the RSA
(information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only to corporate
registrants):

' Title of Each Class [ Number of Shares of Common Stock |
Qutstanding or Amount of Debt Dutstanding_}'

_Common Shares 700,298,616 ]
Preferred Shares " 14,366,260 |

"' Reported by the stock transfer agent as of 30 September 2018,
Are any or all of registrant’s securities listed in a Stock Exchange?
Yes[x] No[ ]
If yes, disclose the name of such Stock Exchange and the class of securities listed therein:

Philippine Stock Exchange. Common Shares
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

NOTICE OF ANNUAL MEETING OF STOCKHOLDERS

To All Stockholders:

Please be advised that PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, IMC. will hold its Annual Shareholders’
Meeting on 03 December 2018 (Monday), 9:30 am at The Metropolitan Club Inc., Estrella corner
Amapola 5ts., Guadalupe Viejo, Makati City, with the following agenda:

1, Call to Order

2. Proof of Notice and Certification of Quorum

3. Approval of Minutes of the previous meeting

4. Approval of Management Report and Audited Financial Statements
5. Ratification of Management's Act

6. Authority to Enter into a Management Agreement with RYM Business Management
Corp.

7. Election of Directors

8. Appointment of External Auditor

9. Other Matters

10. Adjournment

The Board of Directors has fixed the close of business on the 26 October 2018 as the record
date for the determination of stockholders entitled to notice of and to vote at the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting,

All proxies must be submitted to the Corporate Secretary on or before 22 November 2018,
5:00 p.m, at the following address:

Prime Media Holdings, Inc.
c/o Marcventures
4" Flr, Citibank Center
8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City
Attention: Diane Madelyn C. Ching

Wery truly vours,

Atty. Christopher Sam Salvador
Asst. Corporate Secretary
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SAMPLE PROXY FORM

The undersigned stockholder of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS INC. {the “Company™) hereby appoints
or in his/her/its absence, the Chairman of the meeting, as attorney-in-fact
and proxy, to represent and vote all the shares registered in his/her/its name at the annual meeting of the
stockholders of the Company scheduled on 03 December 2018, 9:30 am at the The Metropolitan Club Inc.,
Estrella corner Amapola Sts., Guadalupe Viejo, Makati City, and any of its adjournment(s), as fully as the
undersigned can do if present and voting in person, ratifying all action taken on matters that may properly come
before such meeting or its adjournment(s), The undersigned directs the proxy to vote on the agenda items which
have been expressly indicated with “X" helow:

PROPOSAL T ~ ACTION
FOR AGAINST ABSTAIN

1. Approval of Minules of the
previous meeting

2. Approval of Maﬁﬁgemem Reporl e ;
and Audited Financial
Statements .

I 3. Ratification of Management's
Acts

4. Authority to Enter into a o |
Management Agreement with i
RN Business Management |
Corp. | '

5. Election of Directors: R FOR ALL | AGAINST ALL | ABSTAIN FOR FULL
| DISCRETION

The nominees are;

Manolito A, Manalo
Juan Victor 5, Valdez
Rolando 5. Santos
Bermadeth A. Lim [
Diane Madelyn C, Ching

! Mominees  for  independent
| directars:

Francisco L. Layug ||
Johnny Y. Aruego, Jr.

Instruction: Toe withhold authority to
vote for any nominee, please mark |
“Abstain™ box and list the namefs) |
under. -

6. Election of Reyes Tacandong &
. Co. as external auditor
| 7. Other Matters

Signed this day of 2018 at

PRINTED MAME OF THE STOCKHOLDER SIGNATURE OF THE
STOCKHOLDER/ AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE

This proxy must be acknowledged before a notary public and must be submitted to the Corporate Secretary
on or before 22 November 2018, 5:00 p.m. The stockholder giving a proxy has the power to revoke it either in an
instrument in writing duly presented for recording with the Corporate Secretary at least five (5) days prior to the
meeting or by personal attendance at the stockholders’ meeting. For corporations, the proxy must be accompanied by
a Secretary’s Certificate authorizing an authorized representative to represent the corporation in the meeting.

018 SEC Form 20-15 (PRIM)
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SAMPLE SECRETARY'S CERTIFICATE

[, , of legal age, with address at , being
the Corporate Secretaryof _ , do hereby certify that:
1. In the regular/special meeting of the Board of Directors of the Corporation held on
200_ at the _ . the following resolution was
approved:
“RESOLVED, that the Board of Directors of {the
“Corporation”) hereby authorize, and/or to
represent the Corporation and to vote all of the Corporation's shares
registered in the books of the PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS INC. (PRIM) at any
annual stockholders’ meeting of PRIM, particularly, the annual
stockholders’ meeting to be held on . and any
adjournments or postponements thersof.
“RESOLVED, FURTHER, that the Board of Directors of the Corporation
authorize and/or to sign, execute and deliver
nominations and proxies in relation to said annual stockholders' meeting
of PRIM."
Z. This resolution has not been suspended, revoked nor amended.
{date of execution), {place of execution).
Corporate Secretary
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me on at Makati, Metro Manila, affiant
exhibiting to me his/her valid proof of identification issued at on
Doc. No.
Page No.
Book No.

Series of 2018,
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INFORMATION STATEMENT AND MANAGEMENT REPORT
INFORMATION STATEMENT

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY
However, if you cannot attend and you wish to send a representative/proxy, please send your proxy
letter to the Office of the Corporate Secretary on or before 22 November 2018, 5:00 p.m., a sample
of which is attached to this report. On the day of the annual stockholders’ meeting on 03 December
2018, your representative should bring the proxy letter and present valid proof of identification (e.g.
passport, driver’s license, company ID or TIN card).

A. GEMNERAL INFORMATION

item 1. Date, Time and Place of Annual Meeting of Security Holders

The Annual Meeting of the stockholders of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC, will be held on 03 December
2018, 9:30 The Metropolitan Club Inc., Estrella corner Amapola Sts., Guadalupe Viejo, Makati
City.

The mailing address of the Company is at c/o Marcventures, 4™ Fir, Citibank Center Bldg. Pasec de
Roxas, Makati City. Please address the letters to the corporate secretary of the Company, Diane
Madelyn C. Ching.

This Information Statement will be first sent or given to security holders on or around the 9 November
2018,

item 2. Dissenters’ Right of Appraisal

There is no proposed corporate action or matter to be taken up at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting
that will give rise to the exercise of appraisal right by the dissenting stockholders.

The Corporation Code limits the exercise of the appraisal right by any dissenting stockholder to the
following instances:

a. In case any amendment to the articles of incorporation has the effect of changing or
restricting the rights of any stockholder or class of shares, or of autharizing preferences in
respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class, or of extending or shortening the
term of corporate existence (Section 81):

b. In case of the sale, lease, exchange, transfer, martgage, pledge or other disposition of all or
substantially all of the corporate property and assets (Section 81);

c. In case of merger or consolidation {Section 81);
d. In case of investrents in another corporation, business or purpose (Section 42).

The appraisal right may be exercised by making a written demand on the corporation within thirty
{30) days after the date on which the vote was taken for payment of the fair value of his shares;
provided, that failure to make the demand within such period shall be deemed a waiver of the
appraisal right. If the proposed corporate action is implemented or effected, the corporation shall
pay to such stockholder, upon surrender of the certificate(s) of stock representing his shares, the fair
value thereof as of the day prior to the date on which the vote was taken, excluding any appreciation
or depreciation in anticipation of such corporate action.

If within a period of sixty (60) days from the date the corporate action was approved by the
stockholders, the withdrawing stockholder and the corporation cannot agree on the fair value of the
shares, it shall be determined and appraised by three (3) disinterested persons, one of whom shall
be named by the stockholder, another by the corporation, and the third by the two thus chosen. The
findings of the majority of the appraisers shall be final, and their award shall be paid by the
corporation within thirty (30) days after such award is made; Provided, That no payment shall be
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made to any dissenting stockholder unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its
books to cover such payment; and Provided, further, That upon payment by the corporation of the
agreed or awarded price, the stockholders shall forthwith transfer his shares to the corporation.

The appraisal right shall be exercised in accardance with Title X of the Carporation Code.

Item 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

Mo director or officer of the Company or any nominee for election as director of the Company or any
associate of the foregoing, has any substantial interest, direct or indirect, by security holdings or
otherwise, in any matter to be acted upon, other than election to office as director of the Company.
None of the officers or directors or any of their associates has any substantial interest, direct or
indirect, in any of the matters to be acted upon in the stockholders' meeting.

None of the directors of the Company has informed the Company that he intends to oppose any action
to be taken by the Company at the stockholders' meeting.

B. CONTROL AND COMPEMNSATION INFORMATION

Item 4, Yoting Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

As of 30 September 2018, the following shares of common and preferred stock of the Company were
outstanding:

Mumber of
Class Outstanding Shares
Common 700,298,616
Preferred
Series A 14,366,260
Series B Mil

As of 30 September 2018, the foreign equity ownership on a per class basis is as follows:

Number of
Class Outstanding Shares
Common 1,031,360
Preferred 109,650

All registered owners of the Company’s common stock at the close of business on 20 Ichober 2018
will be entitled to notice and vote at its Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on 03 December 2018,

Each common share is entitled to one (1) vote on all matters to be taken up during the Annual Meeting
except in the case of electing directors where one (1) share is entitled to Seven (7) votes, i.e. each
share is entitled to as many votes as there are Board seats to be filled up.

Each stockholder is entitled to cumulate his votes and cast the same in favor of one or several
nominees of his choice in such proportion as he shall deem fit, provided that, the total vates cast do
not exceed the number of his shares multiplied by the number of directors to be elected. There is
no condition precedent to the exercise by the stockholders of their cumulative voting right.

Security Ownership of Persons Owning More Than 5% of the Company’s Outstanding Common
Stock

As of 30 September 2018, the Company knows of no one who is directly or indirectly the record or
beneficial owner of more than five percent {5%) of the Company’s capital stock except as set farth
below:
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Type of | Name and Name and Citizenship Name of | Me.of Percent |
Class address of address of Beneficial | Shares Held | of class
record beneficial Owner & .
1 I
| owner and owner and Relationship
relationship relationship with Record
with Issuer |  with Issuer __Owner
Common | PCD Nominee | RYM  Business | Filipino RYM  beneficial
Corporation | Management owner of the [ 463 555 085 | 66.20%
{Registered Corp./ shares.
| Owner in the | 106 Paseo de |
Books of the | Roxas Ave,
Transfer Makati City
Agent) Stockholder - B
| Mairete  Asset | Filipino Mairete  Asset |
Holdings, Inc. Holdings, Inc. 778,901 | 1%
165 Floor is beneficial
Citibank Tower, owner of the
Paseo de Roxas, | shares.
Makati |
Stockholder |
| Caulfield Filipino Caulfield
Heights, Inc, Heights, Inc. is | 35,000,000 | 5%
& Ozamis 5t the beneficial
Alabang  Hills, owner of the
Muntinlupa City shares,
B Stockholder !

RYM Business Management Corp. and Mairete Asset Holdings Inc. has authorized and/or appointed by
way of proxy, the Chairman of the Board of Prime Media Holdings Inc. to represent and vote the its
shares in the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. Caulfield Heights Inc. has authorized and/or appointed
by way of proxy, Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr. or its duly authorized representative to attend and vote on

its behalf.

Security Ownership of Management as of 30 September 2018

I I Amount and
Type of Mame and Address of nature of iz Percent
Class Owner Beneficial Citizenship | of class
- | ownership o | |
Common Manolito Manalo 1 Filiping | 0.0%
_ ) Direct ) .
Commaon Rolando S. Santos 1000 Filipino 0.0%
; _ Direct 2 :
Common Bernadeth A. Lim 1 | Filipino 0.0%
) - Direct . y
Common Diane Madelyn Ching 1000 Filipino
Di 0.0%
— e —-— ]rECt -
Comman Juan Victor 5. Valdez 1 Filipino
Di 0.0%
— - - ]rEEt - s e
| Common ' Johnny Y. Aruego Jr, 1 Filipino
- : 0.0%
- — — - D]rect e« .
Common Francisco L. Layug Il 1 Filipino
Di 0.0%
Aggregate for above named 2,005
officers and directors , .

Voting Trust Holders of 5% or More

The Company is not aware of the existence of persons holding five percent (5%) or more of the
Company’s shares of commen stock under a veting trust or similar agreement.
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Changes in Control
There was no changes in control of the management of the Corporation.

The Company in its disclosure dated December 18, 2015, informed that RYM Business Management
Corporation has informed Prime Media Holdings Inc. (the Corporation) that it has acquired 93,685,410
and 218,099,360 common shares owned by Neo Oracle Holdings, Inc. and Metro Tagaytay Land
Company Inc., respectively, in the Corporation or a total of Three Hundred Eleven Million Seven
Hundred Eighty Four Thousand Seven Hundred Seventy {311,784,770) common shares equivalent to
44.6% during the foreclosure sales evidenced by the Certificates of Sale dated 18 December 2015 and
18 December 20135, being the creditor and highest bidder for the aforementioned shares at the bid
price of PhP 74,544,642.00 and PhP 57,051,743.40, respectively, or a total price of PhP
131,596,385.47, :

Subsequently, on June 1, 2016, supplement to the disclosure dated 21 December 2015, the Company
disclosed that the 93,685,410 shares of Meo Oracle Holdings Inc. and 218,099,360 shares of Metro
Tagaytay Land Company Inc. in Prime Media Holdings Inc. were transferred to RYM Business
Management Corp. (RYM) through a special block sale on 31 May 2016 at the price of PhP 0.7957 and
PhP 0.2616 per share, respectively, to implement the foreclosure sales made in December 2015,

As a result, RYM became the owner of 610,733,986 shares or 87.38% of the Company.

The aforementioned transaction is exempt from the Tender Offer rule as provided in Section 19.3.1.3
of the Securities Regulation Code,

On June 15, 2016, RYM disclosed thru SEC Form 23-B that it has sold a total of 147,178,901 shares;
thus, leaving the Company with 463,555,085 shares or 66.20%.

ltem 5. Directors and Executive Officers
Directors

The following are the names, ages, citizenship, periods of service of the incumbent directars of the
Company as of September 30, 2018:

Period during which

Name Age Citizenship individual has served as such
Manolito A. Manalo 49 Filipino | May 2013 to the present
Juan Victor 5. Valdez 45 Filipino May 2013 to the present
Bernadeth A. Lim 38 Filipino _ May 2013 to the present
Diane Madelyn C. Ching 36 _Filipino | October 2013 up to the present
Relando S. Santos ) 66 Filipino August 2017 to the present

| Johnny Y. Aruego Filipino
(Independent Director) 4 Ny SR hE pressnt
Francisco L. Layug IIl Filipino

| (independent director) 64 December 2017 to the .;_:.rrtf:?ent

The business experience of each of the incumbent directors of the Company for the last five (5) years
is as follows:

Manolito A. Manalo was elected as President and Director in May 2013, He is the co-founder and
managing partner of Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm. He is a Director of Panalpina World Transport
(Phils.), Inc.. He also sits as Director and Corporate Secretary in Kajima Philippines Inc. He began his
law practice as an associate in Leovillo C. Agustin Law Offices from 1995 to 1996 and Britanico
Consunji and Sarmiento from 1996 to 1997, He later headed the Legal Division of Air Philippines from
1997 to 1999. He is also the resident agent of Air Seoul and Chailease Finance Co. Ltd from 2017 to
present, and of Turkish Airlines from 2014 to 2017,
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Bernadeth A. Lim was elected as Vice President and Director in May 2013. She is a junior partner of
Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm. She is the President and a director of Morrison Express Philippines
Corp from January 2017 to present. She is also a director and corporate secretary of Solen Innovations
Holdings Inc. from November 2016 to Present. She is a director Imoney Comparison Philippines, Inc.
from June 2015 to present. She is also a director and the corporate secretary of Bounce Electronic
Music Production and DJ School from October 2014 to Present and Tone Def Music Group, Inc. from
June 2014 to present. She is a director and the resident agent of Proline AG Services, Inc. She is the
resident agent of New Northeast Electric Group High Voltage Switchgear Co., Ltd from Movember
2017 to May 2018 and of V Air Corporation from October 2016 to November 2016. She is a Director
and Assistant Corporate Secretary of Kajima Philippines Incorporated, Ripple Mobile Technology
Solutions Inc., and Anawhan Realty Inc. She also sits as a Director in Ayannah Information Solutions
Inc. and Home Catalogue Shopping, Inc.

Juan Victor S. Valdez was elected as Director in May 2013, He is a junior partner of Ocampo and
Manalo Law Firm. He is a director, Vice-President for Legal Affairs and Corporate Secretary of PATTS
College of Aeronautics, one of the country's leading aeronautic schools. He also sits as director in
Segundo Travel & Tours Inc., Hafti Tours Inc., and Kajima Philippines Incorporated.

Diane Madelyn C. Ching was elected as Director in October 2013. She concurrently serves as
Corporate Secretary of the Company. She likewise serves as Corporate Secretary of Bright Kindle
Resources & Investments Inc. (formerly Bankard Inc.), Marcventures Mining and Development Corp.,
and Asian Appraisal Co. Inc. She is likewise the General Counsel and Assistant Corporate Secretary of
Marcventures Holdings Inc. Atty. Ching was previously an assocfate of Ocampo & Manalo Law Firm
from March 2010 to June 2013.

Rolando 5. Santos was elected as Director in August 2017. He was elected as Assistant Treasurer in
October 2013. He serves as Vice President and Treasurer of Bright Kindle Resources & Investments
Inc. and as Treasurer of Marcventures Holdings Inc, and Marcventures Mining and Development Corp.
He was previously the Branch Head/ Cluster Head for Makati Branches of Equitable PCI Bank which
was eventually acquired by BDO from 2001 to 2013.

Francisco L. Layug lll is the President of Rotary Club of Pasay. He was the President of Electronic
security System Corp. (ES5COR) from 1992-2015. He is currently a Consultant of ESSCOR.

Johnny Y. Aruego, Jr. was elected as an Independent Director in May 2013. He is a partner in Aruego
Bite and Associates. He is a director of Excel Unified Land Resources Corporation. He is the Corporate
Secretary and Legal Counsel for Agility, Inc. and A. V. Ocampo-ATR Kimeng Insurance Broker, Inc. He
is a Legal Consultant of Loranzana Food Corporation, National Steel Corporation and Margarita Land
and Management Co., Inc. He is the assistant rehabilitation receiver for Pacific Activated Carbon,
Inc., Pet Plans, Inc., Bacnotan Steel Industries, Inc. and All Asia Capital and Trust Corporation. He
Is an assistant liquidator of East Asia Capital Corporation, Reynolds Philippines Corporation.

Officers

As of September 30, 2018, the following are the names, ages, positions, citizenship and periods of
service of the incumbent officers of the Company:

e ' ! o g o Period during which
Hame Age Position | Citizenship | individual has served as
such
Manolito A. Manalo 49 | President & CEO | Filipino May 2013 up to present
| Bernadeth A. Lim | 38 | Vice President | Filipino | May 2013 to present
Diane Madelyn C. Ching | Corporate Secretary, ~ Filipino |- August 2017 up to the
35 | Compliance Officer and present
_Data Privacy Officer* - )
Rolando S. Santos 67 | Treasurer ' Filipino October 2013upto |
) v present
" Christopher Sam 5. Asst, Corporate | Filipino May 2014 up to present
( Salvador | 35 | Secretary/ Corporate
| Information Officer

*appointed on 28 August 2018
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Christopher Sam 5. Salvador was initially appointed as Corporate Information Officer in 2014 and an
August 22, 2017, he was elected Assistant Corporate Secretary of the Company. He is an associate of
Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm. He is the Corporate Secretary of Timebound Trading, Inc. and Assistant
Corporate Secretary for AirSWIFT Transport, Inc. (formerly Island Transvoyager, Inc.) and Bacuit
Airhaldings, Inc.

Homination Committee and Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors

The Nominations Committee has screened the following nominees for election or re-election on 03
December 2018. The Nominations Committee determined that the candidates possess all the
qualifications and none the disqualifications as director or independent director.

Nominees for Regular Directors

Manclito A. Manalo
Juan Victor 5. Valdez
Bernadeth A. Lim
Diane Madelyn C. Ching
Rolando 5. Santos

Mominees for Independent Director

Jehnny Y. Aruego
Francisco L. Layug Il

Please refer to the above biographical details of current directors that have been renominated.

All nominations for regular and independent director have been reviewed and approved by the
Company's Nomination and Compensation Committee.

The independent directors were both nominated by Manolito A. Manalo. The nominator is not related
to the persons he has nominated for independent directors.

The procedure and selection of the independent directors were made in accordance with Section 38
of the Code and the Company's By-laws. In compliance with the provisions of Rule 38 of the Amended
Implementing Rules and Regulations of the Securities Regulation Code, the Company's By-laws was
amended on 30 September 2004,

The qualifications of all nominated directors including the nominated independent directors have
been pre-screened in accordance with the rules of the Company. Only the nominees whose names
appear on the Final List of Candidates are eligible for election as directors {independent or
otherwise). No other nominations were entertained after the preparation of the Final List of
Candidates and no further nominations shall be entertained or allowed during the annual
stockholders’ meeting.

The Company undertakes to submit the updated Certifications of Qualification for the Independent
Directors within 30 days from their election in compliance with SEC Memorandum Circular No.5 Series
of 2017,

The nomination and election of independent director shall be in accordance with Section 38, as
amended of Republic Act 8799 or the Securities Regulation Code and article Il, Section 3 of the
Company's By-Laws as amended by the Board of Directors on September 29, 2004 and the
Stockholders on September 30, 2004,

The Nomination Committee is composed of Francisco L. Layug Il as Chairman, and Juan Yictor 5.
Valdez and Diane Madelyn C. Ching as members.

In accordance with SEC Memorandum Circular No. 4 Series of 2017, both Independent Directars (ID)
have not exceeded the maximum cumulative term of nine (%) years. Furthermore, the Company
understands that after a term of (9) years, the independent director shall be perpetually barred from
re-election as such in the same company, but may continue to qualify as a non-independent director.
At the instance that a company wants to retain an independent director who has served for nine (9)
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years, the Board should provide meritorious justification/s and seek shareholders' approval during
the annual shareholders’ meeting; and Reckoning of the cumulative nine-year is from 2012.

Period in Which Directors and Executive Officers Should Serve

The directors and executive officers should serve for a period of one (1) year,

Term of Office of a Director

The seven (7) directors shall be stockholders and shall be elected annually by the stackholders owning
majority of the outstanding capital stock for a term of one (1} year and shall serve until the election
and qualification of their successors.

Any vacancy in the board of directors other than removal or expiration of term may be filled by a
majority vote of the remaining members thereof at a meeting called for that purpose if they still
constitute a quorum, and the director or directors so chosen shall serve for the unexpired term.
Significant Employees

The business of the Company is not highly dependent on the services of certain key personnel, There
is no employee who, while not being an executive officer, is expected by the Company to make a
significant contribution to the business.

Family Relationships

There are no family relationships either by consanguinity or affinity up to the fourth civil degree
among directors, executive officers and nominees for election as directors.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

The Company is not aware that any one of the incumbent directors and officers and persons
nominated to become director/s and officer/s has been the subject of a bankruptcy petition or a
conviction by final judgment in criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, excluding traffic violations
and other minor offenses, or has been by judgment or decree found to have violated securities or
commaodities law and enjoined from engaging in any business, securities, commodities or banking
activities for the past five (5) years until the date of this Information Sheet,

Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Due from RYM decreased significantly by P27.58 million or equivalent to 68.95% in view of
collection of advances made to RYM.

RYM advanced to the Company the amount of PhP20 million to allow the Company to pay the
compromise settlement with BSP; thus the increase in Due to Related party accounts.

Resignation/Disagreement

There was no resignation by any director or officer for year 2018,

Monica Isabelle I. Villanueva resigned as Corporate Secretary on 22 August 2017. Her resignation is
not due to any disagreement with the Company on any matter relating to the Company’s operations,
policies or practices.

Iltem 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The aggregate compensation paid in 2015, 2016 and 2017 estimated to be paid in 2018, (1) to the

Chief Executive Officer and four (4) most highly compensated officers of the Company, as a group;
and (2) to all key officers, other officers, and directors as a group, is set out below:
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Names | Position ' ~ Year | Salary | Bonus | Others

Manolito A. Manalp | Chairman &
President

Bernadeth A. Lim | Vice President

" Juan Victor Valdez

Rolando S. Santos Treasurer
| Diane  Madelyn C. | Corporate Secretary R
| Ching ,
Aggregate for above ) 2005 0 0 22,222
named 2016 ? 1] 0 25,000
. 2017 | 0 0 30,000
| All Directors and [ i B
Officers as a group 2015 o] 0 I 22,778
unnamed | 2016 a 0 i 30,000
2017 o 0 { 25,000
2018(est) 70,000

Except for nominal per diem amounting to P10,000.00 for attending board meetings and PhP
5,000.00 for attending committee meetings, there are no standard arrangements by which Directors
are compensated directly or indirectly.

Item 7. Independent Public Accountants

a) Independent Public Accountants, Reyes Tacandong & Co. (RTC) will stand for re-election
as the Corporation’s external auditors for the year 2018 which shall be subject to
shareholders’ approval during the Annual Meeting in compliance with SRC Rule 68,
Paragraph 3{b){iv) which provides that the external auditor should be rotated every five
(3) years or earlier or the handling partner shall be changed.

b) RTC was first elected as the Company’s Independent Public Accountant in December
2014. Representatives of RTC will be present during the annual meeting and will be given
the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so. They are also expected to
respond to appropriate questions if needed. There was no event where RTC and the
Company had any disagreement with regard to any matter relating to accounting
principles or practices, financial statement disclosure or auditing scope or procedure.
Except as stated in the report of independent auditors, the Corporation has no
disagreements with its auditors.

c) For the audit of the Company’s Annual financial statements and services provided in
connection with statutory and regulatory filings or engagements, the aggregate amounts
to be billed or already billed excluding VAT and out of pocket expenses (OPE) by RTC
amounts/amounted to P330,000 and 330,000 for 2017 and 2016 respectively.

The 2017 audit of the Company is in compliance with Rule 68, paragraph (3){b}(ix) of the Amended
Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, which provides that the external auditor should be rotated, or
the handling partner changed, every five (5) years or earlier and that a two-year cooling off period
should be observed in the re-engagement of the same signing partner or individual auditor.

At present, RTC account partner handling the Corporation is Belinda B. Fernando and she has been
the handling partner since 2014. She is due for rotation in 2019. A two year cooling off period shall
be observed in the re-engagement of the same signing partner or individual.

The Company created an Audit Committee compaosed of the following members: Bernadeth A. Lim,
Juan Victor 5. Valdez and Johnny Y. Aruego, Jr (Chairman). As provided for in its charter, the
objective of the Audit Committee is to assist the board of directors in fulfilling its oversight
responsibilities by reviewing the financial reporting process, the system of internal control, risk
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management, governance processes, the audit process and the company's process for monitoring
compliance with laws and regulations and its own code of business conduct.

item 8. COMPENSATION PLANS

No action is proposed to be taken during the stockholders’ meeting with regard to any bonus, profit
sharing, pension/retirement plan, granting of any extension of options, warrants or rights to purchase
any securities.

€. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

No matter will be taken up involving any issuance or exchange of securities,

ftem 9. AUTHORIZATION OR ISSUANCE OF SECURITIES OTHER THAN FOR EXCHANGE

There is nothing to disclose with respect to authorization or issuance of securities.

Item 10, MODIFICATION OR EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

Pursuant to the previous approvals of the Board of Directors and Stockholders of the Company
sometime in the year 1997 which was duly approved by the Securities and Exchange Commission and
duly disclosed to the Exchange, the Company issued 1,289,279 additional shares on May 30, 2016
arising from the conversion of 32,231,970 preferred shares at the conversion rate of 25 preferred
shares to 1 common share.

As of September 30, 2018, Change(s) in Number of |ssued and Outstanding Shares are as follows:

Before After
Common Shares/ PRIM (Foreign) 1,217,859 1,296,290
Common Shares/ PRIM (Local) 699 002,326 699,002,326
Total 700,220,185 700,298,616
Preferred Shares/ PRIM (Foreign) 109,650 109,650
Preferred Shares/ PRIM (Local) 16,217,380 14,256,610
Total 16,327,030 14,366,260

D. OTHER MATTERS

item 15. ACTION WITH RESPECT TO REPORTS & OTHER PROPOSED ACTION/S

The following matters shall be submitted to the vote of stockholders of the Company during the
stockholders' meeting,

Approval of Minutes of the previous meeting
Approval of Management Report and Audited Financial Statements
Ratification of Management’s Act
4. Authority to Enter info a Management Agreement with RYM Business Management
Corporation
. Election of Directors
6. Appointment of External Auditor

by e

Action is to be taken on the approval of the Minutes of the previous stockholders’ meeting. The
Summary of the minutes therefor is provided below:
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The stockholders approved the minutes of the meeting of the last Annual General Meeting of
the stockholders held last 25 October 2016.

The stockholders approved the Management/President’s Report and the Annual Report for
the year 2016 including the Corporation’s Audited Financial Statement for the year ended 31
December 2016,

The stockholders ratified all acts of the Board of Directors and Management for the previous
wear up to even date.

The stockholders approve and ratified the executed of a management agreement between
the Corporation and RYM Business Management Corporation,

The stockholders elected the following as directors of the Corporation to serve for the period
2017-2018 and until their successors shall have been duly elected as qualified, to wit:

Manolito A, Manalo

Juan Victor 5. Valdez

Bernadeth A. Lim

Rolando 5. Santos

Diane Madelyn C. Ching

Johnny Y. Aruego, Jr. as independent director
Francisco Layug as independent director

oo N T

The stockholders approved the appointment of Reyes Tacandong & Co., as the External
Auditor of the Corporation for the ensuing year.

On the approval of the management agreement between the Corporation and RYM, the board seeks
the ratification by the stockholders of the execution of the said agreement in accordance with Section
44 of the Corporation Code. Under Section 44 of the Corporation Code, a corporation is allowed to
execute a management agreement with another corporation, provided the same is approved by the
board of directors and staockholders owning at least two-thirds (2/3) of the total outstanding capital
stock entitled to vote in the event that a stockholder representing the same interest of both the
managing and the managed corporations owns or control more than one-third (1/3) of the total
outstanding capital stock entitled to vote of the managing corporation.

Summary of the Minutes of the Board Meetings for the year 2018 for ratification of
management's actions,

Meetings of the Board of Directors were held on the following dates:

March 14, 2018;
April 20, 2018;

May 28, 2018

July 6, 2018;

August 28, 2018;
September 10, 2018.

St o e s

At these meetings, operational and financial reports were discussed. In addition, the following
matters were taken up;

1.

March 14, 2018
Appointment of Atty. Diane Madelyn C. Ching and/or Andres Padernal and Paras Law
Offices or any of its lawyers, to appear as counsel for the Corporation in relation to the
case against Cahirup Tembrevilla-Armogenia and South Sea Resort Hotel Inc.

2. April 20, 2018

Approval of the Audited Financial Statements for the Year Ending December 31, 2017
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3. May 28, 2018
- Grant of Authority to file pleading in relation to Fortunata vs. PDCP case and the
Authority to Atty. Noel Allen R. Bose or any lawyers of the VC Bose Law Firm to appear
as counsel for the Corporation regarding Civil Case No. T-2185, pending before the Branch
15 of the Regional Trial Court of the Tabaco City Albay.

4. July 6, 2018
- Approval of the Corporation to enter into a Compromise Agreement with Bangko Sentral
ng Pilipinas.
- Appointment of Rolando S, Santos, Atty. Manolito A. Manalo, Diane Madelyn C. Ching and
any of the lawyers of Ching Law Office as Counsel for the Corporation in relation to the
Case entitied Bulaong Enterprises Inc. vs First e-Bank Corporation with Civil Case No.
6784 pending before Branch 22, Regional Trial Court of General Santos City.

5. August 28, 2018
Approval of the Sale of the Corporation’s Property in Legaspi City.
- Appointment of Atty. Diane Madelyn C. Ching as Data Privacy Officer
- Change of Signatories in relation to the accounts maintained by the Corporation in BDO
Unibank, Inc. (Philam Tower-Valero Branch) located in City of Makati.

6. September 20, 2018
- Holding of Annual Stockholder's Meeting

Action will also be taken for the Company to enter into a Management Agreement with RYM Business
Management Corporation for a period of up to 5 years for at least PhP 5M per annum, subject to
modification by the Board of Directors.

ltem 16. MATTERS NOT REQUIRED TO BE SUBMITTED

All corporate actions to be taken up at the annual stockholders’ meeting will be submitted to the
stockholders of the Registrant for their approval in accordance with the requirements of the
Corporation Code.

Matters not required to be submitted are the Call to Order and Certification of Notice and Quorum.
Item 17. Voting Procedures

In the election of directors, the seven (7) nominees garnering the highest number of votes will be
elected as members of the board of directors, provided that there shall always be at least two (2)
members whao are independent directors.

For all other matters proposed to be acted upon, the affirmative vote of the shareholders
representing a majority of the outstanding common capital stock will be needed for approval.

Manner of Yoting

Each common share entitles the person in whose name it is registered in the books of the Company
to one vote with respect to all matters to be taken up during the annual meeting of stockholders.

In the election of directors, each stockholder may vote such number of shares for as many persons as
there are directors to be elected or may cumulate said shares and give one nominee as many votes
as the number of directors to be elected multiplied by the number of his share shall equal, or he may
distribute them on the same principle among as many nominees as he shall see fit, provided, that
the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number of shares owned by him multiplied
by the number of directors to be elected.

Voting Requirements
{a) With respect to the election of directors, candidates who received the highest number of

votes shall be declared elected as directors of the Company.
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(b} All other matters presented for approval of the stockholders of the Company require the
affirmative vote of the stockholders representing a majority of the outstanding stock of the
Company

Method by which Yotes will be Counted

Unless required by law, or demanded by a stockholder present or represented at the meeting and
entitled to vote thereat, voting need not be by ballot and will be done by show of hands.

The Corporate Secretary will be responsible for counting votes based on the number of shares entitled
to vote owned by the stockholders who are present or represented by proxies at the Annual Meeting
of the Stockholders,

MANAGEMENT REPORT
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OR PLAN OF OPERATION

MAMNAGEMENT REPORT

.

Financial Statements

The Audited Financial Statements of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. (PRIM) for the years ended as of
December 31, 2017 are attached to this report.

Information on Independent Accountants and other Related Matters

The Company's financial statements for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016 have been
audited by Reyes Tacandong & Co. {“RTC”), independent auditors, as stated in their reports
appearing herein.

Ms. Belinda B. Fernando is the Company’s current audit partner. We have not had any
disagreements on accounting and financial disclosures with our current external auditors for the
periods or any subsequent interim period.

There were no disagreements with RTC on any matter of accounting and financial disclosure.

The following table sets out the aggregate fees incurred for the years ended December 31, 2017
and 2016 for professional services rendered by RTC:

2017 2016
Audit and Audit-Related Services P330,000 P330,000

Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following discussion and analysis is based on the audited financial statements as at December
31, 2017 and 2016, prepared in conformity with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS)
and accompanying Notes to the Financial Statements and should be read in conjunction with the
audited consolidated financial statements.

Summary Financial Information
The Financial Statements as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 and for the years ended December
31, 2016 and 2015 are hereto attached.

The following table sets forth the summary financial information for the years ended December
31, 2017 and 2016:;
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Summary of Income Statement
Years Ended December 31

2017 2016 2015
INCOME R2,201,162 R2,973,625 P2,011,824
EXPENSES 30,105,614 28,653,740 32,674,375
INCOME {LOSS) BEFORE TAX (27,904,452}  (25,680,115) (30,662,551}
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 531,234 590,871 36,060
NET INCOME (LOSS) ~ (28,435,686)  (26,270,986) (30,698,611}
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) 60,000 (10,000) 100,000
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (LOSS) (R28,375,686) (P26,280,986)  (P30,598,611)
BASIC AND DILUTED LOSS PER SHARE (R0D.04) (RD.04) (R0.06)

Summary of Balance Sheet
December 31

2017 2016
ASSETS
Current Assets B16,802,522 R48,027,135
Moncurrent Assets 71,714,190 68,432,200

P88,516,712 PF116,459,335

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Current Liabilities R193,071,645 PBE193,160, 882
Moncurrent Liability 9,556,800 9,034,500

202,628,445 202,195,382
Equity (114,111,733)  (85,736,047)

R88,516,712 R116,459,335

Summary of net cash flows
Years Ended December 31

2017 2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES 595,268 (R70,523,055) (P36,743,094)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING
ACTIVITIES (1,577,000) - (85,800)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING
ACTIVITIES o _ - -
NET DECREASE IN CASH AND CASH
EQUIVALENTS (981,732) (70,523,055) (36,828,894)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT
BEGINNING
OF YEAR 2,701,963 73,225,018 110,053,912
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END
OF YEAR 1,720,231 R2,701,963  P73,225,018

NOMNCASH FINANCING ACTIVITY
Unpaid portion of acquisition cost of AFS
financial assets B — P
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2017 vs. 2016

Statement of Financial Position

The total Assets of the Company decreased by P 27.78 Million or equivalent to 23.85% from P 116.43
million in 2016 to 88.68 million in 2017, The significant changes were mainly due to the following:

Cash decreased significantly from P2.70 million as of December 31, 2016 to P1.72 million as
of December 31, 2017, a decrease of P0.97 million or equivalent to 36.06% pertains to the
payment of administrative expenses,

Receivable decreased by P2.07 million or equivalent to 45.80% due to the setup of allowance
for doubtful accounts on cash advances.

Other current assets decreased due to the reversal of interest receivable amounting to P0.69
million or equivalent to 74.07%.

Due from Parent Company decreased significantly by P27.58 million or equivalent to 68.95%
pertains to the collection on advances made to RYM Business Management Corporation.
Equipment increase pertains to purchase of Toyota Hilux amounting to P1.58 million.
Liabilities increased by P0.48 million or equivalent to 6.27% mainly due to increase in
deferred tax liability.

The company incurred a net loss of P28.32 million in 2017 which resulted to decrease in the
total stockholder’s equity.

Results of Operations

Operating results reflected a net loss of P28.32 million in 2017, P2.08 million or equivalent to 7.92%
higher as compared to 2016 reported net loss of P26.26 million. The significant changes were
mainly due to the following:

Recovery of accounts written-off decreased by P0.58 million or 77.33% due to lower collection
this year,

Provisions for impairment loss increased by P2.13 million due to set up of allowance for
doubtful accounts on cash advances made to the previously engaged processing the transfer
and registrations.

Professional fees decreased by P1.11 million or equivalent to 38.14% due to lower legal fees
in 2017.

Outside services increased from P1.09 million in2016 to P1.32 million in 2017, P0.23 million
or equivalent to 21.10% primarily due to engagement of lawyers to attend to litigation cases
in which the Company is involved.

Taxes and licenses decreased from P0.65 million in 2016 to PO.46 million in 2017, 29.23% in
due payment of Documentary stamp tax on 2016.

Rent decreased by P0.08 million or equivalent to 29.63% due to lower association dues in
2017

Salaries and allowance decreased by P0.13 million or equivalent to 100.00% due to paid
allowance on contractual employees in 2016 and none in 2017,

Depreciation expense increased by P0.10 million for the transportation equipment.

Other expenses increased by P0.55 million due to recognize of other miscellanecus expense
from interest receivable,

2016 vs. 2015

Statement of Financial Position

The total Assets of the Company decreased by 30,44 Million or equivalent to 20.99% from P145.00
Million in 2015 to P114.56 Million in 2016. The significant changes were mainly due to the following:

+» Cash decreased significantly from P73.22 million as of December 31, 2015 to
P2.70 million as of December 31, 2016, a decrease of P70.52 million or equivalent to 96.31%
pertains mainly to the payment of administrative expenses and advances made to RYM Business
Management Corporation. The advances were subsequently collected in 2017.
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Due from Parent Company increased significantly by ®40.00 million or equivalent to 100.00%
pertains to the advances made to RYM Business Management Corporation.

The company incurred a net loss of P27.61 million in 2016 which resulted to decrease in the total
stockholder’s equity.

Results of Operations

Operating results reflected a net loss of P27.60 million in 2016, P3.10 million or equivalent to 10.10%
lower as compared to 2015 reported net loss of 30.70 million. The significant changes were mainly
due to the following:

Outside services decreased from P2.09million in 2015 to P1.09 million in 2016,
£1.00 million or equivalent to 47.85% decrease primarily due to the payment of appraisal fee for
the appraisal on the properties of the Company in 2015.

Taxes and licenses decreased from ®1.57 million in 2015 to P0.65 million in 2016, 57.96% in due
to payment of real property tax.

Rent decreased by P0.98 million or equivalent to 78.40% due to termination of rental contract
for office space used in 2015.

Other expenses decreased by P1.15 million due to last year’s loss on litigation on the “China
Barking Corporation vs. Plasko Trading Inc. and PDCP Development Bank (now Prime Media
Holdings, Inc.)”, under Civil Case No. 95-72847, RTC Manila, Branch 17.

Key Performance Indicators

2015 | 2016 2017
Return on Asset (%) 1(0.24%) 0.21% | (0.27%)

Return on Equity (%) (0.03%) | (0.03%) | 0.27%

1/ Return on assets (ROA) was computed based on the ratio of net income/ (net loss) to  average
assets,

2/ Return on equity (ROE) was computed based on the ratio of net income/ (net loss) to
average equity.

. Brief Description of the General Nature and Scope of the Business

The Company was incorporated and registered with the Philippine Securities and Exchange
Commission (SEC) on February 6, 1963,

Prime Media Holdings, Inc. (the Company) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 6, 1963. On October 1, 2003, the SEC
approved the amendment of the Company’s articles of incorporation, changing its primary
purpose from a development bank to a holding company and to hold investments in the media
industry. On March 4, 2013, the SEC approved the extension of the Company’s corporate life for
another 50 vears.

On July 9, 1964, the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. approved the public listing of the Company's
shares of stock. As at December 31, 2016 and 2015, 663,713,458 Company shares are publicly
listed.

On September 12, 2002, the Company’s assets and liabilities arising from its development bank
operations were transferred to and assumed by Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. (BDO) and Philippine
Deposit Insurance Corporation (PDIC) under a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA). As at
December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company has liabilities arising from the MOA which pertain
mainly to the estimated transfer taxes and registration fees related to the transfer of assets to
BDO/PDIC and other related liabilities (see Note 9.

As at December 31, 2015, the Company’s shareholders are RYM Business Management Corp, (RYM
or Parent Company) (43%), Metro Tagaytay Land Company, Inc. (MTLCI) (31%) and Neo Oracle
Holdings, Inc. (NOHI) {13%). In 2016, RYM acquired the common stock owned by MTLCI and NOHI
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but disposed of 21% of its ownership shares. As at December 31, 2016, RYM effectively owns 66%
of the Company’s common stock.

The financial statements of the Company as at December 31, 2016 and 2015 and for the years
ended December 31, 2016, 2015 and 2014 were approved and authorized for issuance by the
Board of Directors (BOD) on April 10, 2017.

Status of Operations

The Company is still exploring for a new business. Its current activities comprise mainly of
transferring assets related to its development bank operation to BDO and PDIC. Thus, the
Company has continued to incur losses resulting to a capital deficiency of B85.7 million and
R59.5 million as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively. The stockholders, however, have
continued to provide the necessary financial support to sustain Company operations., The
stockholders converted their preferred stock of F34.2 million into common stock in 2016 and
converted their advances of P600.5 million to additional capital in 2014 and infused capital
aggregating P179.0 million in 2014 and 2013 to reduce the capital deficiency. The Company is
alse considering to implement a quasi-reorganization to reduce the capital deficiency.

V. DESCRIPTION OF PROPERTY
The Company has investment property located in Legazpi City, Albay, which are held for capital
appreciation, On September 21, 2018, the Company sold this asset for 51,823,306 in order to
use the funds to pay the Company's liabilities and defray its expenses. The cash generated in the
disposition of the asset will be used to continue its clean-up activity and transfer of asset to
PDIC/BDO.

On December 31, 2016, the Company changed its measurement basis on investment properties
from cost model to fair value model.

Fair Value Measurement

Investment properties are revalued periodically a fair values as determined by an
independent firm of appraisers. The Latest appraisal report is at December 31, 2017. The fair
value of the land amounted to P68.1 Million as at December 31, 2016 and P&6.2 million as at
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively. The fair value was determined based on valuation
performed by independent and professionally qualified appraisers with a report dated April 3,
2017, The fair value measurement for investment properties has been categorized as level 3.

The composition of investment properties follows:

Investment properties

Unaudited Audited
30-Sep-18  December 312017
Cost 38,020,000 38,020,000
Movement on fair value changes:
Beginning kalance 31,856,000 30,115,000
Gain (loss) on FV changes 2 1,741,000
Sale of Investment property 69,876,000 -
Ending balance 31,856,000 31,856,000
A9 276 000

The appraised value of the investment properties were arrived at using the Market Data
Approach. In this approach, the value of the land was based on sales and listings of comparable
property registered within the vicinity. This requires the adjustments of comparable property by
reducing reasonable comparative sales and listings to a common denominator. This was done by
adjusting the differences between the subject property and those actual sales and listings
regarded as comparable. The properties used as bases of comparison are situated within the
vicinity of the subject property. The comparison was premised on the factors of location, size
and shape of the lot, time element and others.
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The significant unobservable inputs to fair valuation are as follows:

Price per square meter: estimated value prevailing in the real estate market depending on the
location, area, shape, and time element. The price per square meter used for valuation ranges
from PhP 15,000.00 to PhP 48,246.00 and from PhP 35,000.00 to PhP 40,000.00 as at December
31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Value adjustments: adjustments are made to bring the comparative values in approximation to
the investment property taking into account the location and size. Value adjustment used is 30-
40% and 5%-10% as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively,

Average price index was arrived at PhP 35,000.0 to PhP37,000.00 per sq.m. and PhP 34,000.00
to PhP 36,000.00 as at December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

¥l. Business Transactions with Related Parties
The Company as of December 31, 2017 and 2016 advances from its whaolly-owned subsidiary and
affiliate are as follows:
Parent Company and Other Related Party
Hature of Amaunt of Transaction Outstanding Balance
Transaction 2017 2016 2017 2016
Parent Company - RYM MGMT
CORP,
D from [to) Advances 20,000,000  R40,000,000 12,420,000 40,000, 000
Management fee 23,092,784 23,092,784 " -
43,092,784 63,092,784 12,420,000 B40, 000,000
Under common controf -
ROLAMDO 5. SANTOS/SMS! Payment of DST RS00,000.00 B-  PS00,000,00 R
MAIRETE HOLDIMGS CORPORATION Advances F800,000.00 R RB00,000,00 B-
MARCVEMTURES MINING ARD
DEVELOPMENT CORP. Advances RS,000,000.00 R- B5,000,000,00 B-
R6,300,000.00 F6,300,000,00
VIl. Employees
As of December 31, 2017, the Company has no regular employees,
VIIl. Plan of Operation

The Company has no significant operational activity since its primary purpose was changed from
a development bank to a holding company in December 2002 other than those described in Item
1 above. There are no known trends, events or material commitments that are expected to have
a material favorable or unfavorable impact on the financial condition or on income from
continuing operations. The Company also signed subscription agreements with its major
stockholders for a total proceeds of 179 million, of which P70 million was received in April 2013
and the balance of 109 million was collected in May and June 2014. This further bring down
the capital deficit and will be the major source of funding for the expenses related to the
transfer of the remaining assets to PDIC and BSP. Aside from the transfer of assets to PDIC and
BSP, the Company continues to pursue the clean-up of its books and the settlement of its
remaining obligations to pave the way for possible additional capital infusion from third party
investors.
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IX. Status of Operations

The Company has a capital deficiency of P93.00 million and P79.2 million as at June 30, 2016
and December 31, 2015, respectively. In April 2016 34.19 million shares were converted to 1.37
million common shares at a rate of 25:1, which resulted to a decreased in preferred stock by
P34.19 million and increase in common stock by P1.37 million and increase in additional paid
capital in excess of par by P32.82 million.

The Company is pursuing discussions with third party investors for additional capital.

X. Dividends
The Company has not declared dividend for the years 2017, 2016 and 2015.

Xl. Legal Proceedings

In the normal course of operations, the Company is named a defendant in various legal actions, but
it is the opinion of Management, that the ultimate liability, if any, from these cases will not seriously
affect the Company. On July 6, 2018, the Company settled the case entitled Bangko Sentral ng
Pilipinas vs. Prime Media Holdings, Inc., docketed Civil Case No. 13130993 and pending before Branch
25, Regional Trial Court, City of Manila in order te avoid protracted litigation,

Management Report for the period September 30, 2018

The unaudited Financial Statement of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. as of September 30, 2018 and for
nine months period ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 with comparative audited figure as of
December 31, 2017 is in compliance with generally accepted accounting principles and there were
no changes made in accounting policies and methods of computation in the preparation of the interim
financial statements.

summary of Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017

September December 31,  September 30, 2018 vs.
30, 2018 27y Dec. 31, 2017
Unaudited Audited

Amount Percentage
Increase Increase
{decrease) (decrease)
{*'000) {#7000) (#'000)
Current assets P&1,609 16,803 44 806 266.65%
MNoncurrent assets 1,589 71,714 {70,125) -7 .78%
Total Assets 63,198 88,517 (25,319) -28.60%
Current Liabilities P219,887 193,072 26,815 13.89%
Noncurrent Liability 9,557 9,557 . 0.00%
P229. 444 202,629 26,815 13.23%
Stockholders' Equity P (166,246) (114,112} {52,134) 45.69%
Total Liabilities and St_uoc Ivghmohlders’ Equity P63,198 88,517 (25,319) -28.60%

Summary of Income Statement for the nine months and three months period ended September 30,
2018 and September 30, 2017.

For nine months ending Sept. 30  For three months ending Sept. 30
2018 2017 2018 2017
{P'000) (P o00) (®'000) (#1000}
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Revenues 1,129 386 ' 528 240

Expenses 53,263 19,658 49,833 6,271
Loss before tax N (52,134) (19,272} (49,305) (6,031}
Provision for income tax - '

Total comprehensive loss (52,134) (19,272) (49,305} (6,031)

Summary of Statements of Cash Flows for nine months and three months period ended September
30, 2018 and September 30, 2017.

For nine months ending For three months ending
September 30 September 30,
2018 2017 2018 2017
(P’000) (P'000) (P’000) (P'000)
Cash provided (used) in operating (29,068) 8,598 (48,044) 10,475
activities
Cash used in investing activities 69,876 (1,577) 69,876 {1,577)
1,720 2,702 20,696 824
Cash at beginning -
i 42,528 9,723 42,528 9,713

Cash at end of the quarter

Item 2. Management’s Discussion and Analysis of Financia! Condition and Results of Operation

The company has not been actively operating other than the activities connected with the transfer
of the Company’s remaining assets to the Philippine Depositary Insurance Corporation (PDIC) and the
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP). The Company also continues to pursue the cleanup of its books
and the settlement of its remaining obligations to pave the way for possible additional capital infusion
from third party investors.

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared with nine months ended September 30, 2017

The results of operation for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and September 30, 2017 were
net loss of P52.13 million and ®19.27 million, respectively or equivalent to #32.86 million or 171%
increase.

Significant changes in the income accounts for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 versus the
same period last year are as follows:

= |nterest income decreased by P0.004 million or equivalent to 48% due to lower bank balance
for this period,

+ Recovery of asset previously written off is £0.25 million this period compared to P0.17 million
last year or an increase of P .08 million or 48% equivalent.

= Rental income increased by P0.67 this period or equivalent to 319%.
= Mo management fee is recognized for this year.

= Professional fee increased by P0.73 million or equivalent to 60%. The increase pertains to
payment of legal fees.

= Other Services increased by P0.63 million or 109% for payment of services for asset
management, transfer and registration. .
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Rent expense for the period is 2.62 million as compared to P0.04 million last year, increased
by 2.6 million. The increase is mainly due to payment of arrears on associations dues to
Landco Business Park as well as penalties from years 2011 to September 2018 concerning the
Legaspi Property.

Taxes and licenses increased by P1.07 million or equivalent to 678% mainly due to payment
of Real Property Taxes of the Legazpi for the 1st to 3rd Quarter of 2018.

Depreciation increased by P0.24 million due to the depreciation of a new purchased
transportation equipment.

Other expenses increased by P20.95 million mainly due to the current year payment of the
compromise settlement to Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas involving a litigation.

The Company sold its Legaspi Property in favor of Pacific Mall Corporation for
$51,823,306.50. While the sale resulted to loss of P24.9 million representing the difference
between the selling price and the fair market value of the Legaspi property as recognized in
the books as well as taxes paid by the company in view of the sale. The Company was able
to settle the accumulating liabilities due on the said property. In addition, the Company was
able to generate cash to defray the expenses for the clean-up activity and to venture into
other investments.

Three months ended September 30, 2018 compared with three months ended September 30,

2017

The results of operation for the three months ended September 30, 2018 and September, 2017 were
net loss of P49.31 million and P6.03 million, respectively or equivalent to 717% increased

Significant changes in the income accounts for the three months ended September 30, 2018 versus
the same period last year are as follows:

Recovery of asset previously written off is 0.05 million this period or equivalent to 31%.
Rental income of P0.31 million is recognized this period compared to P0.07 million last year

Professional fees increased by P0.08 million or equivalent to 28%. Higher payment on audit
and legal fees this year.

Taxes and licenses increased by P0.84 million mainly due to payment to BIR of real estate
taxes.

Outside services increased by P 0.03 million or equivalent to 71% compared to last years
EXPENSE.

Rent expense of P 2.55 million is recognized this period due to increase in association dues.

Other expenses increase by P20.95 million mainly due to the payment of compromise fee to
BSP.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

The significant changes in the Statement of Financial Position accounts during the nine months ended
September 30, 2018 versus the December 31, 2017 level are as follows:

Total assets stood at £63.19 million which is #25.32 million or 28.60% lower than the December 31,
2017 level. Significant changes were mainly due to the following:
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« (ash increased significantly from ®1.72 million as of December 31, 2017 to
P45.53 million as of September 30, 2018 was brought mainly by the proceeds of sale of the
investment property.

The increase in receivable of P0.52 million or equivalent to 21.28% pertains to rental receivables.
Increase in Other current asset of P4.30 million was brought by payment of a prepaid insurance
and a creditable withholding tax of ®3.42 million representing a 6% tax withheld by Pacific Mall
Corporation.

+ Decrease in Non-Current assets of 70,13 million or equivalent to 97.78% resulted from the sale
of investment property in Legazpi City, Albay amounting to P69.88 million.

= The company incurred a net loss of 52.13 million as of September 30, 2018 which resulted to
decrease in the total stockholder's equity.

= The increase in Due to Related party accounts represents a fund amounting to P20 million
transferred by RYM Business Management Corporation for the payment of BSP Compromise
Settlement.

= The significant change in accrued expenses during this interim period is due to the VAT payable
for the third quarter amounting to ®6.84 million.

» The company has capital deficiency of P166.25 million and P114.11 million as of September 30,
2018 and December 31, 2017 respectively. An increased in capital deficiency of £52.13 million
or equivalent to 45.69% pertains to net loss for the period.

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

The net cash provided in operating activities amounted to P42.53 million for the nine months ended
September 30, 2018 as compared to the same period last vyear amounted to
P9.72 million. The increase in cash from operation is the net result of the following:

Met loss generated during the nine months period.
Increase in due to related parties

Froceeds from sale of investment property.
Collection of advances to affiliates.

Increase in Receivables

Increase in other assets

The net effect of the foregoing operating activities, is an increase of ® 32.80 million and a balance
of P42.53 million in cash as of September 30, 2018 as compared to P9.72 million as of September
30, 2017.

Horizontal and Vertical Analysis:

Unaudited Audited Increase{decrease)

. September 30, 2018 20017 Amount  Percentage
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash on hand and in banks P 42,527,919 1,720,231 P 40,807 688  2372.22%
Receivable 2,976,205 2,453,932 522,272 21.28%
Due from Related Parties 11,606,938 12,420,000 {813,062) -6.55%
Other current assets 4,498,419 208,359 4,290,061 2058.98%

Total Current Assets 61,609,481 16,802,522 44,806,958 266,674
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Noncurrent Assets

Investment Property P69,876,000 P (69,876,000) =100.00%
Available-for-sale investment £300,000 300,000 5 0.00%
Equipment {Net) 1,288,770 1,538,190 (249,420) -16.22%
Total Noncurrent Assets #1,588,770 P71,714,190 P (70,125,420) -97.78%
P 63,198,251 PBB,516,712 {25,318,462) -28.60%
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other
current liabilities P 199,886,918 193,071,645 6,815,273 3.53%
Due to Related Parties 20,000,000 20,000,000 100.00%
Moncurrent Liabilities
Deferred tax liability 9,956,800 9,556,800 - 0.00%
229,443,718 P202,628,445 26,815,273 13.23%
Equity
Preferred Capital stock B14,366,260 P14,366,260 = 0.00%
Common Capital stock 700,298,616 700,298,616 - 0.00%
Additional paid-in capital 2,114,921,869 (2,114,921,869) =100.00%
Met unrealized gain on AFSI 100,000 100,000 - 0.00%
Deficit (881,010,344) (2,943,798,478) 2,062,788,134 -70.07%
Total Equity P (166,245,468) P (114,111,733} {52,133,735) 45.69%
P 63,198,251 88,516,712 {25,318,462) -28.60%

Corporate Governance

The Company adopted a manual on corporate governance, which details the standards by which it
conducts sound corporate governance consistent with relevant laws and regulations.

Ultimate responsibility for the Company’s adherence to its manual rests with its Board of Directors,
and through three committees that are to be charged with oversight functions on specific areas of
the Company's activities. The Audit Committee is charged with internal audit oversight over all of
the Company's transactions. The Nomination Committee is charged with ensuring that those admitted
as members of the Company's Board of Directors are qualified, as well as ensuring fair representation
of independent directors in the Company’s Board of Directors. Finally, the Compensation and
Remuneration Committee is tasked to ensure that fair compensation practices are adhered
throughout the organization,

In view however, of its current condition, the Company is not actively conducting business. Despite
said absence of actual business operations, the Company is currently undergoing internal
reorganization and in the processing of evaluating its compliance with its reporting obligations as a
public company. As such, it is not in a position to fully comply with the provisions of the manual on
corporate governance. There is no regular meetings conducted by the Committees. There is also no
Compensation Committee, in view of the fact that the Company’s directors and officers currently do
not receive compensation for serving as such. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Company continues
to endeavor towards internally reorganizing and evaluating its compliances to the rules applicable to
it as a public company. Despite the status of the business operations of the Company, it has submitted
to the Securities and Exchange Commission current reports (SEC Form 17-C) and quarterly (SEC Form
17-Q} and annual (SEC Form 17-A) reports to update the investing public of its financial and
operational condition,
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Market Information

The closing market price of the Company’s common stock in the Philippine Stock Exchange on 30
September 2018 is PhP 1.19.

The high and low prices for each quarter of 2016, 2017 and 2018 are provided below:

it ot

Q1 {(2016) 0.90 1.47

Q2 (2016) 1.25 1.84
Q3 (2016) 1.16 1.35
Q4 {2016) 1.13 1.54
Q1 (2017) 1.01 1,26
Q2 (2017) 0.76 1.17
Q3 (2017) 0.92 1.65
Q4 (2017) 1.02 1.98
Q1 (2018) 1.08 1.68
Q2 (2018) 1.09 1.62
Q3 (2018) 1.15 1.68

The common shares of the Company is held by 1,598 shareholders of common shares and 267 shareholders
of preferred shares. The list of the top 20 stockholders of the Company as of 30 September 2018 is
attached herewith,

Other than the conversion of preferred shares to common shares as stated in page 13, the Company has

no recent sales of unregistered or exempt securities or recent issuance of securities constituting an
exempt transaction.
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UPON THE WRITTEN REQUEST OF THE STOCKHOLDER(S), THE CORPORATION UNDERTAKES TO FURNISH
SAID STOCKHOLDER(S) WITH A COPY OF SEC FORM 17-A, FREE OF CHARGE, EXCEPT FOR THE EXHIBIT
ATTACHED THERETG, WHICH SHALL BE CHARGED AT A COST. ANY WRITTEN REQUEST FOR A COPY OF
SEC FORM 17-A SHALL BE ADDRESSED TO Atty. Diane Madelyn C. Ching at c/o Marcventures, 4™ Floor
Citibank Center Bldg., Paseo de Roxas, Makati City

SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the information set
forth in this report is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the City of Makati on the 29
day of Movermber 2017.

PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC,
By:

el

Christopher Sam Salvadar
Asst. Corporate Secretary
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stock Transfer service Inc.

PRIME MEDTA HOLDIMNGS, INC.

List of Top 20 stockholders
As af 0%/30/2018

Rank  Name Holdings Rank
1 PCD NOMINEE CORPORATION (FILTPINGY T 670,985,577 95.81%

¢ FIRST PRODUCERS HOLDINGS CORP, FAD RAY BURTON DEVELOPMENT CORFORATION B,175,789 (0, 88%
3 FIRST PRODUCERS HOLDINGS CORF. FAQ PRODUCERS PROPERTIES INC. 4,903,852 00.70%
4 RAY BURTON DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 3,213,293 00.46%
5  PRODUCERS PROPERTIES, INC. 3,013,701 00.43%
f MERCANTILE INVESTMENT COMPANY, INC, 1,585,98% 00.23%
7 DEL ROSARIO,ALBERT,ITF AMTHONY SALTM 1,289,279 00,18%
8 LIM, ERNESTO A. S8O,000 00,13%
9 PCO NOMINEE CORPORATION (FOREIGN) 376,836 00,13%
10 YAM, LUCTO W., &/0R CLARA YAN BOC, QGO0 00, 09%
11  WARGAS, JOEL B. 534,876 00,D8%
12 50, MERLENE, &/0R SO PENG KEE 239,000 00,03%
13 UY, MARIA T. 211,200 0Q0.03%
14 G0, IR, ,I0SE YU 210,000 00.03%
15 Go, JovY LIM 150,000 00.02%
1m QUE LU KIONG 150,000  O0,02%
17 ABAD,RUFTNO H. 142,011 00.02%
1B TAM, LUCTAMNO H. 139,600 0D.02%
19 MAVALTA, LECNARDO 132,294 (00.02%
20 DIZCN, LAMBERTC €., &/0R FRLINDA V. DTFON 127,860 00 02%
Total Top 20 sharcholders @ -|||wwm”mmm”HmM |mmwwmw

Total outstanding shares 700,298,614




stock Transfer Service Inc. Page Mo. 1
PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC [PREFERRED)
List of Top 20 Stockholders
As of 09/30,/2018

Rank  Name Holdings Rank
"1 meRTINEZ, FomenTINO L. T 907,340 06.32%
P TORRES, CARLOS 500,000 O05.57%
3 MDI EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN 610,450 04.25%
4  METROLABE EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAN 545,040 03.79%
5  LLEREZA, HELEMA 529,810 03.69%
& NG, VIRGINIA U. 527,600 03.67%
7 HPPI EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT PLAM 500,000 03.48%
8 E. CHuA CHIACO SEC., INC. 449 640 03.13%
9 CITISECURITIES, INC. 403,000 02.81%
10 WEALTH SECURITIES INC. 402,000 02.80%
11  PMB SECURITIES, INC. 300,280 02.00%
12 J0HAN, TATOD A. 300,000 02.09%
13  BANCD DE ORD TRUST BANKING GROUP FAD MIRIAM COLLEGE FOUNDATION INC. EMPLOYEES 280,000 01.95%
14  SAMSON, ANTONID R. 250,000 01.74%
15 SEANGIO, SEGUNDO 244 000 0L, 70%
16 DIVERSIFIED SEC., INC. 218,080 01.52%
17 ALIPIO, ANTONIOD 218,000 0O1.52%
18 COMETA, TERESITA C. 210,000 01.46%
19  EASTERW SECURITIES DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION 196,340 01.37%
20  UMIPIG JR., JUAN B. 180,000 01.25%
Total Top 20 Shareholders : w”mmm”wmm 56.18%
Total Outstanding Shares wmuwmmummm
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

L Johuny Y. Arucgo, Jr., Iilipino, of legal age and a resident of No. 167 Libra Street,
Cinco Hermanos Subdivision, Marikina City, after having been duly sworn to in accordance
with law, do hereby declare that:

1. Tamanominee for Independent Director of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC. for its
board meeting on 11 December 2017,

2. 1 am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including
Government Owned and Controlled Carporations});

COMPANY/ORGANIZATION . | POSITION/RELATIONSHIP | PERIOD OF SERVICE.
Aruecgo Bite and Associates | Partner | Since 2001
Lorenzana Food Corporation Corporate Secrelary and/or Since 201 2
- Legal Consultant
AV, Ocampo-ATR Kimeng Corporate Secretary and/ or Since 2011
Insurance Broker, Inc. | Legal Counsel
Hast Offices Really and Legal Counsel Since 2012
Management Ca., Tne,
National Steel Corporation Legal Consultant Since 2006 ]
PET Plans, Inc, Assistant Rehabilitation Since 2006
Receiver
Advenl Capital and Finance ' Assistant Liquidator Sinee 2001
Carporation
Bacnotan Sleel Industries, [ne, Assistant Liquidator | Since 2003
Fast Asia (AEA) Capital Assistant Liquidatar Since 2009
Corporation
Reynolds Philippines Corporation Assistant Liquidator Since 2005

3. 1 possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of PRIME MEDIA HOLIINGS, INC., as provided for in
Section 38 of the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations
and other SEC issuances.

4. Other than as disclosed in Item 2 abave, I am nol in any way related lo any
director/officer/substantial shareholder of PRIME MEDILA FOT DINGS, INC. and its
subsidiaries and affiliates,

3. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal ar
administrative investigation or proceeding,



6. Lshall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibililies as
independent director under the Securities Repgulation Code and its
Implementing Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and
other SEC issuances.

=1

I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC. of
any changes in the abovementioned information within five (5) days from its

OCCUITeENCe,
HOV 29 gpev MAKATICIFY
Done this . o d_ﬂjr Gf_ L at -
Jﬁqnc;m
Affiant
NOV 29 2017

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of
e o P“Mm‘"‘?m affiant personally appeared before me and
exhibited to me his Driver's License No. NO1-87-048565 expiring on 03 February
2019.
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CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

I, Francisco L. Layug, III, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of 12 F. Bernabe St.,
Merville Park Subdivision, Paranaque City, after having been duly sworn to in accordance
with law do hereby declare that:

1. Tam a nominee for Independent Director of Prime Media Holdings, Inc, for its board
meeting on 21 December 2017,

2. I am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including
Government Owned and Controlled Corporations);

i

| .COMPANY/ORGANIZATION ' - | POSITION/RELATIONSHIP. PERIOD OF SERVICE .-
' Rotary Club of Pasay President-Elect 2017-2018
University of the Philippines | President 2010-2011
Electronics and Electrical
Engineering Alumni Association,
Inc. (UPEEEAAT)
Alay-Lakad Foundation Vice President 2009-2010

3. I possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of Prime Media Holdings, Inc., as provided for in Section 38 of
the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and other
SEC issuances.

4. Other than as disclosed in Item 2 above, I am not in any way related to any
director/officer/substantial shareholder of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. and its
subsidiaries and affiliates.

5. To the best of my knowledge, I am not the subject of any pending criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding,

6. 1shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
independent director under the Securities Regulation Code and its
Implementing Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and
other SHC issuances.

7. I shall inform the Corporate Secretary of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. of any
changes in the abovementioned information within five (5) days from its
occurrence.
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SECRETARY’S CERTIFICATE

I, CHRISTOPHER SAM §. SALVADOR, of legal age, Filipino and with office address ar
28" Floor Pacific Star Buil ding Makati Ave cor. Sen. Gil Puvat Ave, Malay € arty 1227, Philippines,
after having been duly sworn in accordance with law, hereby depose and state that:

L I'am the duly elected and qualified Assistant Corporate Secretary of PRIME
MEDIA ITOLDINGS INC, (the “Corporation™, a corperanon duly oreanized and existinng under
the laws of the Philippines, with principal office at 16™ Floor Cidbank T ower, 8741 Paseo de
Rosas, Makat City,

2 I hereby certify that none of the Corporation’s Regular Directors, Independent

Dircerors and Officers are appolnted or employed in any government agency,

IN WITNESS WI TEREOF, this Cerdficare was sipned and issucd this day of
145 ) e:F 2_5?818 at Makati Cigy, Philippines.

CHRISTOPHER SAM &, SALVADOR

Aiststant Corporate Secretary

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN o before me this _ dav of 15 ”! _T 21‘ 1? at
Makati City . Philippines, affiant exhibited his ) _ wahd andl
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SEC FORM 17-A |

\
ANNUAL REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE
AND SECTION 141 OF THE CORPORATION CODE OF THE PHILIPPINES

1. Forihe fiscai year ended December 31, 2017

2. SEC ldentification Number 22401
3. BIR Tax ldentification Mo, 000-491-007

4. Exact name of issuer as specified in its charler PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC. {Formerly First
e-Bank Corporation)

5. Manita 5. I {SEC Use Only)

Province. Country or other jurisdiction of Industry Classification Code:
incorporation or organization

7. 168" Floor Citibank Tower, 8741 Paseo de Roxas, Makati City 1227
Address of principal office Postal Code

4, _ (632) 831-4479
Issuer's telephone number, including area code

9. Not applicable
Former name, former address, and former fiscal year, if changed since last repor.

10, Securities registered pursuant 1o Seclions 8 and 12 of e SHC, or Sec. 4 and § of lhe RSA

[ Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock Outstanding
o - o and Amount of Debt Outstanding
Preferred stock, PHP 1.00 par value 14,366,260
Common Stock, Php 1.00 par value 700,298,616

11. Are any or all of these securities listed on a Stock Exchange?

Yes [X] Mo ]

Fhilippine Slock Exchange
12. Check whether the issuer;

(a) has filed all reports required to be filed by Section 17 of the SRC and SRC Rule 17.1
thereunder or Section 11 of the RSA and RSA Rule 11 (a)-1 thereunder, and Sections 26 and 141 of

The Corporation Code of the Philippines during the preceding twelve (12) months (or for such shorter
period that the registrant was required to file such reports);

¥es [X] Mo ]
(b} Has been subject 1o such filing requirements for the past ninety (90) days.
Yes [X] Mol ]

13. The aggregate market value of the voling stock held by non-affiliates is 144,492,645 computed on
the basis of 124,562,625 representing 17.79% of the autstanding common shares at the closing
price as of April 13, 2018 of Pesos 1.16 per share.
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PART | - BUSINESS AND GENERAL INFORMATION
(A} Description of Business
ltem 1. Business Development

Prime Media Holdings, Inc. (PRIM} was originally incorporated on February 6, 1963 as
Private  Development Corporation of the Philippines and then changed to PDCP
Development Bank, Inc. that same year. On June B, 2000, the Company changed its name
to First e-Bank Corporation and then eventually shifted to its curent name on October 20,
2003,

In 2002, Banco de Oro Unibank, In¢, assumed the servicing of PRIM's deposit liabilities and
other banking functions. On December & 2002, the Board of PRIM approved the
amendment of its articles of incorporation to change to primary purpose from a development
bank to a holding company, which would hold investments in the media industry,

On January 26, 2013, the Board of Diractors (BOD) approved the amendment in its articles
of incorporation (AOI) extending the comporate life of PRIM by another 50 years up to
February 6, 2063, The Stockholders of the Company approved and ratified the amendment
in a special stockholders' meeting on February 4, 2013, On February 5, 2013, the Company
filed the amended AQI with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) and SEC
approval was obtained last March 4, 2013,

On March 2. 2015, the SEC approved the change of principa! office address from 3 San
Antonio Street, Barrio Kapitolyo, Pasig City to 16th Floor Citibank Tower, 8741 Paseo de
Roxas, Makati City.

In view of the very minimal operations, the Company gradually retired all its employees by
2010 and engaged consultants/service providers to service its requirements

Item 2. Properties

Practically all the properties of the Company while it was still a bank consisting of bank
premises (land, buildings and leasehold rights) and real estate acquired through dacion and
foreclosure were conveyed fo BDO/PDIC.  There are certain properties which remains as
investment properties which are primarily to finance the operating expenses of the
Company. Please refer to Note 7 of the 2016 Audited Financial Statements (AFS).

Item 3. Legal Proceedings

Considering the Company's previous operation, the Company was named defendant in
various legal actions. One of the cases which may affect the Company is the case of
Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas vs. Prime Media Holdings, Inc, docketed Civii Case No
13130893 and pending before Branch 25, Regional Trial Court, City of Manila. The
summary of the case is provided below.

Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP) filed an action for Collection of a Sum of Money in the
amount of ®42 487 770.23 representing alleged rental arrears under the (i) Contract of
Lease with Option to Purchase (“Contrac!’) between the BSP and PDCP Developmiant
Bank (FDCF Bank, which changes its name to First E-Bank Corporation or First E-Bank,
now. Prime Medial Holdings. Inc. or PMHI) dated 14 January 2001; (i) Agreement to Extend
the Buyback Period of the Repurchased Properties (“Aareement of 2001") dated 30 July
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2001 between the BSP and First E-Bank; and (i) Renewal of Contract of Lease with
Option to Purchase (“*Agreement of 2002"), notarized on 8 January 2002.

In its Answer, PMHI interposed a defense that the Confracts on which the Complaint is
based, are all void and inexistent violative of the General Banking Act, principle of mutuality
of contracts as well as Aricles 19, 20 and 21 of the Civil Code, and principle on unjust
enrichment under Article 22 of the same Code. As counterclaim, PMHI is claiming the
amount of One Hundred Forty Five Million Pesos (F145,000,000,00) which was unilaterally
forfeited by BSP. '

The parties have submitted their formal offer of evidence.
Please see Note 14 of the attached 2016 AFS,
ltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders

During the Annual Shareholders’ Meeting held last 21 December 2017, the following were
submitted for approval of the shareholders:

Call to order

Centification of Quorum

Approval of Minutes of the previous meeating

Approval of Management Report and Audited Financial Statements
Ratification of Management's Act

Election of Directors

Appointment of External Auditor

Other matlers

Adjourment

LN Ld 1

PART Il - OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL INFORMATION
Item 5. Market for Issuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters
{1} Warket information
The total number of outstanding shares of record as of December 31, 2016 is
700,298,616 of which 663,713,458 is actively being traded in the Philippine Stock

Exchange. The high and low sales prices in pesos for each quarter within the last
three fiscal years 2014 to 2016 are given below:

Year Quarter High i Low
2015 | 1+ | 182 1.30
s o e . .-
_________ 3 | 140 | 108
s 4" I 1
12016 | AT Oy [ L 0.80
e 1.84 125
cacqseibtone o ML o o B IR 1.13
2017 | T I T
SR AN EO I A
) il e | pe2
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Common Shareholders

Quar‘ter Hi-g!n Low
R

{2} Holders of Securities

The number of common shareholders on record as of December 21, 2017 Is
1.603.The list of the top twenty common shareholders as of December B‘l 2017
is provided below:

Name of Stockholders ' No. of shares | %age of
1'— o Ownership
(1 E@Hgmmee Corpmrat:on [Flllplnu} 670,538,553 85.V5
2 First Producers Holdings, Corp. £,175,780 0.88

FAO Ray Burton Dev't Corporation _ i
3 | First Producers Holdings, Corp. | 4,903 852 0.70
_ | FAD Producers Properties, Inc, - '
| 4 | Ray Burton Development 3,213,203 0.46
Corporation
' 5 | Producers I"-‘mperhea Inc. 3,013,701 - 043
51 Mercantile Investment Cnmpany 1,665,989 023
Inc, i
7 | PCD Nominee Corporation 1,301,836 | 0.19
{Foreign) SN "
8 | Albert Del Rosario ITF Anthony 1,289,279 | 0.18
| Salim .
9 | Emeam B le 880,000 0.13 |
10 | Lucio W. Yan &mrﬁlard Yan 600,000 0.09 |
11_| Joel B. Vargas _ 534876 0.08]
12 | Merlene So &/or So Peng Kee 239,000 0.03
13 | Maria T. Uy - 1 211,200 0.03
14 | Jose Yu Go, Jr. - 210,000 | 0.03 |
15 | Jovy Lim Go ' ) 150.000 0.02 |
16 | Qeu Lu Kiong - 150,000 0.02
17_| Rufino H, Abad 142011 0.02
18 | Luciano H. Tan Tl 0.02
19 | Leonardo Navalta o 132,294 0.02 |
20 | Lamberto C. Dizon &for Erlinda V. | 127,860 0.02
Dizon | N




Freferred Shareholders

The number of preferred shareholders of record as of December 31, 2017 was 267.
Preferred shares outstanding as of December 31, 2017 were 14,366.260. The top
twenty shareholders are as follows:

| No. | Name of Stockholders No.of | %age of
S shares | ownership |
1| Florentino L. Martinez 907,340 6.32%
2 TCarlos Torres 800,000 | 5 67%
3 MDI Emplovees Retirement Plan . 610.450 dﬁv
4 . Metrolab Employees Retirement 545, 04[) I 3.79%
_ : Plan W—
5| Helens Llereza 529810 4 69%
| HPFI Employees Retirament Plan 500,000 | 1.03¢
Fi E. Chua Chiace Sec.. Inc. | 448 640 | 1’*% |
8 | Citi Securities Inc. - __?_f____'_x__i_i;i'_?}:r;ij:_ij_j_'_l_'___'_ 2. 51%__'
o Weallh Securities, Inc. 1 402.000 2 80%
10 | Virginia U_ Ng o | 344470 |  2.40%
11 | | PNB Securities Inc. | 300280 |  2.09%
12 | Tato A, Johan | 300,000 2.09%
13 | BDO Trust Banking Group =
Fao Miriam College Foundation Inc.
| Employees 280,000 |  1.95%
14| Antonio R. Samson I 25& 000 1.74%
15 | Segundo Seangic | 244 GDD_._ﬂ—'
|16 | Diversified Sec,, Inc. b 218080 | 1.52%
17 | Antonio aﬂ\hpm R 218 000 | 1 52%
|18 | Teresita Cometa - 210,000 1.468%
19 | Eastern Securities | Devt Corp 196,340 1.37% |
120 |VirginiaU Ng 183130 | 127%

(3} Dividends
There were no dividends declared
{4) Recent Sales of Unregistered or exempt Securities

On April 6, 2013, the BOD approved the convession of advances from Neo Oracle
Holdings, Inc. (NOHI) and Metro Tagaytay Land Co. Inc (MTLCI) amaunting to
#119.7 million and P480.8 million, respectively into 47 861,410 commeon shares and
182,323,360 common shares respectively, at stipulated canversion price of P2 .50
per common share

On the same date, the BOD entered into a subscription agreement with NOH| and
MTLCI for 179.0 million or 71.6 million common shares with an issue price of #2.50
per share. The Company received the minimum subscription price amounting to
£70.0 million which was used by the Company to pay its loan with BDCO. During May
and June 2014, NOH| and MTLCI fully paid ther subscriptions with the payment of
the B109 million balance,

0



As of December 31, 2014, the Company issued 311,784,770 shares to NOHI and
MTLCI as a result of the conversion of advances and subscription agreement. The
isting of the said shares was approved by the PSE on December 15, 2014.

ltern 6. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.

The Company has not been actively operating since its primary purpose was changed from
a development bank to a holding company in December 2002 other than the continuing
activities described in Part | A (1), There are no known trends. events or material
commitments that are expected to have a material favorable or unfavorabie impact on the
financial condition or on income from continuing operations. The Company also signed
subscription agreements with its major stockholders for a total proceads of P179 million, of
which #70 million was received in April 2012 and the balance of £109 million was collectad
in May and June 2014, This further bring down the capital deficit and will be the major
source of funding for the expenses related to the transfer of the remaining assets to PDIC
and BSP. Aside from the transfer of assets to PDIC and BSF, the Company continues to
pursue the clean-up of its books and the sattlement of its remaining obligations to pave the
way for possible additional capital infusion from third party investors.

The Company is still exploring for a8 new business. Its current activities comprise mainly of
transfering asset related to its development bank operation to BDO & PDIC. Thus, the
ccmpany has continued to incur losses resulting to a capital deficiency of #114.11 million
and P85.74 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The Stockholders,
howaver, have continued to provide the necessary financial support to sustain company
operations. The stockholders converied their preferred stock of P48 6 million into common
stock in 2016 and converted their advances of #600.5 million to additional capital in 2014
and infused capital aggregate £119.0 million in 2014 and 2013 to reduce capital deficiency.

The Company is considering the implementation of 2 Quasi reorganization to reduce capital
deficiency.

Explanations for the material changes in the Company's accounts between 2017 and
2016 are as follows:

Statement of Financial Position

Audited Increase{Decrease)
2017 2016 Amount %o
S (n PhP Milkons) _
Assets PBB.68B P11646 (27.78) (2385
}
Liabilities 202.68 20220 0.48 6.27
Stockholders’ Equity (114.00  (85.74) (28.26) 3296
)

The total Assels of the Company decreased by F27.78 Million or equivalent to 23 85% from
P116.43 Million in 2016 to PEB.6B Million in 2017, The significant changes were mainly due
to the following:



Cash decreased significantly from ®2.70 million as of December 31, 2016 to
P1.72 million as of December 31, 2017, a decrease of PD.97 million or equivalent to
36.06% pertains mainly to the payment of administrative expenses.

Receivable decreased by P2.07 million or equivalent to 4580% due to set up of
allowance for doubtful accounts on cash advances

Other current assets decreased due to reversal of interest receivable amounting to
F0.69 million or equivalent to 74.07%.

Due from Parent Company decreased significantly by P27.58 million or equivalent to
68.95% pertains to the collection on advances made to RYM Business Management
Corporation.

Equipment increased pertains to purchase of Toyota Hilux amounting to #1.58 million.

Liabilties increased by P0.48 million or equivalent to 6.27% mainly due to increase in
deferred tax liability.

The company incurred a net loss of £28.32 million in 2017 which resulted to decrease in
the total stockholder's equity

Results of Operations

In mitlion
Audited Increase(Decrease)
2017 2018 Amount %
Income 236 297 (0.61) (20.54)
Expenses 3012 28.64 1.48 2.17

Cperating results reflected s net loss of P28 22 million in 2017, #2.08 million or equivalent
to 7.92% higher as compared to 2016 reporled net loss of P26.26 million. The significant
changes were mainly due to the fallowing;

Recovery of accounts written-off decreased by P0 58 million or 77 33% due to lower
celiected this vear,

Provision for impairment loss increased by £2.13 million due to set up of allowance for
doubtful accounts on cash advances made to the previously engaged for processing the
transfer and registrations

Professional fees decreased by £1.11 million or equivalent to 38 14% due to lower legal
feas in 2017,

Outside services increased from P1.09 million in 2016 to B132 million in 2017,
F0.23 million or equivalent to 21.10% primarily due 1o engagement of individual for court
appearance.

Taxes and licenses decreased from B0.65 million in 2016 to ®0.46 milion in 2017,
29.23% in due to payment of Documentary stamp tax an 2016,



Rent decreased by P0.08 million or equivalent to 29.63% due lower association dues in
2017.

Salaries and allowance decreased by 0,13 million or equivalent to 100.00% due to paid
allowance on contractual employees in 2016 and none in 2017

Depreciation expense increased by PO 10 million for the transportation equipment.

Other expenses increased by P0.55 million due to recognize of other miscellaneous
expense from interest receivable.

Explanations for the material changes in the Company’s accounts between 2016 and
2015 are as follows:

Statement of Financial Position

The total Assets of the Company decreased by P30 44 Milion or equivalent to 20.99% from
F145.00 Million in 2015 to P114.56 Million in 2016 The significant changes were mainly due
to the following:

Cash decreased significantly from P73.22 million as of December 31. 2015 to
B270 million as of December 31, 2016, a decrease of P70.52 million or eauivalent to
96.31% pertains mainly to the payment of administrative expenses and advances made
to RYM Business Management Corporation. The advances were subsequently collected
in 2017.

Due from Parent Company increased significantly by P40.00 million or equivalent to
100.00% pertains to the advances made to RYM Business Management Corporation,

The company incurred a net loss of #27 61 million in 2016 which resulted to decrease in
the total stockholder's equity.

Results of Operations

Operating results reflected 2 net loss of B27.60 million in 2016, P3.10 million or equivalent
to 10.10% lower as compared to 2015 reported net loss of P30.70 million. The significant
changes were mainly due to the following:

Outside services decreased from B2.09milion in 2015 to P1.09 milion in 2018,
P1.00 million or equivalent to 47.85% decrease primarily due to the payment of
appraisal fee for the appraisal on the properties of the Company in 2015,

Taxes and licenses decreased from P1 57 million in 2015 to P0.65 million in 2016,
57 88% in due to payment of real property tax

Rent decreased by P0.98 million or equivalent to 78.40% due to termination of rental
contract for office space used in 2015

Other expenses decreased by P1.15 million due to last year's loss on litigation on the
“China Banking Corporation vs. Plasko Trading Inc. and PDCP Development Bank (now
Frime Media Holdings. Inc.)", under Cwil Case No 95-72847, RTC Manila, Branch 17,



Explanations for the material changes in the Company’s accounts between 2015 and
2014 are as follows:

Statement of Financial Position

The foial Assets of the Company decreased by P36.89 Million or equivalent to 24.00% from
153 67 Million in 2014 to P116.78 Million in 2015, The significant changes were mainly due
to the following:

+ Cash decreased significantly from P110.05 million as of December 31, 2014 to #73.22
million as of December 31, 2015, a decrease of P36.83 million or equivalent to 33 468%
periains mainly to payment of liabilities and administrative EXDETNSES,

« Receivables decreased from P4.65 million as of December 31, 2014 to P4.2E million as
of December 21, 2015, a decrease of P0.27 million or eguivalent to 5.70% mainly due to
the collection of the subleased property rent.

* The company incurred a net loss of P30.70 million in 2015 which resulted to decrease in
the total stockhoider's equity by ®30.60 million,

Results of Operations

Operating results reflected a net loss of P30.70 million in 2015, P29.43 million or equivalent
to 2,326 61% higher as compared to 2014 reported net loss of £1.27 million. The significant
changes were mainly due to the following

= The company entered into management agreement with RYM Business Management
Carporation for a Management services amounting to P23.1 million,

« Professional fee increased from #0.46 million to #2.50 million in 2015 or equivalent to
443.48% due to monthly legal fees paid for the cases handled.

* QOutside services increased from P1.61million in 2014 to 2.09 million in 2015, PO 47
millian or equivalent to 29,39% decrease primarily due to payment of appraisal fee for
the appraisal on the properties of the Company amounting to #1.15 mitiion.

+ Taxes and licenses increased from P1.36 million in 2014 to #1.57 million in 2015,
14.86% in due to payment of real property tax.

» Rent increased by PO.62 million or equivalent 1o 98.5% due to payment of office rental,
storage and warehouse charges.

« Other expenses increased by P0.71 milion due to loss on litigation on the "China
Banking Corporation vs. Plasko Trading Inc. and PDCP Development Bank {now Prime
Media Holdings, Inc.)”, under Civil Case No 9572847, RTC Manila, Eranch 17.

Performance Indicators

Key Performance Indicators (KPI's)

Comparative figures of the key performance indicators (KPI) for the fiscal years ended
December 31, 2017 and December 31 2016-

__2017 2018

Loss - ' (P27,744,452) (P25.680,115)
Current assets 16,802 522 48,027 135

1



N 2017 2016
Total azsets BB,676,712 116,459 5334
Current liabilities 193,071,645 193,160,882
Total liabilities 202 676,445 201,195 382
Stockholders” Equity {113,999,733) {B5,736,047)
No. of common shares outstanding 700,298,616 700,298 616

. 2017 2016

Current ratio 0.09 0.25
Book value per share * (0.16) (0.12}
Debi rafio * (1.78) (2.36)
Profit per share 4 {0.04) (0.04)
Return on assets © (0.27) (0.44)

Note:

Current assets / current liabilities

Stockholder’s Equity / Total outstanding number of shares
Total Liabilities / Stocknholder's Equity

Net Income ( Loss ) / Total outstanding number of shares
Net income { average total assets

L R —

ltem 7. Financial Statements

The 2016 Audited Financial Statements and schedules are filed as part of
Form 17-A.

item B. Information on Independent Accountant and other Related Matters
External Audit Fees and Services

' Yeg_r_&gied Df—:cember 31
2017 2016

Audit Fees P330,000 £330,000
Audit Fees, Renresents professional fees of the external auditer for the audt services
rendered on Company's Annual Financial Statements for the year 2017 and 2016

Audit services provided to the Company by extemnal auditor have been pre-approved by the
Audit Committee. The Audit Committes has reviewsd the magnitude and nature of these
services to ensure that they are compatible with maintaming the mdependence of the
external auditor.

Changes in and disagreements with Accountants on Actounting and financial
Disclosure

There was no event in the past years where the external auditor and the Registrant had any
disagreements with regard to any matter relating to dcocounting principies or practices
financial staterment disclosure or auditing scope or procedure.



PART Ili - CONTROL AND CONMPENSATION INFORMATION
ltem 9. Directors and Executive Officers of the Issuer
Directors

The following are the names, ages, cltizenship and periods of service of the past and the
incumbent directors/independent directors of the Company:

; % Lo — B O ———
Period during which individual
N
| M° | citizenship . has servedassuch
Manolito A Manalo 47 Filiping May 28 2013 to present
Bernadeth A. Lim 33 Filipino May 28 2012 to present
Juan‘mci;}rS ‘!.{alde-z ] 4& _Fj!iﬁiho _ May 28 2013 to ﬁ}EE.E.:IT
Diane Madeiyn C. Ching 3% | Filipino October 2013 to present
Rolando 8. Santos .67  'Filipino | January 06 2017 fo presen: !
| Johrny Y. Aruego Jr, [ ;
(independent director) M e
Francisco L, Layug Il ' -
| (independent director) 63 Filipino . December 21 2017 to pre_.sent

----- reb—a i e

Officers

The following are the names, ages, positions, citizenship and periods of service of the past
and incumbent officers and advisors of the Company:

v wrie n = VT A A e sy e Ly

! : . Period during which

Name Age Position Citizenship | individual has served
. 1o assuch
| Manalito Manalo 47 | President & CEQ 4 ~ Filipine May 2013 to presant
| Bemadeth A. Lim 33 | Vice President Filipino May 20123 to present
Diane Madelyn C. i Corporate - .
Ching | secretary | Filpinp | Me¥20Fttapresant |
- s January 06 2017 to
Brsesanit sl L I B el _____
Chnstopher Sam S, | Co-Corporate | Filiino | December 2014 to
[Selvador | |Information Off'!?_%’_fj_p' | present

Business Experience and Other Directorships
Directors

The business experience of each of the past and incumbent directors of the Company for
the last five (5) years is as follows.

Directors

Manolito A. Manale was elected as President and Director in May 2013. He is the co-
founder and managing partner of Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm. He is a Director and
President of Panalpina World Transport (Phils), Inc He also sits as Director in Kajims
Philippines Inc. He bagan his law practice as an associate in Leovillo C. Agustin Law Offices
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from 1985 to 1996 and Britanico Consunji and Sarmiento from 1996 to 1987. He later
headed the Legal Division of Air Philippines from 1997 to 1999,

Bernadeth A. Lim was elected as Vice President and Director in May 2013. She is a junior
parner of Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm. She is a Director and Corporate Secretary of
Kajima Philippines Incorporated, Ripple Mobile Technology Solutions Inc., Anawhan Realty
Inc. and Bryaric Holdings Corp. She also sits a Director in Veripay Mobhile Systems Inc.

Juan Victor 8. Valdez was elected as Director in May 2013 He is a junior partner of
Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm. He is a director, Vice—President for Legal Affairs and
Corporate Secretary of PATTS College of Aeronautics, one of the country's leading
aeronautic schools. He also sits as director in Segundo Travel & Tours Inc., Hafti Tours Inc.,
and Kajima Philippines Incorporated.

Monica Isabelle 1. Villanueva was elected as Corporate Secretary and Director in April
2013 up to August 22, 2017. She is a senior associate in Ocampo and Manalo Law Firm,
She is also a Director in Autocardinal Inc., Building Maintenance Unit Inc., Manortort Capital
Inc. and Ripplewood Property Holdings Inc.

Diane Madelyn C. Ching was elected as Director in October 2013, She currently serves as
Corporate Secretary of AG Finance Inc. and Bright Kindle Resources & Investments Inc.
(formerly Bankard Inc.) as well as General Counsel and Assistant Corporate Secretary of
Marcventures Holdings Inc. and its subsidiary, Marcventures Mining and Development Corp.
She provides lega! consultancy services to PLDT Global {Philippines) Corp. Atty Ching was
previously an associate of Ocampe & Manalo Law Firm from March 2010 to June 2013

Johnny Y. Aruego, Jr. was elected as an Independent Director in May 2013, He is a
partner in Aruego Bite and Associates. He is a director of Excel Unified Land Resources
Corporation. He is the Corporate Secretary and Legal Counse! for Agility, Inc. and A V.
Ocampo-ATR Kimeng Insurance Broker, Inc. He is a Legal Consultant of Loranzana Food
Corporation, National Steel Corporation and Margarita Land and Management Co., In¢c. He
is the assistant rehabilitation receiver for Pacific Activated Carbon, Inc., Pet Plans, Inc .
Bacnotan Steel Industries, Inc. and Al fAsia Capital and Trust Corporation. He is an
assistant liquidator of East Asia Capital Corporation, Reynolds Philippines Corporation.

Francisco L. Layug ll was elected as an Independent Director in December 2017. He is
the President of Rotary Club of Pasay, He served as President of University of the
Philippines Electronics and Electrical Engineering Alumni Association, Inc (UPEEEAAL
from 2010-2011. He-was also a Vice President of Alay-Lakad Foundation from 2009-2010

Cther Officers
The business experience of each of the incumbent officers of the Company for the last five
(5) years is as follows:

Rotando S. Santos was elected as Treasurer in October 2012 and Director in Algust 22,
2017. He serves as Vice President and Treasurer of Bright Kindle Resources & Investments
Inc. and as Treasurer of Marcventures Holdings Inc and Marcventures Mining and
Cevelopment Corp. He was previously the Branch Head/ Cluster Head for Makati Branches
of Equitable PCI Bank which was evenlually acquired by BDO from 2001 to 2013



Christopher Sam S. Salvador was re-elected as Co-Corporate [nformation Officer in
December 2017. He is an associate of Ocampo & Manalo law firm. He is a director and the
Treasurer of Pureholdings, Inc., Corporate Secretary of Timebound Trading Inc.. and
Associate Corporate Secretary for Island Tranvoyager, Inc. and Bacuit Aitholdings, Inc.

item 10. Executive Compensation

The aggregate compensation paid in 2016 and 2017 and estimated to be paid in 2018, to
the officers of the Company is set out below:

[Names  TPosition [Year _ [Salary | Bonus | Others

Manolito A. | Chairman &

Manalo | President 3 _

Bernadeth A le Vice President

D!BJ"IE Made ],rn f,'; Corporate 4

Rolando S. Sdnt-‘.:-*-* | Treasurer _ _

Aggregate for| L 2015 0 0 22222

above  named | | 2016 0 0 25,000

LAl Dlremﬂrs and ‘ 2015 0 0 27,778

Officers 2016 0 O 30,000

group unnamea | 2017 0 0 25,000
| 0 I O 70,000

' 2018(est.




item 11. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Management

Security Ownership of Record and Beneficial Owners of at least 5% of the Company's
Securities as of 31 December 2017

hlime md aceress:) | Name of Beneficial
Type of of record owner : . : e No. of Percent
Class | and relationship | Ctzenship m'rtnr;E Hg Ref!iag?.nsmp Shemspeld | ofouss
with lssuer wi BCOT NIeT
.fé?:;ﬁ?ﬁhh_-_?ﬁl:i'ﬁdm“ ST B nnsa R T
Shares | Filiping i Management Carp./ | 463,555,085 | 66.19%
' Client '
Zomimen: {RRR Nemnee Filpino | Isidro C. Alcantara, Jr 97478801 | 14.00%

On December 18, 2015, the Company disclosed that it received information from RYM
Business Management Corp. that the latter acquired through foreclosure sale 83 885 410
and 218,099,360 common shares owned by NOHI and MTLCI, respectively, resulting to
87.38% ownership in the Company.

Other than the abovementioned transaction, the Company has no knowledge of any person
who, as of December 31, 2017, was directly or indirectly the beneficial owner of, or who has
voting power or investment power (pursuant to a voting trust or other similar agreement)
with respeci to, shares comprising more than five percent (5%) of the Company’s
cutstanding commaon shares of stock,

Security Ownership of Management as of December 31, 2017

Amount and nature
Type of Class : Name and Address of of Beneficial Citizenship Percent 5
| Owner ! ; of class |

s S f pwnershlp DR
Commoan ManolitoManalo T~ 1~ | Filpino | 00% |
_Common Bermadeth A Lim | 1 | Fiipino | 00% |
Common  Diane Madelyn Ching 1.000 Filipino | 0.0%
Common “Juan Victor S. Valdez 1 Filiping 00%
Common | Johnny Y. AwegodJr. | 1 Filipino__ | 0.0%
| Common  Rolando§ Santos | 4000 | |
' Common _Francisca L. Layug Il 1 Filipino 0.0%
N SRS S I S

Changes in Contro!

The Company is not aware of any voting trust agreements or any other similar agreements
which may result in a change in control of the Company  As reported to the SEG and PSE,
on December 18 2015, RYM Business Management Corp acquired through foreclosure
sale 93685410 and 216009,360 common shares owned by NOHI and MTLCL
respectively. resulting to 87.38% ownership in the Company




Iltem 12. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions
As of December 31, 2017, Bright Kindle Resources Corporation has an outstanding balance
of 898,953 which represents a non-interest bearing unsecured rent receivable to be
seitled on demand. Also, as of December 31, 2015, the Company has a liability to
Marcyentures Mining and Development Cnrporatmn amounting to B22 475 which represents
a nor-interest bearing unsecured payable to be settled on demand, Please refer to Note 15
of the atached 2015 AFS

Part IV-Corporate Governance
Item 13. Corporate Governance

This portion has been deleted pursuant to SEC Memorandum Circular No. 05 Series of
2013,

Part V - Exhibits and Schedules
ltem 14. Exhibits and Reports on SEC Form 17-C
(a) Exhibits
See accompanying Index to Exhibits.
The following exhibits are filed as g separate section of this repart
(b} Reports on SEC Form 17-C

ltems reported under SEC Form 17-C during the last six months covered by this report:

Date of Disclosure | ) ~ Subject

April 11, 2017 Results of Board Meeting held on 10 Aprit 2017 {
oo | Postponement of 2017 Annual Stockholders’ Meeting o]

August 22, 2017 Change in Directors and/or Officers (Resignation/ Removal or

Appointment/Election) ]

October 10,2017 | Results of Board Meeting held on 10 October 2017

.......

October 30, 2017 | Change xl_r: Stt}l.."‘,_k Transfer Agent -
December 21, Results of Annual Stockholders' Meeting held last 21
2017 December 2017

| Results of Organizational Meeting

ll!'r



SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 17 of the Code and Section 141 of the Corporation
Code, this report is signed on behalf of the issuer by the undersigned, thereunto duly

authorized, in the City of R e 3 on 2018
By / '
Qﬁ‘ﬂlf\* ' /5){ ol
MANOLITO y. MANALD 4 ROLANPD S. SANTOS
Fragsident Tréasurer

il

DIANE MADELY{Y C. CHING
Corporate Secretary

PR TR = l-i

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this AP Ray b 718 2018
affiant(s) exhibiting to me his/their Driver's License, as follows:

__ NAMES | Driver's License no. _Expirydate
Manolito A Manalo 195-562-309 ]
‘Rolando S. Santos 127-551-054 e B
L Diane Madelyn C. Ching | 201-507-466

il

R TANPETY |
Erralys BT BLDE
L MARATLRVE . MAKATI CITY
Coc Ne W."‘
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’ December 31 !
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1,603 3" Tuesday of May

S CONTACT PERSON INFORMATION
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NOTE 1:in cose EJ'; u'en't.'q. -r;s'-s-‘-gl-n;'.'-tfa."l or CE‘!Hl,‘-.'E'.lEu:!-I-'I.;:.:,; t:uj:"uc; E&F!fle afficer ﬂfsngna:e::i‘ as contact ;?Eft-oﬂ,ausn’* '(."l:‘ll:’n'rr"‘s}.l_ﬂ'be :.c.p;urh:'ﬁ tor the E‘.:Jnfi-éﬁ'us_'ﬁ a within
thirty (30 catendar dops from: the occurrence thereal with (nformolion and complete contact details of e ew copies! persah dosighated

2: Adl Bowes must be properly and completely filled-uo. Foilure to da se shol cause the deiy ba updutig the corparation’s records with the Cpmifesion
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STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Management of Prime Media H oldings, Inc. is responsible for the preparation
and fwrr presentation of the financial statements including the schedules attached
therein for the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, in accordance with the
prescribed financial reporting framework indicared therein, and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary 1o enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud o arror

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsihle for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable mattery
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends Lo higuidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so

The Board of Directors is responsible in overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process,

The Board of Directors reviews and approves the financial statements including the
schedules attached therein, and submits the same to the stockholders or members,

Reyes Tacandong & Co., the independent auditor appointed by the stockholders for
the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016, has audited the financial statements of
the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing. and in its report to
the stockholders oy members, has expeessed its opinion on the fairness of presentation
upon completibn of such gudit "

Signature

_.r‘_.a-""'?ﬂ.v
MANSHTITO A, MANALO av
Chaigfan and President of the Board

Signature /@ r

ROLAXDO S. SANTOS
Treasfirer

Signed this 20 day of q_f?/ﬂpf. ZCJ/ 5
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANT
ON AN ENGAGEMENT TO COMPILE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Board of Directors and Stockholders
Prime Media Holdings, Inc.

16th Floor, Citibank Tower

8741 Paseo de Roxas

hakat| City

Report on the Financial Statements

| have compiled the accompanying financial statements of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. (the Company), a
subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp., which comprise the statement of financial position of as
at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in
equity, and statements of cash flows for the years then ended, and notes to the financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

Based on the Information provided by the management, | have applied my expertise in accounting and
financial reporting to assist the Company in the preparation and presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS). | have complied with
relevant ethical requirements, including principles of integrity, ob ectivity, professional competence and
due care.

Since a compilation engagement is not an assurance engagement, | am not required to verify the accuracy
or completeness of the information provided by the management for compilation, | have not conducted
an audit nor a review of the accompanying financial statements. Accordingly, | do not express an audit
opinion and provide any assurance, or a review conclusion on whether the financial statements are in
accordance with the PFRS,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governonce for the Financial Statements
Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements, as well
as the accuracy and completeness of the information, in accordance with PFRE, and for such internal

control as management determines is necessary to enable the pr?pi_iri!i_il;ln-uf financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or E"ﬂir‘ ]

“Your end-to-end Business Paortner”
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Practitioner’s Responsibility

My responsibility Is to perform this compilation engagement in accordance with Philippine Standards on
Related Services 4410 (Revised) — Compilation Engagements, issued by Auditing Standards and Practices
Council of the Philippines.

The objective of this compilation engagement is to assist the management in presenting financial
information in the form of financial statements without undertaking to obtain or provide any assurance
that there are no material modifications that should be made to the financial statements.

Practitioner’s Independence

| am independent and had no direct financial interest with respect to the Company, in all material
aspects of this compilation engagement during, the year ended December 31, 2017,

/ Practigi

CPA Certificate No, 0141184

lsswed on Juby 12 2015; valid uatil July 12, 2018
BOA Accreditation Mo, B238

Issued on February & 20.018; Valid until July 12, 2021
Tax identification No. 273-144-666-0000
FTH No. 445793

April 10, 2018

*NETZ0180009*
“Your Pﬂr‘)lﬁf-ﬂ.-[-\nd Bisiness P{:‘ffl’”."’l’ i
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

The Stockholders and the Board of Directars
Prime Medla Holdings, Inc,

16th Floor, Citibank Tower

8741 Paseo de Roxas

Makati City

Opinian

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. {the Company],
a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp., which comprise the statements of financial position as at
Cecember 31, 2017 and 2016, and the statements of comprehensive income, statements of changes in equity
and statements of cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies,

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the
Company as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and its financial performance and its cash flows for the years
ended December 31, 2017, 2016, and 2015 in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards
[PFRS).

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audits in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSA).  Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditors’ Responsibilitics for the Audit of the Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the ethical requirements that

-are relevant 1o our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we have fulfilled our other ethical

responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Muoterial Uncertainty Related to Going Concern

We draw attention to Note 1 in the financial statements which indicates that the Company is stil exploring
for a new business. |ts current activities comprise mainly of transferring assets ralated to its previous
development bank operation to BDO and PDIC. Thus, the Company has continued to incur losses resulting in
a capital deficiency of R114.1 million and BES.7 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively.
These events indicate that a material uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the Campany’s
ability to continue as a going concern. The actions being taken by the Company are also discussed in Note 1,
Our opinion is not modified In respect of this matter,
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit
of the financial statements as at and for the year ended December 31, 2017. These matters were addressed
in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whale, and in forming our opinion thereon, and
we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters

Stockholders’ Commitment to Support the Company

The Company relies on its stockholders to sustain its operations and settle its liabilities. The ability of the
Company to continue as a going concern depends primarily on the financial capacity and commitment of the
stockholders, Hence, this is of significance to aur audt. We reviewed management's disclosures on actions
being taken by the stockholders and underlying documents. Further disclosures are included in Note 1 to the
financial statements

Estimated Liabilities

As discussed in Note 1, the Company has estimated liabilities primarily related to its previous development
banking operations. This matter is of significance 1o our audit because it involves the use of estimates. We
have reviewed the reasonableness of management’s estimates. Further disclosures are included in Note 9,
Accrued Expenses and Other Current Lighifities,

Cther Information

Management is responsible for the other information, The other information comprises the information
included in the SEC Form 20-15 (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A (Annual Report) and
Annual Report distributed to stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2017, but does not include the
financial statements and our auditors’ report thereon. The SEC Form 20-1S , SEC Form 17-A and Annual
Report distributed to stockholders for the year ended December 31, 2017 are expected to be made available
to us after the date of this auditors' report,

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will nat Cxpress any
form of assurance conclusion thereon,

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibllity is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowlecge obtained in the audits or otherwise
appears to be materially misstated,

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation of the financial statements in accordance with PERS, and for
such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company's ability to
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to golng concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

AT
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Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Company's financial reporting process.
Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasenable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whaole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that
includes pur opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but |s not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with PSA will always detect a material misstaterment when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with PSA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involye
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control,

*  Obtain an understanding of internal contral relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriste in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company’s internal control,

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management's use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a materlal uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditors' report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion.  Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditors’
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going
concern

=  Evaluzte the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation,

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scape

and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal contral
that we identity during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements regarding independence, and communicate with them all relationships and other
matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards,

From the matters communicated with thaose charged with povernance, we determine those matters that
were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period and are therefore the
key audit matters, We describe these matters in our auditors’ repart unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonahly
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication,

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditars’ report is Belinda B. Fernando.

REYES TACANDONG & CO.

BELINDA B. FERNANDO

Partner
CPA Certificate Mo, B1207
Tax Identification No, 102-086-538-000
B0 Accreditation Mo, 4782 Valid unti! Decernber 31, 2018
SEC Accrediation No. 1022-AR-2 Group A
Valid until March 15, 2020
BIR Atcreditation No. 0B-005144-004-2017
Walld until January 13, 2020
PTR Mo, 6607953
Issued January 3, 2008, Makati City

April 20, 2018
Makati City, Metro Manila
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
Note 2017 2016
ASSETS
Current Assets
Cash 4 F1,720,231 #2,701,963
Receivables 5 2,453,932 4,516,267
Due from related parties 13 12,420,000 40,000,000
Other current assets 208,359 808,905
Total Current Assets 16,802,522 48,02 7,135
Noncurrent Assets
Investment properties & 69,876,000 68,135,000
Available-for-sale [AFS) financial assets 7 300,000 240,000
Equipment 8 1,538,190 57,200
Tatal Noncurrent Assets 71,714,190 68,432,200 _
RP8B,516,712 B116,459 335
LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL DEFICIENCY
Current Liahilities
Accrued expenses and other current liahilities ] B193,071,645 ¥193,160,882
Noncurrent Liability
Deferred tax Hability 12 8,556,800 19,034,500
Total Liabilities 202,628,445 202,195,382
Capital Deficiency
Capital stock 10 714,664,876 714,664,876
Additional paid-in capital (APIC) 2,114,921,859  2,114,921,869
Deficit (2,943,798,478)  (2,915,362,792)
Cumulative unrealized gain on AFS financial assets 7 100,000 40,000
Total Capital Deficiency {114,111,733) {ES,?BE,DrJ?L
FEB,SIB,?LZ ¥116,459,335

See occompanylng Notes to Finoncial Slatements



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Years Ended December 31

Mote 2017 2016 2015
INCOME
Gain on fair value changes of investment .
properties 6 P1,741,000 R1,901,000 E-
Rental 11 279,360 279,360 1,219,730
Recovery of accounts written-off 5 167,328 749,211 583,281
Interest incamue 4 13,474 44,054 208,813
2,201,162 2,973,625 2,011,824
EXPENSES
Management fee 13 23,092,784 23,092,784 23,092,784
Provision for impairment losses 5 2,126,335 = =
Professianal fees 1,799,004 2,907,299 2,514,319
Outside services 1,316,410 1,003,483 2,086,595
Taxes and licenses 459,978 654,931 1,840,613
Rent i1 186,699 272,783 1,246,714
Depreciation 8 96,010 17,160 11,440
Salaries and allowance - 130,938 199 466
Others 1,028,394 484,302 1,682, 444
30,105,614 28,653,740 32,674,375
LO5S BEFORE INCOME TAX (27,904,452} (25,680,115) {30,662,551)
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX 12
Current 8,034 20,571 36,060
Deferred 522,300 570,300 -
o 531,234 590,871 36,061()
NET LOSS (2B,435,686) (26,270,986} 30,698,611
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME [LOSS)
ftem that will be reclassified to profit or loss
Unrealized gain (loss) on fair value changes
of AFS financlal assets 7 60,000 (10,000) 100,000
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE LOSS (P28,375,686) (P26,280,986)  [F30,59E,611)
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share 15 {RO.04) (RO.04) (#0.05)

See pocompanping Notes to Financial Szatements
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Years Ended December 31

Note 2017 2016 2015
CAPITAL STOCK 10
Common stock - F1 par value
Balance atl beginning of year F700,298,616 E605,930,906 EE598,930,806
Conversian of preferred to common stock - 1,367,710 -
Balance at end of year 700,298,616 700,298,616 598,930,906
Preferred stock - B1 par valus
Balance at beginning of year 14,366,260 48,558 000 48,559,000
Conversion of preferred to commaon stock - (34,192,740) -
Balance at end of year 14,366,260 14,366,260 48,559,000
714,664,876 714,664 876 747,483,506
ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL
Balance at beginning of year 2,114,921,859 2,082,086,839 2,082,096,839
Conversion of preferred to common stock - 32,825,030 -
Balance at end of year .. 2,114,921,869 2,114,321, 869 2,082,0096,839
OEFICIT
Balance at beginning of year (2,915,362,792)  (2,889,091,806) (2,858,393,195)
MWet loss (28,435,686) {26,270,986) [30,695.611)
Balance at end of year (2,943,798,478)  (2,915,362,792) (2,889,091 806)
CUMULATIVE UNREALIZED GAIN ON AFS
FINANCIAL ASSETS 7
Balance at beginning of year 40,000 50,000 150,0001
Unrealized gain [loss) on fair value
changes 60,000 (10, 000) 100,000
Balance at end of year 100,000 40,000 50,000
(1 14,111,733) (RES 736,047} (P50,455,061)

See accomponying Netes to Financiol! Stotements,



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.}

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Years Ended December 31

Mote 2017 2016 2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax - {R27,904,452) (R25,680,115) (R30,662551)
Adjustments for:

Gain on fair value changes of investment

properties 6 {1,741,000) {1,501,000} -

Depreciation 8 96,010 17,160 11,440

Interest income 4 (13,474) (44,054) {208,813)
Qperating loss before working capital changes [25,562,916) (27,608,008}  ({30,853,924)
Decrease [increasa) in:

Receivables 2,062,335 {131,400) 265,254

Due from related parties 27,580,000 [ A0, OO0, 000 -

Other current assets 600,546 21,074 {32 864)
Decrease in accrued expenses and other current

liabilities - {89,237) {2,828,203)  (6,288,313)
Met cash generated from (used for) operai[nhs 590,728 (70,545,538} {36,915847)
Interest received 13,474 44,054 208,813
Income tax paid (8,934} (20,671) {36,060)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 595,268 (70,523,065) (36,743,094
CASH FLOW FROM AN INVESTING ACTIVITY
Acquisition of eguipment B (1,577,000} - {B5,800)
NET DECREASE IN CASH (981,732}  (70,523,055)  [36,828,894)
CASH AT BEGINNING OF YEAR 2,701,963 73,225,018 110,053,912
CASH AT END OF YEAR #1,720,231 #2,701,563 B73,225 018

See accomponying Notes (o Finaneigl Staterments



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

Corporate Information

Prime Media Holdings, Inc. {the Company) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 6, 1963. On October 1, 2003, the SEC
appraved the amendment of the Company's articles of incorporation, changing its primary purpose
from a development bank to a holding company and to hold investments in the media industry. On
March 4, 2013, the SEC approved the extension of the Company’s corporate life for another
50 years.

On July 9, 1964, the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. approved the public listing of the Company’s
shares of stock. As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, 663,713,458 Company shares are publicly
listed

The Company is a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp, (the Paremt Company), a holding
company registered and domiciled in the Philippines,

On September 12, 2002, the Company agreed to transfer assets and liabilities arislng from its
development bank operations to Banco de Oro Unibank, Inc. (BDO) and Philippine Deposit Insurance
Corporation [PDIC) under a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA). As at December 31, 2017 and 2016,
the Company has liabilities arising from the MOA which pertain malinly to the estimated transfer
taxes and registration fees related to the transfer of assets to BDO/PDIC and other related liabilities
(see Note 9).

The financial statements of the Company as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 and for the three years
ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015 were approved and authorized for issuance by the Board
of Directors (BOD) on April 20, 2018,

Status of Operations
The Company is still exploring for a new business. Its current activities comprise mainly of

transferring assets related to its previous development bank operations to BDO and PDIC. Thus, the
Company has continued to incur losses resulting in a capital deficiency of R114.1 million and
#85.7 million a: at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The stockholders, however, have
continued to provide the necessary financial support to sustain Company operations. The
stockholders converted their preferred stock of R34.2 millien into common stock in 2016, converted
their advances of RG00.5 million to additional capital in 2014 and Infused capital aggregating
#179.0 million in 2014 and 2013 to reduce the capital deficiency. On December 1, 2017, the
Company submitted an application to the S5EC for the Company’s equity restructuring to reduce the
capital deficiency.

On March 23, 2018, the SEC approved the Company’s equity restructuring to reduce its deficit as at
December 31, 2016 from R2,915.4 million to #800.5 million by applying its APIC amounting to
P2,114.9 million
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2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The financial statements have been prepared in compliance with the Philippine Financial Reporting
Standards {PFRS) issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Council and adopted by the
SEC, including SEC pronouncements. This financial reporting framewerk includes PFRS, Philippine
Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations from International Financial Reporting
Interpretations Committee.

Measurement Bases
The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is also the Company's functional
currency. All values represent absolute amounts except otherwise stated.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for its investment
properties and AFS financial assets which are carried at fair value. Historical cost 1s generally based
on the fair value of the consideration given in exchange for assets

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the transaction date. The Company uses
valuation technigues that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs and minimizing the

use of uncbservable inputs,

The Company uses market observable data to a possible extent when measuring the fair value of an
assct or a liability. Fair values are categorized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy based on
inputs used in the valuation technigues as follows:

¢ Level 1- Quoted {unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assels or liabilities.

s Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable.

¢ Level 3 - Valuation technigques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measuremant is unobservahlie,

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measuremant as a whole} at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the leve| of
the fair value hierarchy as explained above,

Further information about the assurmptions made in measuring Tair values s included in Notes 6,7
and 16



Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with thase of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PFRS which the Company adoptod effective for
annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2017;

Amendments to PAS 7, Statement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiotive — The amendments
require entities to provide information that enable the users of financial statements to evaluate
changes in liabilities arising from financing activities.

Amendments to PAS 12, Income Taxes - Recognition of Deferred Tax Assets for Unrealized
Losses — The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax where an asset is measured at
fair value and the fair value is below the asset's tax base (e.g. deferred tax asset related to
unrealized losses on debt instruments measured at fair value), as well as certain other aspects of
accounting for deferred tax assots,

The adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS did not have any material effect an the
financiat statements of the Company. Additional disclosures have been included in the notes to
financial statements, as applicable.

New and Amended PFRS In Issue But Not Yet Effective
Relevant new and amended PFRS which are not yet effective for the year ended December 31, 2017
and have not been applied in preparing the financial statements are summarized below.

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018:

PFERS 9, Financiof instruments = This standard will replace PAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement (and all the previous versions of PFRS9). It contains
requirements for the classification and measurement of financial assets and financlal liabilitias,
impairment, hedge accounting, recognition and derecognition,

PERS 8 requires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured at amortized cost or
fair value (through profii or loss or through other comprehensive income), depending on the
classification by reference to the business model within which these are held and its contractual
cash flow characteristics,

Far financial liabilities, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates to cases where the fair value
option is taken: the amount of change in fair value of a financial liability designated as at fair
value through profit or loss (FVPL) that is attributable to changes in the credit risk of that fiability
is recognized in other comprehensive income (rather than in profit or loss), unless this creates
an accounting mismatch,

For the impairment of financial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an "expected credit loss” model based
on the concept of providing for expected losses at inception of a contract 1t will no longer be
necessary for there to be objective evidence of impairment before a credit loss is recognized,

For hedge accaounting, PERS 9 introduces a substantial overhaul allowing financial statements to
better reflect how risk management activities are undertaken when hedging financial and non-

financial risk exposures.

The derecognition previsions are carried over almost unchanged from PAS 39,



= Amendments to PAS 40, investment Property - Transfers of Investmen! Property — The
amendments clarify that transfers to, or from, investment praperty (including assets under
construction and development} should be made when, and only when, there is evidence that a
change In use of a property has occurred,

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019 -

= PFRS 16, Leases — This standard replaces PAS 17, Leases and its related interpretations, The maost
significant change Introduced by the new standard is that almost all leases will be brought onto
lesspes' statement of financial position under a single model {except leases of less than 12
months and leases of low-value assets), eliminating the distinction between operating and
finance leases Lessor accounting, however, remains largely unchanged and the distinction
between operating and finance lease is retained.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PERS is not
expected to have any material effect on the financial statements of the Company. Additional

disclosures will be included in the financial statements, as applicable.

Financial Assets and Liahilities

Date of Recognition.  Financial assets and liabilities are recognized In the statements of financial
pasition when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provision of a financial instrument,
Financial instrurnents are initially recognized at falr value. In the case of regular way purchase or sale
of financial asset, recognition and derecognition, as applicable, is done using trade date accounting,

Initial Recognition. Financial assets and liabilities are recognized initially at fair value, which is the
fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received {in case of a liability}. The initial
measurement of financial instruments, except for those designated at FVPL, includes transaction
cost.

“Day 17 Difference. Where the transaction in @ non-active market is different from the fair value of
other observable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a2 valuation
technigue whose variables include only data from observable market, the Company recognizes the
difference between the transaction price and fair value {a “Day 1" difference) in the statement of
profit or loss. In cases where there is no observable data on inception, the Company deemed the
transaction price as the best estimate of fair value and recoghizes "Day 1" difference In profit or loss
when the inputs become observable or when the instrument s derecognized, For each transaction,
the Company determines the appropriate method of recognizing the “Day 17 difference,

Classification. The Company classifies its financial assets at initial recognition under the following
categories: (a) financial assets at FVPL, (b} held-toe-maturity (HTM} investments, {c)loans and
receivables and {d) AFS financial assets. Financlal lizbilities, on the other hand, are classified as
either financial liabilities at FVPL or other financial liabilities at amortized cost. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired or incurred and whether
or not the instruments are quoted in an active market.

As at December 21, 2017 and 2016, the Company does not have financial assets and labilities at
FVPL and HTM investments,
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AFS Financial Assets.  AFS financial assets are nonderivative financial assets that are either
designated in this category or not classified in any of the other categories. These are purchased and
held indefinitely, and may be sold in response to liquidity requirements or changes in market
conditions.

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets is subsequently measured at falr value. The
unrealized gains and |losses arising from the fair valuation of AFS financial assets are reported in the
statements of comprehensive income and in the equity section of the statements of financial
position. These changes in fair value are recognized in equity until the investment is sold, collected,
or otherwise disposed of or until the investment is determined to be impaired, at which time the
cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity are included in profit or loss.

As al December 31, 2017 and 2016, the Company classified its proprietary membership share as
AFS financial assets.

logns and Recefvalbles. Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities and that are not quoted in an active market. These are not entered
inta with the intention of immediate or short-torm resale and are not classified or designated as AFS
financial assets or financial asset at FVYPL. Loans and receivables are included in current assets if
maturity is within twelve months from reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as noncurrent
assets.

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method, less allowance for impairment, if any, Amortized cosl 15 calculated by
taking inlo account any discount or premium on acquisition and any transaction cost which are
directly attributable in the acquisition of the financial instrument. The amortization Is included in
profit or loss

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, this category includes cash, receivables {excluding advances 1o
officers, emplovees and service providers) and due from related parties.

Other Financial Ligkilitics ot Amortized Cost. Financial liabilities are classified in this category if
these are not held for trading or not designated as at FYPL upon the inception of the liability. These
include liabilities arising from operations or through borrowing,

After initial recognition, other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using
the effective interest method. Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any related issue
costs, discount or premium. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are
derecognized, as well as when there is amortization process,

As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, this category includes accrued expenses and other current
liabilities (excluding statutory payables),

Offsetting of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the stetements of financlal
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right 1o offset the recognized amaunts
and there Is an intention to settle on a net basis or 1o realize the asset and settle the liability
simultancously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements where the related
assets and liabilities are presented gross in the statements of financial position,



Impalrment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there Is objective evidence that a financial
asset or group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is deemed
impaired if, and only if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred "loss event”) and that loss event (or
events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset or proup of financial
assets that can be reliably estimated.

The carrying amount of the impaired account is reduced to the extent that it exceeds the asset’s net
realizable value. Impairment losses are recognized in full in profit or loss, If in a subsequent period, the
amount of accumulated impairment losses has decreased because of an event occurring after
impairment was recognized, the decline is allowed to be reversed to profit or foss to the extent that the
resulting carrying amaunt will not exceed the amortized cost determined had no impairment been
recognized.

Loons and Receivable, The Company assesses at each reporting date whether objective evidence of
impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant, or collectively for
financial assets that are not individually significant. I it is determined that no objective evidence of
impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset s
included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of
financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Those characteristics are relevant to the
estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by being indicative of the debtor's ability to
pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the assets being evaluated, Assets that
are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to be
recognized are not included in a collective assessment of impairment

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the assets’ original effective interest rate. Time value is
generally not considered when the effect of discounting is not material. The carrying amount of the
assel shall be reduced directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of loss shall
be recognized in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases because of an
event occurring after the impairment was recognized, the previously recegnized impairment loss is
reduced by adjusting the allowance account. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recoghized in the profit or loss, to the extent that the carrying amount of the asset does not exceed
its amortized cost at the reversal date,

AFS Finoncial Assets. For equity investments classified as AFS financial assets, impalrment would
include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below their cost.
Where there is evidence of impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference between
the acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognized in profit or loss - is removed from equity and recognized In profit or loss.
Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in fair
value after impairment are recognized directly in the other comprehensive income and presented in
the statements of changes in equity.



Derecognition of Financial Assets and Liabilities

Financial Assets, A financial asset (or where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group
of similar financial assets) is derecognized by the Company when:

= the right to receive cash flows from the asset has expired,

+ the Company retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them in full without material delay to a third party under & “pass-through”
arrangement; or

= the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and either (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or (b) has neither transferred
nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the assets, but has transferred control over

the asset,

When the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset Is recognized to the extent of the
Company’s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset, if any, is measured at the lower of original carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could be required to pay.

Financial Liabilities, A financial liability is derecopnized when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are
substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original
liakility and the recopnition of the new lizbility, and the difference in the respective carrying amount
is recognized in profit or loss,

A modification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash flows under the new terms,
including net fees paid or received and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is
different by at least 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the original
liabiiity.

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on its expected cash flows,
discounted using the interest rate at which the Company could raise debt with similar terms and
conditions in the market. The difference between the carrying amount of the original liability and
fair value of the new liability is recognized in the statements of comprehensive income.

On the other hand, if the difference does not meetl the 10% thresheld, the original debt is not
extinguished but merely modified. In such case, the carrying amount is adjusted by the costs or fees
paid or received in the restructuring,

Other Current Assets

Cther current assets mainly consist of prepayments which represent expenses paid in advance and
recorded as assets before these are utilized. Prepayments are apportioned over the period covered
by the payment and charged to profit or loss when incurred. Prepayments that are expected to be
realized for no more than twelve months after the reporting date are classified as other current
assets. Otherwise, these are classified as other noncurrent assets,




Investment Properties

Investment properties, accounted for under the fair value model, are property held either to earn
rentals or for capital appreciation, or both, but not for sale in the ordinary course of business, use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes.

Investrent properties are measured inltially at cost, including transaction costs. The carrying
amount includes the cost of replacing part of existing investment properties at the time that cost is
incurred and if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of
Investment properties. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date as determined by independent
appraisers. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment properties are
included in the profit or loss in the year in which they arise.

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is a change in use. For a
transfer from investment property to owner occupled property, the deemed cost for subseguent
accounting is the fair value at the date of change in use. If owner occupied property becomes an
investment property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy on
property, plant and equipment up to the date of change in use,

Investment properties are derecognized when either they have been disposed of or when the
investmeant properties are permanently withdrawn from use and no further economic benefit is
expected from its disposal. Any gain or loss on the retirement or disposal of an investment property
Is recopnized in profit or loss In the year of retirement or disposal,

Equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreclation and impairment in value, if any,

The initial cost of equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditures incurred after the equipment have been put inte operation, suth as repairs,
maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to operations in the year the costs are
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonstrated that the expenditures have resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected to be obtained from the use of an item of
computer equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures are
capitalized as additional costs of equipment. The cost of replacing a component of an item of
equipment is recognized if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of
the replaced component is derecognized,

When parts of an item of equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as separate
items (major companents) ef equipment,

Depreciation is calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the eguipment of
5 years.

The estimated useful lives and method for deprecistion are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
pericds and method of depreciation are consistent with the expected pattern of economic benefits
from eguipment,



When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated
depreciation and any impairment in value are removed from the accounts. Any resulting gain or loss
is credited to or charged against current operations.

The Company assesses at each reporting date whether there is an indication that nonfinancial assets
may be impaired when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an
asset may hot be recoverable. If any such indication exists and if the carrying amount exceeds the
estimated recoverable amount, nonfinancial assets are written down to its recoverable amount,
which is the greater of fair value less cost to sell and value in use, The fair value less cost to seliis
the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm's length transaction. In assessing value in
use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to present value using a pretax discount rate
that reflects current market assossments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the
asset. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

An assessment is made at each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment lpsses may no longer exist or may have decreased. |If such indication exists,
the recoverable amount is estimated, A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed only if
there has been a change in the estimates used to determine the asset’s recoverable amount since
the last impairment loss was recognized. In such instance, the carrying amount of the asset is
increased to its recoverable amount. However, that increased amount cannot exceed the carrying
amount that would have been determined had no Impairment loss been recognized for the asset in
prior years. Such reversal is recognized In profit or loss.

Equity

Capital Stock. Capital stock is measured at par value for all shares issued.

APIC. Proceeds and/or fair value of considerations received in excess of par value, if any, are
recognized as APIC Incremental costs directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are treated
as deduction from APIC,

Deficit.  Deficit represents the cumulative balance of the Company’s results of operations net
dividends declared, if any.

Revenue Recognition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic benefits will flow to the

Company and the amount of revenue can be measured reliably. Revenue is recognized as follows.

Rental, Rental income is recognized using the straight-ling method over the term of the lease.

fnterest Income. Interest income is recognized in profit or loss as it accrues, taking into account the
effective yield on the asset,

Recovery of Accounts Written-off and Other Income. Income from ather sources is recognized when
the amount is actually received.

Expense Recognition
Expenses constitute cost of administering the business. These costs are expensed upon recelpt of

goods, utilization of services, or when the expense Is incurred.
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Leases

The determination of whether an arrangement is or contains a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the Inception date whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on
the use of a specific asset or assets, and the arrangement conveys a right 10 use the asset. A
reassessment is made after inception of the lease only if cne of the fallowing applies:

a. thereis a change In contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arrangement,

b. & renewal option s exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension
was initially included in the lease term;

c. there is a change in the determination of whether fulfilment s dependent on a specified asset;
or

d. there is a substantial change to the asset,

Where reassessment is made, lease accounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), {c) or [d) and at the date of
renewsal or extension period for seenario (h).

Operating Lease - Company as o Lessor. Leases where the Company retains substantially all the risks
and benefits of awnership of the asset are classified as operating leases. Initial direct costs incurred
in negotiating an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognized on a straight line basis over the lease term on the same basis as rental income.

Operating Lease - Company os o Lessee. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset are classified as operating lease. Operating lease payments
are recognized as an expense in profit or loss on 3 straight-line basis over the lease term.

Income Taxes

Current Tax. Current tax assets and liabilities are measurad at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rate used to compute the amount is the one that
has been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred Tox. Deferred tax is provided on tempaorary differences at the reporting date between the
tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are
recoghized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of any unused tax credits
from the excess of minimum corporate income tax [MCIT) over the regular corporate income tax
and any unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable
prefit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and carryforward
benefits of unused MCIT and unused NOLCO can be wtilized. Deferred tax, however, is not
recognized when it arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is
not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit
nor taxahle profit or loss.

Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to a business
combination, or items directly recognized in equity as other comprehensive income
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The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be avallable to allow all or part
of the deferred tax asset to be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets are reassessed at each
reporting date and are recognized to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow the deferred tax asset to be recoverad.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rate that has been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date. '

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority,

Value Added Tax (VAT)
Revenues, expenses and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except

+ where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation
authaority, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as
part of the expense item as applicable; and

» receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of tax inciuded.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from the taxation authority is included as part of “Other current
asset” atcount in the statements of financial position.

Loss Per Share

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing net loss for the year attributable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of common stock outstanding during the year, with
retroactive adjustments for any stock dividends declared ar stock split,

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the welghted average number of common stack
outstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential common stock,

Where the loss per share effect of potential dilutive cormmon stock would be anti-dilutive, basic and
diluted loss per share are stated at the same amount.

Segment Reporting

An operating segment is 3 component of the Company that engages in business activities from
which it may earn revenues and Incur expenses, including revenues and expenses that relate to the
transactions with any of the Company's other components. The Company has only one segment as
halding company,

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to contral the
other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and aperating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to commen control or
comman significant influence.
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Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation {legal or constructive] as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying econamic benefits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the

obligation,

Provisions are made using the best estimates of the amount required to settle the obligation and
are discounted to present values using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the

time value of money and the risks specific to the obligation. Changes in estimates are reflected in
profit or loss in the period they arise.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are not recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed in the notes
to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying economic
benefits is remote. Contingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but are

disclosed when an inflow of econemic benefits is probable.

Events after the Reporling Date

Post year-end events that provide additionz| information about the Company’s financial position at
the end of reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected In the financial statements.  Post
year-end events that are non-adjusting are disclosed in the npotes to financial statements when

material,

Significant Judgment, Accounting Estimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires management to make
judgment, estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements.
The judgment and estimates used in the financial statements are based upon management’s
evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as at the reporting date. While the Company believes
that the assumptions are reasonable and appropriate, significant differences in the actual
experience or sipnificant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the estimated amounts.
Actual results could differ from such estimates,

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongolng basis,  Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

Judgment
in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies, management has made the following

judgment, apart from those involving estimates, which have the maost significant effect on the
amounts recognized in the financial statements,

Assessing the Company’s Ability to Continue as o Going Concern. The Cempany has incurred
continuous losses resulting in a capital deficiency of R114.1 million and BEBS.? million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Management believes this trend to continue for the
twelve months after reporting date. As discussed in Mote 1, the stockholders provide continuing
necessary financial support to the Company while new business opportunities are not yet available.,
Based on this, the financial staterments are prepared on a going concern basis of accounting.
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Classifying Financial instruments. The Company classifies a financial instrument, or its component
parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of a financial
asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument. The substance of a financial instrument, rather
than its legal form, governs its classification in the statements of financial position

The Company classified its proprietary membership shares as an AFS financial assets (see Note 7).

Accounting for Leose Commitments - Company 6s o Lessor. Management exercises judgment in
determining whether substantially all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of the assets
held for lease are retained by the Company. Lease contracts where the Company retains
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are accounted for
as operating leases. Otherwise, these are considered as finance leases.

The Company, as a lessor, has entered into property subleases where it has determined that it
retains all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of those properties As such, the lease
agreements are accounted for as operating leases.

Rent income amounted to B0.3 million, BO.2 million, 81,2 million and in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively (see Note 11).

Accounting for Lease Commitments - Company as a Lessee. The Company, as a lessee, has various
operating lease agreernents. The Company has determined that the risks and benefits of ownership
related to the leased properties are retained by the lessor. Accordingly, the lease is accounted for
as an oparating lease,

Rent expense amounted to B0.2 million, RO.3 million and R1.2 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively (see Note 11),

Clossifying Investment Properties and Owner-Occupied Properties. The Company determines
whether a property qualifies as Investment property. In making its judgment, the Company
considers whether the property generates cash flows largely independent of the other assets held
by an entity. Owner-occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only to the
property but also to the other assets used in the production or supply process

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services ot for administrative
purposes. If these portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted fer as an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. ludgment Is applied in delermining whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualify as investment property. The
Company considers each property separately in making its judgment.

The carrying amount of investment properties amounted to R69.9 million and R68.1 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively (see Note 6).

Evaluoting Contingencies. The Company is a party to certain lawsuits or claims arising from the
ordinary course of business, However, the Company’s management and legal counsel believe that
eventual liabilities under these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material effect of the
Company’s financial statements.
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Estimates and Assumptions
The key estimates concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that has a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts

ol assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are described below.

Estimating Liabilities Related to Previous Development Bank Operations. The estimated liabilities
related ta previous development bank operations of the Company is based on the management's
best estimate of the amount expected to be incurred to settle the obligation.

The liabilities arising from the MOA amounted to B171.1 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016
{see Note 9).

Estimating Impairment Losses on Receivables and Due from Related Parties. The Company
maintains allowance for impairment losses at a level considered adequate to provide for potential
uncollectible receivables. The level of this allowance s evaluated by management on the basis of
tactors that affect the collectibility of the accounts. These factors include, but are not limited to, the
length of the Company’s relationship with the debtor, the debtor’s payment behaviour and known
markel factors, The Company identifies and provides for specific accounts that are doubtfu! of
collection and reviews the age and status of the remaining receivables and establishes a provision
considering, amang others, historical collection and write-off experience.

Impairment |osses on recervables amounted to P2.1 million in 2017. Allowance for impairment
losses amounted B62.4 million and #60.2 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively,
The carrying amount of receivables amounted to 2.5 million and R4.5 million as at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively [see Note 5),

Determining Fair Value of Investment Properties. The Company engaged an independent appraiser
to determine the fair value of its investment properties. In 2017 and 2016, the fair value of
investment properties was based on the valuation performed on March 1, 2018 and April 3, 2017,
respectively. Management evaluated that the fair value of investment property determined on
appraisal date approximates the fair value as at reporting date since there were no significant
changes in the condition of the property and economic environment between those dates. The fair
value was determined using the market data approach in 2017 and 2016. Market data appreach
involves the comparison of the land to those that are more or less located within the vicinity of the
appraised property and are subject of recent sales and offerings. Adjustments were made to arrive
at the market value by considering the location, size, shape, utility, desirability and time element.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring fair value of investment properties
are discussed in Notes & and 16.

Gain on fair value changes which was recognized In the statements of comprehensive income
armounted to BL7 million and #1.9 million in 2017 and 2016, respectively. The carrying value of
investment properties amounted to R69.9 million and #68.1 million as at Decermnber 31, 2017 and
2018, respectively {see Note &),

Assessing Impairment of Monfinaneio! Assets The Company assesses impairment on nonfinancial
assets whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset
rmay not be recoverable. The factors that the Company conslders important which could trigger an
impairment review include the following:

s significant underperformance relative to expected historical or projected future operating results:



= significant chanpes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the stratepy for overall business,
or

e significant negative Industry or economic trends.
No impairment lesses were recognized in 2017, 2006 and 2015,

The carrying amount of the Company’s nonfinancial assets are as follows:

Mote Zﬂ}?‘ 2016
Investment properties 6 R69,876,000  B6S,135,000
Equipment B 1,538,190 57,200
Other current assets 208,359 B0O8, 905

Assessing Impairment of AFS Financiol Assets, The Company treats AFS financial assets as impaired
when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below its cost or whero
other objective evidence of impairment exists, The determination of what is “significant” or
“profonged” requires judgment, The Company treats “significant” generally as 20% or more and
“prolonged” as greater than 12 months for quoted equity securities.  In addition, the Company
evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted instruments and the
future cash flows and the discount factors for unquoted instruments

No impairment losses were recognized in 2017, 2016 and 2015, The carrying amount of AFS
financial assets amounted to B0.3 million and BO.2 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016
{see Note 7).

Assessing Realizability of Deferred Tox Assets. The Company reviews its deferred tax assets at each
reporting date and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is ne longer probable that
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax assets to be utilized.

The Company’s unrecognized deforred tax assets amounted to #44.6 million and #36.2 million as at
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Management believes that there will be no sufficient
future taxable profits against which these deferred tax assets can be utilized {sce Note 12),

Cash

This account consists of:

2017 2016
Cash on hand E5,2727 BL,277
Cash In banks 1,714,954 2,696,686
B 1,720,231 R2,701,963

TN

Cash in banks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Interest income from cash in banks
amounted to R13,474, 844,054 and R208,813 in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
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Receivables

This account consists of:

Note 2017 2016
Loans receivable RG2,277,740 #E2,277,740
Advances to officers, employees and

service providers 2,126,335 2,134,335
Rent receivable 11 453,932 381,932
64,858,007 64,794,007

Less allowance for impairment losses 62,404,075 60,277,740

F2,453,932 #4 516,267

Loans receivable are related to the Company's previous bank operations. The unimpaired balance of
loans receivable amounting to £2.0 million is left under an escrow Tund as at December 31, 2017 and

2016,

Advances to officers, employees and service providers represent unliquidated, noninterest-bearing
advances for processing of the transfer of title of properties to PDIC and BDO, These are liguidated
upon the accomplishment of the purposes for which the advances were granted.

Movements in allowance for impairment losses are as follows:

2017

Advances 1o
officers, employees

. Loans receivable end service providers  Rent recelvable Total

Balance at beginning of I o
YEAr RGO, 27T, 740 [ B RGO,277,740
Provision - 2,126,335 - 2,126,335
Balance a1 end of year R6D,277,740 P2,126,335 P62,404,075

Mo impairment loss was recognized in 2016 and 2015.

The Company recovered some accounts written-off In prior years amounting to RD.2 million,
RO.7 million and RO.6 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Investment Properties
hMovements in this account are as follows:
. 2017 2016
Cost R38,020,000  P38,020,000
Movement on fair value changes:
Ealance at heginning of year 30,115,000 28,214,000
Gain on fair value change 1,741,000 1,501,000

Balance at end of year

31,856,000 30,115,000

P69,876,000  ®64,135,000
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This account represents parcels of commercial land located in Legazpi City, Albay, which are held for
capital appreciation,

The fair values of the investment properties as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are based on
valuations performed by accredited independent appraiser. The appraised value of the investment
properties were arrived at using the market data approach, In this approach, the value of the land
was based on sales and listings of comparable property registered within the vicinity. This requires
the adjustments of comparable property by reducing reasonable comparative sales and listings to a
common denominator. This was done by adjusting the differences between the subject property
and those actual sales and listings regarded as comparable. The properties used as bases of
comparison are situated within the vicinity of the subject property. The comparison was premised
on the factors of location, size, and shape of the lot, time element and others.

Market Data Approach
significant Unobservable Inputs o 2017 2016
Price per square meter R20,000-022,857  ©35,000-R40,000
Value adjustments -5% to 75% -5% to 40%

The significant unobservable inputs to fair valuation are as follows:

Price per Squore Meter:  estimated value prevailing in the real estate market depending on the
locatlon, area, shape and time element,

Value Adiustments: adjustments are made to bring the comparative values in approximation to the
investment praperty taking into account the location, size, architectural features and etc.

Market Data Approach involves the comparison of the land to those that are more or less located
within the vicinity of the appraised property and are subject of recent sales and offerings,
Adjustments were made to arrive at the market value by considering the location, size, shape, utility,
desirability and time element

Sensitivity Analysis. The factors considered in determining the fair value of the property are the
(a) location of the property with reference to quality neighborhood, (b) size, {c) physical
characteristics such as shape, topography and road frontage, and (d) time element.

AFS Financial Assets

The Company's AFS financial assets consist of a club share in Valley Golf & Country Club, The fair
value of the club share is determined by reference to published price quotations in an active market,
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Mowvements in this account are as follows:

_ 2Mm7 2016
Cost 200,000 200,000
Unrealized gain (loss) on fair value changes
Balance at beginning of year 40,000 20,000
Fair value change 60,000 (10,000)
Balance at end of year ; 100,000 40,000
T P300,000  F240,000
8. Eguipment
Movements in this account are as follows:
2017
Computer Transpartation
Equipment Equipment ___Total
Cost
Balance at beginning of year R85,800 R- RA5,B00
Additions - 1,577,000 1.5??,00{]
Balance at end of year 85,800 1,577,000 1,662,800
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 28,600 - 28,600
Depreciation 17,160 78,850 96,010
Balance at end of year 45,760 78,850 124,610
Met Carrying Amount R40,040 #1,498,150 R1,538,190
2016
Computer
L Equipment_
Cost
Balance at beginning and end of year _B85800
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 11,440
Depractavion SLIE0
Balance at end of year 28,600

Net Carrying Amount - B57,200
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Accrued Expenses and Other Current Liabilities

g
This account consists of;
o 2017 2016
Liabilities arising fram the MOA R171,104,872 F171,109 292
Dividends payable 10,985,443 10,985,443
Rental deposits 5,972,642 5,972,642
Accrued expenses 1,763,350 1,868,469
Cthers ] 3,245,231 3,225,036
crsmo P193,071,645 P193160,882
Liabilities arising from the MOA pertain to estimated transfer taxes and registration fees related to
the transfer of assets from its development bank operaticns to BDO/PDIC and other related
liabilities, primarity from unremitted collection of assigned receivables and sale of foreclosed
properties for the account of PDIC {see Note 1), This account also includes pravision for probable
iosses to cover estimated losses from claims, As allowed under PAS 37, Provisions, Contingent
tiabilities and Contingent Assets, certain information is not disclosed until final settlernent as It
might prejudice the Company’s position on the matter
Dividends payable pertains to the Company’s dividend for cumulative, nonparticipating, nonvoting,
redeemable and convertible preferred stock that were declared prior to the Company's incurrence
of deficit,
Rental deposits represent long-outstanding rental deposits that have not been claimed by the
Cornpany's previous tenants.
Accrued expenses pertain to accrual of outside services, professional fees and association dues,
among others. These are normally settled in the next financial year,
Others include statutory payables and refunds of tenants related to the Company's previous
operations, These are noninterest-bearing, unsecured and are normally settled in the next financial
year or upon demand,
10, Capitaﬁiu:k a N

The movement in this account are as follows:

1y 2016 s 15
Humber of Momber of Mumthie af

Shares Amount Shares Amaolnt Share Amatnt
Commonstack - B1 par value )
Authorizad 3,000,000,000  R3,000,000,000 A000,000,000  #3,000, 000,000 3,000,000, 1000 Pﬂwmnm
Subscribed: - ————
Balance ot begining ol year TO0,258,616 00,298,616 B9, D30, %00 L%E, 930,206 BOE,230,906 G9R, 030,206
Capweitizn of prefered
__iEainminn stock - - 1,367,110 1,360,710 - =

Balanc e ot end of year 700258616 WI00298,616  TOO298E16  PIODISELIN  GUSG30.H0b _ RadA550 006
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2017 : A6 His
Humber of = Number of Humber of
i Shares Amount Shares Armoun: Shres Amaunt

Preferred stoch - B1 par valae
fﬂll{:-_ri?ﬂrﬂmm 2,000,000,000  B2,0400, 000,000 2,000,000.000  ®2,000,000,000 2000000 P2 00,00
Iaaed and cutstanding: R
Balance 3t begnning of pear 14,366,260 14,366 260 45,558,000 AH,552 000 A8, 558 O L3, L5 11140
Converson of praferec

£o comman stock i - [34,192,740) 134,392 340) - -
Balance at end of et 14,366,260 :a,aﬁﬁsu 14,366,260 14,365,260 48,555,000 48,559,000

714,664 BE76 FI18 664, BT 714,664,870 P71, 684,676 747 ARDGT6 P7d '-‘,-IlE'_'I,.fJLI'G’_

IR

The preferred stock has the following salient features:

a. Cumulative, nonparticipating, nonvoting, redeemable and convertible at the option of the
Company.

b. Cash dividend rate initially at 4.50% per annum based on par value, which shall be automatically
adjusted to 9.00% per annum upon full payment of the subscription price,

¢. The Company may, at any time at its option, wholly or partially redeem the outstanding
preferred stack plus accrued dividends thereon, When such call for redemption is made, the
holders of the preferred stock may opt to convert the preferred stock to commen stock.

On October 10, 2001, the BOD approved an option to stockholders of preferred shares of extending
the maturity of shares for another five years for a 2% additional dividend on the 9% regular
dividend.

11.

Leases

a. The Company entered Inlo cancellable lease agreements for a peried ranging from one to
thirteen years renewable upon mutual agreement of the parties and subleased the properties
under the same terms. One of the leased and subleased properties that commenced on
January 16, 2003 was cancelled on August 31, 2015

b, On April 1, 2015, the Company entered into a cancellable lease agreement with Bright Kindie
Resources & Investments, Inc. for its office space for a period of nine months up to
December 31, 2015,

Rent income amounted to RO.3 million, RC.3 million and ®1.2 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015,
respectively. Rent receivable amounted to B0.5 million and #0.4 million as at December 31, 2017
and 2016, respectively (see Note 5),

Related rent expense amounted to #0.2 million, 0.2 millien and B1.2 million in 2017, 2016 and
2015, respectively.
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12, Income Tax

The provision for current income tax represents MCIT in 2017, 2016 and 2015.

The reconciliation of provision for income tax at the statutory income tax rate to the provision for
Income tax shown in the statements of comprehensive income follows:

B ) o 2017 2016 2015
Income tax computed at statutory tax rate (P8,371,336} (P7,704,035) (89,198, 765)
Mowvement in unrecopnized deferred 1ax
assets 8,425,944 8,308,122 9,297,469
Tax effects of;
Expired NOLCO and MCIT 474,258 = =
Interest income already subjected to
final tax (4,042) (12,216} (B2.644)
__Nondeductible expense 2,410 = .
-  #531,734 P590,871 P36,060

The Company did not recognize deferred tax assets on the following temporary differences since the
management believes that it may not be probable that future taxable profits will be available to
allow utilization of the following tax benefits:

B B 2017 2016
NOLCO P25,806,327 17,944,832
Allowance for impairment losses on receivables 18,721,223 18,083,322
MCIT 65,565 135,017

P44,593,115 #36,163,171

A s,

The deferred tax liability as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 pertains te the gain on fair value
changes of investment properties amounting to B9.6 million and #9.0 million as at December 31,
2017 and 2016, respectively.

As at December 31, 2017, unused NOLCO that can be claimed as deduction from future taxable
income are as foliows:

Year incurred Expiry Date Armount Expired Balance
2m7 2020 F27,524,558 P—  B27,524,558
2016 2019 27,625,164 - 27,625,169
2015 2018 30,871,364 = 30,871,364
2014 2017 1,319,575 1,319,575 b

EET 340,666 #1,319575  PBE,021,091

& — T L
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As at December 31, 2017, unused MCIT that can be claimed as deduction from future taxable

liability are as follows:

Year Incurred Expiry Date Amount Expired Balance
2017 2020 F3,934 - £5,934
2016 2019 20,571 - 20,571
2015 2018 36,060 = 36,060
2014 2017 78,386 78,386 =

B143,951 B7E, 386 BGS5.565

13. Related Party Transactions

Outstanding balances and transaction with related parties are as follows:

Parent Company and Other Related Party

Mature of
Transaction

Amount of Transaction

Outstanding Balance

2017

20146 2017 2016

Due from related parties

Parent Company Advances RZ0.000,000 EL0,000,000  RG6,120,000 #40,000,000

Entity under common

__tontrol Advances 12,300,000 - 6,300,000 -
' - - R12,420,000 P40,000,000

Nontrade

Eﬂf}””w“’fﬂ“”f Managemen! fee  B23,092,784 $23.092, 784 B F—

Outstanding balances are unsecured, noninterest-bearing, payable on demand and settioment
ocours in cash, The Company has not made any provision for impairment losses relating to the
amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken at each reporting date by taking
into consideration the financial position of the related party and the market at which the related

party operates,

On December 22, 2015, the Company entersd into a management agreement with the Parent
Company to oversee and supervise the Company’s business matters until December 31, 2017.

Key Management Personnel

The Company has no key management personnel. Its accounting and administrative functions are
provided by a related party at no cost to the Company.

e e ———

14. Commitments and Contingencies

a. Inthe normal course of the Company's prior eperations, there are outstznding commitments,
pending litigations and contingent liabilities which are not reflected in the financial statements.
The Company does not anticipate significant losses as a result of these transactions.
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b. As discussed in Note 1, under the MOA dated September 12, 2002 between the Company and
BDO/PDIC, the Company agreed to transfer its assets and liabilities from its development banking
operations, The Company agreed to hold BDO free from any contingent claims, labor and minority
issues and concerns arising from related assets and liabilities still managed by the Company until
these are assumed by BDO. Further, the Company agreed to indemnify BDO against losses, claims
and damages BDO may suffer in the event such contingent claims, labar and minority issues affect
BRO's rights under the MOA.

The Company has accounted for separately, assets from its development banking operation
pursuant to the MOA. It still has in its possession titles of real estate properties from its
development banking operations with an aggregate fair value of R527.8 million and #542 .4 million
as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Moreover, the Company has cash of
#13.9 million as at December 31, 2017 arising from the proceeds of sale of a property.

£. The Company is a defendant in legal actions anising from normal business activities. Manapement
believes that these actions are without merit or that the ultimate liability, if any, resulting from
these will not materially affect the Company’s financial position and results of operations.

15. Loss Per Share

The basic and diluted loss per share were computed as fallows:

o T 2017 2016 ED;EH
Net loss - . (P28,035,686)  [R26,270,986)  (R30,698,611)
Less dividend rights af preferred stockholders
_ fortheyear 1,582,671 1,581,671 5,346,164
Loss attributable to cammon stockholders {30,017,357) (27,852,657) (36.044,775)
Divided by weighted average number

of common stack L 700,298,616 699,728,737 698,930,906

Lass per share - basic and mgd ' {RPO.04) {B0.04) zae (R0.05)

The conversion feature of the Company's preferred stock has potential antidilutive effect
{i.e., it decreases loss per share). Therefore, diluted loss per share is equal to basic loss per share.

16. Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Company's principal financial instruments comprise of cash in banks, receivables {excluding
advances to officers, employees and service providers), due from related parties, AFS financial
assets, accrued expenses and other current liabilities (excluding statutory payables).

The main risks arising from the financial instruments of the Company are credit risk and liquidity
risk. The BOD reviews and approves policies for managing the risks.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk of loss that may arise on outstanding financial instruments should a
counterparty default on its obligation. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily from
cash in banks and receivables (excluding advances 1o officers, employees and service providers) and
due from related parties. The carrying amount of the financial assets represent the Company’s
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to financial assets.
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The aging analyses of financial assets as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are as follows:

2017
Nelther Past Past Due But Not Impalred
Dwe Nor Less Than Past Due and
Sty s Impaired __ 30Days  31-60 Days Impaired Total
Cash In banks 1,714,950 - B e 1,714,954
Recelvablng® 2,453,932 - = 60,277,740 62,711,672
Due from related parties 12,420,000 - - = 12,420,000
AFS firancial assets 300,000 - o = 300,000
- T W16,888,886 B B~  PG0,277,740  #77,166,626
fLapluding pefvorrces (o officers, enplogecs and service providers arseiating to X milhon.
2016
Nether Past Past Due But Notimpaired
e Mo Less Than Past Due and
hmpared 30 Days 31-60 Days Irmpialred Total
Cash In banks #2,696,680 B B R #2,696,686
Receivaldes® 4,381,932 = 7 G0, 277,140 62 659 672
Due from sglated pastieg AQLO00, 000 - - = A0,000,000
AFS financlalassets 260000 - - - 240,000
B _BAS31861E - F— 60,270,740 P105.59G,35H

*Encludeg advonoes (o ailicen, employees ang ervicr providers amouniing to B2 1 milion

Credit Quality of Financie! Assets, The credit quality of the Company’s financial assels are being
reanaged by using internal credit ratings such as high grade and standard grade.

High grade - pertains to counterparty who is not expected by the Company to default in settiing its
obligations, thus credit risk exposure i« minimal,

Standard grade - include financial assets that are considered moderately realizable and some
accounts which would require some reminder follow-ups to obtain settlement from the
counterparty.

The Company has assessed the credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor
impaired as high grade.

Receivables are classified as substandard grade since these are receivables from third parties. The
Company assessed these recelvables as uncoliectible and provided allowance fer impairment losses
amounting to PRO.3 million as al December 31, 2017 and 2016.

Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able to settle or meet its financial obligations
when they fall due. The Company aims to maintain flexibility by maintaining sufficient cash to meet

all foreseeable cash needs,

The Company also maintains a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility. The policy of
the Company is to first exhaust lines available from affiliated companies before local bank lines are
availed of. The Company seeks 1o manage its liguid funds through cash planning on a weekly basis.
The Company uses historical figures and experiences and forecasts from its cash receipts and
disbursements. As part of its liquidity risk management, the Company regularly evaluates its
projected and actual cash flows. It also continuously assesses conditions in the financlal markets for
apportunities to pursue fund ralsing activities,
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As at December 31, 2017 and 2016, accrued expenses and other current liabilities (excluding
statutory payables) amounting to B193.1 million and P193.2 million, respectively, are generally due
and demandahle.

Fair Values
The following table presents the carrying amounts and falr values of the Company’s assets and

liabilities measured at fair value and the corresponding fair value hierarchy:

2017 2015
Carrying Carrying

L Amount Fair Value Amount  Fair Value
Financial Assets

Cash Rr1,720,231 R1,720,231 p2, 701,963 B2, 701,963
Recewables® 2,453,932 2,453,932 2,381,932 2,381,932
bue from refated parties 12,420,000 12,420,000 40,000,000 40,000,000
AFS financial assets 300,000 300,000 240,000 240,000

#16,894,163 16,894,163 B45,323 895 BA45,123 895

.

Monfinancial Asset

Investment properties FG69,876,000 R6Y,876,000 BGE 135,000 PGHE,135,000

———

Financial Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current
liabifities * * 153,051,236 R193,051,236  £193,154,189  P193,154,189

*Lwchenag advinices to officers, eapiovees pid Seowice provdors.
*EEyciuding statutory oopalles.

Current Financial Assets and Liobifities. The carrying amounts of cash, receivables (excluding advances
from officers, employees and service providers), due from related parties and accrued expenses and
other current liabilities {excluding statutory payables) approximate their fair values due to the short
term nature and maturities of the transactions. The falr value measurement of current financial assets
and liabilities is classified as Level 3 {Significant unchservable inputs).

AFS fnvestment. The fair value of this financlal asset is determined by reference to quoted market
bid prices at the close of business at the reporting date. The fair value measurement of
AFS Investment is classified as Level 1 [Quoted in an active market),

fnvestment Properties. The fair value of investment properties is determined based on valuations
performed by accredited independent appraiser. The appralsed value of the investment properties
were arrived at using the market data approach. The falr value measurement of investment
properties is classified as Level 3 [Significant unobservable inputs).

Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company’s capital management is to safeguard the Company's ability

to continue its operations as a going concern and to maximize shareholder value. The Company
manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to i, in light of changes in economic
conditions, To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust dividend paymenl
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders, or issve new stock. Mo changes were made in the
objectives, policies or processes for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2015,



B A ik B T, o Itk Voo

4 . B Ll I B St | M NErErST T ) Qe e pled 30 SELN -\.-.". saveoke Aha
@ Reves Tacapone & Co. g RN e silic o o
3 PIRSE PRENCTIL S 5 W 158 SLLL TI0Ns R Fas L AR
Wieksis A e Lania e Lo

REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stockholders and the Board of Directors
Prime Media Holdings, Inc.

16th Floor, Citibank Tower

8741 Paseo de Roxas

Makati City

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Prime Media Holdings, Inc. {the Company),
a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp., as at and for the year ended December 31, 2017 on
which we have rendered our report dated April 20, 2018,

In compliance with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68, as amended, we are stating that the Company
has 1,248 common stockholders and 265 preferred stockholders owning one hundred (100) or more
shares pach.

REYES TACANDONG & Co.

3
A Qisg, B
BELINDA B, FERNAMDO
Fartner
CPA Cerdificate No. B1207
Tax ldentification Mo, 102-086-538-000
BOA Accreditation Mo, 4782, Valid until December 31, 2018
SEC Accreditation No. 1027-AR-2 Group A
Valid ung! March 15, 2020
BIF Accredilation No. 0B-005144-004-2017
Valid until Janwary 13, 2020
FTR Mo, 6607958
lsued Jamuary 3, 2018, Makati City

April 20, 2018
Makati City, Motro Manila
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT AUDITORS
TO ACCOMPANY FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR FILING WITH THE
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION

The Stockhelders and the Board of Directors
Prime Media Holdings, Inc,

16th Floar, Citibank Towear

8741 Paseo de Roxas

Maliati City

We have audited in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, the financial statements of Prime
Media Holdings, Inc. (the Company), a subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp., as at and for the
year then ended December 31, 2017 included in this Form 17-A and have issued our report thereon dated
April 20, 2018. Our audit was made for the purpose of forming an opinian on the financial statements taken
as a whole. The accompanying supplementary schedules as at December 31, 2017 are the responsibility of
the Company’s management. These supplementary schedules include the following:

= Adoption of Effective Accounting Standards and Interpretations

= Financial Ratios

*  Reconciliation of Retained Earnings Available for Dividend Declaration
*  Schedules reguired by Part Il of SRC Rule 68, as amended

These schedules are presented for purposes of complying with Securities Regulation Code Rule 68 Part Il as
amended, and are not part of the financial statements. This information have been subjected to the auditing
pracedures applizd in the audit of the financial statements, including comparing such infarmation directly 1o
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial staterments or to the financial
statements themselves. In our opinion, the information is fairly stated in all material respect in relation to the
financial statements taken as a whale,

REYES TACANDONG 8 Co.

§
M [61 M

BELINCA B, FERNANDD
Partner
CPa Certificate Mo §1207
Tax ldentification Mo, 102-086-538-000
BOa Accraditalion Mo, 4787 Valid until December 31, 2008
SEC Accreditation Mo, 1022-AR-2 Growp A

Valid untit BMarch 15, 2020
BIR Accreditation to. 08-005144-004-2017

Walld el Jaruary 13, 2020
PTR Mo, BE0T958

Issued lanuary 3, 2018, Makati City

April 20, 2018
hakati City, Metro Manila
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

{A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF ADOPTION OF
EFFECTIVE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS

DECEMBER 31, 2017

Amendments to PFRS 4: Financial Guarantee Contracts

Mot Not 1
Title Aopted Adopted | Applicable
Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements
Conceptual Framework Phase A: Objectives and qualitative characteristics v
z' —
PFRS Practice Statement Management Commentary l v
Philippine Financial Reporting Standards (PFRS)
| Fteg s
Not Mot
PFRS Title Adopted | o soted: | Anlicable
PERS 1 (Revised) First-tirme Adeption of Philippine Financizl Reporting o
Standards
Amendments to PFRS 1: Additional Exemptions for iy
First-time Adopters
Amendment to PFRS 1: Limited Exemption from
Comparative PFRS 7 Disclosures for First-time v
Adopters
Armendments to PFRS 1: Severe Hyperinflation and v
Rermoval of Fixed Date for First-time Adopters |
Amendments to PFRS 1; Gavernment Loans ' v
PFRS 2 Share-based Payment v
Amendments to PFRS 2: VYesting Conditions and v
Cancallations
Amendments to PFRS 2: Group Cash-settled Share- ”
based Payment Transactions
PFRS 3 [Revised) | Business Combinations v
Amendment to PFRS 3; Accounting for Cantingent 7
Consideration in a Business Combination
Amendment to PFRS 3. Scope Exceptions for Joint v
Ventures
PFRS 4 Insurance Contracts v
v




; Mot Mot
PFRS Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
PFRS 5 Nnn-cutrmnt Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued v
Cperations
Amendment to PFRS 5: Changes in Methods of Disposal v
PFRS 6 Exploration for and Evaluation of Mineral Resources v
PFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures v
Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial v
Assets
Amendments to PFRS 7: Reclassification of Financial v
Assets - Effective Date and Transition
Amendments to PFRS 7: Improving Disclosures about 7
Financial Instruments
Amendments to PFRS 7: Disclosures - Transfers of >
Financial Assets
Amendments to PFRS 7 Disclosures - Offsetting y
Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities
Amendment to PFRS 7: Servicing Contracts v
Amendment to PFRS 7: Applicability of the
Amendments to PFRS 7 to Condensed Interim Financial ¥
Statements
FFRS 8 Operating Sepments v
Amendments to PERS 8: Aggregation of Operating 7]
Sepments
amendments to PFRS 8 Reconciliation of the Total of .
the Reportable Segments’ Assets to the Entity’s Assets
PFRS 10 Consclidated Financial Statements v
Amendments to PFRS 10; Transition Guidance ¥
Amendments to PEFRS 100 Investment Entities v
Amandments to PFRS 10: Investment Entities: Applying v
the Consolidation Exception
PFRS 11 Hoint Arrangements v
Amendments to PFRS 11: Transition Guidance v
Amendments to PFRS 11: Accounting for Acquisitions v
of Interests in loint Operations
PFRS 12 Disclosure of Interests in Other Entitias i
Amendments to PFRS 12: Transition Guidance v




PE J it Adopted | N NG
A3 Tie OPIEC | Adopted | Applicable
. e e S——
Armendments ta PFRS 12: Investment Entities v
Amendments to PFRS 12: Investment Entitips: Applying v
the Cansalidation Exception
Amendment to PFRS 12: Clarification of the Scope of .
the Standard )
PERS 13 Fair Value Measurement v
Amendment to PFRS 13; Short-term receivables and ‘/ —1
Payables
| Amendment to PFRS 13: Portfolio Exception v ’
PFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts v J
Philippine Accounting Standards [PAS)
Not Not
PAS Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
PAS 1 [Revised) |Presentation of Financial Statements v
i Amendments to PAS 1: Puttable Financial Instruments i
and Obligations Arising on Liquidation
Amendments to PAS 1: Presentation of |tems of Other .
Comprehensive Income
Amendment to PAS 1: Clarification of the v
Requirements for Comparative Presentation
Amendments to PAS 1: Disclosure Initiztive ¥
PAS 2 Inventories v
PAS 7 Staterment of Cash Flows v
Amendments to PAS 7: Disclosure |nitiative v
PAS 8 Accounting Palicies, Changes in Accounting Estimates v
and Errars
PAS 10 Events after the Reporting Period v
PAS 11 Construction Contracts v
PAS 12 Income Taxes vy
Amendments to PAS 12 - Deferred Tax: Recovery of 7,
Underlying Assets
Amendments to PAS 12: Recognition of Deferred Tax v
rﬂassets for Unrealized Losses l




l Not Mot
PAS Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
PAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment v
Amendment to PAS 16: Classification of Servicing y
Equipment
Amendment to PAS 16; Revaluation Method -
Proportionate Restatement of Accumulated o
| Depreciation
Amendment to PAS 16: Property, Plant and Equipment
- Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation V-
and Amaortization
| Amendment to PAS 16: Apriculture: Bearer Plants ¥
PAS 17 Leases
PAS 18 Revenue v
PAS 19 I
f v
(Revised) Employee Benefits
Amendment to PAS 19: Defined Benefit Plans: v
Employee Contributions
Amendment to PAS 19: Discount Rate: Regional Market -
Issue
PAS 20 Accounting for Glnuemment Grants and Disclosure of v
Government Assistance
PAS 21 The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates |
Arnendment: Net Investment in a Foreign Operation
PAS 23 (Revised) | Borrowing Costs
PAS 24 (Revised) | Related Party Disclosures v
Amendment to PAS 24; Key Management Personnel v
PAS 26 Accounting and Reparting by Retirement Benoefit Plars v
PAS 27
o ; 2 v
(Amended] separate Financial Statements
Amendments to PAS 27; Investment Entities v
Amendments to PAS 27: Equity Method in Separate 3
Financial Statements
RS Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures v
{Amended)
Amendments to PAS 28: Investment Entities: Applying v
the Consalidation Exception | }




PAS

Title

Adopted

Adopted

Mot i

Applicable

Not

PAS 29

Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies

v

PAs 32

Financial Instruments; Disclosure and Presentation

Financial Instruments; Presentation

Amendments to PAS 32: Puttable Financial Instruments
and Obligations Arising on Liguidation

| Amendment to PAS 32: Classification of Rights lssues

Amendments to PAS 32: Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liahilities

Amendments to PAS 32: Tax Effect of Distribution to
Holders of Equity Instruments

PAS 23

Earnings per Share

FAS 34

Interim Financial Reporting

Armendment to PAS 34: Interim Financial Reporting and
Segment Information for Total Assets and Liabilitics

Amendment to PAS 34: Disclosure of Information
‘Elsewhere in the Interim Financial Report’

PAL 30

Impairment of Assets

Amendments to PAS 36: Recoverable Amaunt
Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets :

i

PAS 37

PAS 38

Intangible Assets

Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets

Amendment to PAS 38: Revaluation Methad -
Proportionate Restatement ol Accumulated
Amortization

Amendment to PAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable
Methods of Depreciation and Amortization

PAS 39

Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement

Amendments to PAS 39: Transition and Initial
Recognition of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

Amendments to PAS 39: Cash Flow Hedge Accounting
of Farecast Intragroup Transactions

Amendments to PAS 39: The Fair Value Option

Amendments to PAS 39: Financial Guarantee Contracts

| Armendments to PAS 39: Reclassification of Financial
Assety




[ Not Not
d
PAS Title Adopte Adopted | Applicable
Amendments to PAS 39 Reclassification of Financial p
Assets - Effective Date and Tranzition
Amendments PAS 39: Embedded Derivatives v
Amendment to FAS 3% Eligible Hedged ltems 4
Amendments ta PAS 39: Novation of Derivatives and e
Continuation of Hedge Accounting
PAS 41 Investment Property ¥
Amendment to PAS 40: Clarifying the Interrelationship
betwesn PFRS 3 and PAS 40 when Classifying Property v |
as Investment Property or Owner-occupied Property i
Fas 41 Agriculture v
Amendment to PAS 41: Agriculture: Bearer Plants | ¥
P S o e ey |
Philippine Interpretations
. Mot Mot
Interpretations Title (il
pretat Adopt Adopted | Applicable |
IERIC 1 Clhangml:n .E.xrlstmg Decommissioning, Restaration and s
Similar Liabilities
FRIC 2 Members '.:..»hEI-rE in Co-operative Entities and Similar 7
Instruments
Cretermining Whether an I i
iERIC 4 etermining Whether an Arrangement Contains a .
Lease
IFRIC © Rights to Interests ansing from Decommissioning, i
Restoration and Environmental Rehabilitation Funds |
IFRIC & Liabilities arising from Participating in a Specific Market " ]
- Waste Electrical and Electranic Equiprment i
(FRIC 7 Applying the Restatement Approach under PAS 29 b
Financial Reporting in Hyperinflationary Economies
IFRIC & Reassessment of Embedded Derivatives v
Amendments to Philippine Interpretation IFRIC-9: v
Embedoed Derivatives
IFRIC 10 Interim Financial Reporting and Impairment ¥
IFRIC 12 “ Service Concession Arrangements ¥
IFRIC 13 Customer Loyalty Programmes v




: : Mot Mot
Interpretations Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
IFRIC 14 PAS 19 - The Limit on a Defined Benefit Asset, y
Minimum Funding Requirements and their Interaction :
Amendments to Philippine Interpretations IFRIC- 14, v 1
Prepayments of a Minimum Funding Reguirement
IFRIC 16 Hedges of a Net investment in a Foreign Operation W
IFRIC 17 Distributions of Non-cash Assets to Owners v
IFRIC 18 Transfers of Assets from Customers v
IFRIC 19 Extinguishing Financial Liabilities with Equity y
fnstruments r
[ERIC 20 Stll'rﬂpmg Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface ”
hine
IFRIC 21 Levies v
PHILIPPINE INTERPRETATIONS - SIC
' ) Mot Not
Interpretations Title Adopted Adopted | Applicable
SIC-7 Introduction of the Eurn ¥ {
<ie10 ;' Governlmem' é.ssu.s.tance = Mo Specific Relation to o
| Operating Activities
5iC-15 Operating Leases - Incentives v
- Income Taxes - Changes in the Tax Status of an Entity
SIC-25 : ; v
ar its Shareholders
Evaluating the Substance of Transactions Invalving the
SIC-27 ¥
Legal Form of a Lease |
“"’ =
SIC-24 Service Concession Arrangements; Disclosures. v |
Sic-31 Hw-?jnue - Barter Transactions Involving Advertising - i
Services
siC-32 Intangible Assets - Web Site Costs v




PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

FINANCIAL RATIOS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Below is a schedule showing financial soundness indicators for the year ended December 31, 2017 and

2016:

2017 2016
Current/Liquidity Ratio 0.09 0.25
Current assets F16,802,522 R45.027,135
Current liahilities = 193,071,645 193,160,582
Solvency Ratio (0.14) (0.13)
Loss before income tax, depreciation, and
amaortization (27,B08,442) {25,662,955)
Total labilities (excluding deferred tax
fia bility] 193,071,645 193,160,882
Debt-to-equity Ratic {1.69] {2.25]
Total liabilities (excluding deferred tax
liability} 193,071,645 193,160 882
Total equity (114,111,733) (85,736,047
Asset-to-equity Ratio (0.78) {1.35)
Total assets BE,516,712 116,459,335

Total equity

(114,111,733}

{85,736,047)

interest rate coverage Ratio

Pretax income before interpst [27,904,452) (75,680,115)
Interest expense & &
Profitability Ratio “ i
Med loss {28,435,686) (26,270,986}
Capital deficiency {114,111,733) (85,736,047)




PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC,

{A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULE OF COMPANY’S
RETAINED EARNINGS AVAILABLE FOR DIVIDEND DECLARATION

DECEMBER 31, 2017

Unappropriated retained earnings {deficit) as shown in tho
financial statements at beginning of year

Cumulative gain on fair value changes of investment properties

Deferred tax liability at beginning of year

Armount

(P2,915,362,792)
(30,115,000}
9,034,500

Unappropriated retained earnings (deficit) as adjusted to
available for dividend declaration at beginning of year

Net loss during the year closed to retained earnings

Gain on fair value changes of investment propertics

Movement in deferred tax liabilities

(2,936,443,292)
(28,435,686)
(1,741,000)
522,300

Total retained earnings {deficit) avallable for dividend

e

declaration at end of year

(=

PR

__{P2,966,097,678)

Reconciliation:

Amount

Unappropriated retained earnings (deficit) as shown in the
financial statements at end of year

Cumulative gain on fair value changes of investment properties

Deferred tax liability at end of year

(P2,943,798,478)
(31,856,000}
9,556,800

Total retained earnings (deficit) available for dividend
declaration at end “‘-‘f.*‘-f’_[_

(E2,966,097 678)




PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

SEC SUPPLEMENTARY SCHEDULES AS REQUIRED BY PAR.

& PART Il OF SRC RULE 68, AS AMENDED
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Table of Contents

Schedule - Bestrption i rage
A Financial Assets e
0 ﬁtmc?unz; Hece!va!:ie from Directors, Officers, Employees, He.lated N/A
Parties, and Principal Stockholders (Other than Related Parties) 7
g Indebtedness to Related Parties NS
[ Guarantees of Securities of Other lssuers L
E Capital Stock 2

F Conglomerate Map 3
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SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
SEC FORM 17-0)
QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 17 OF THE SECURITIES
REGULATION CODE AND SRC RULE 17(2) (b) THEREUNDER

1. Far the quarierly period ended September 30, 2018
2. Commission identification number 22401

3. BIR Tax Identification Ne, 000-491-007

4. Exacl name ol issuer as specified inits charter PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC,

5. Province, country or ather jurisdiclion of incorporation or organization METRO MANILA

6. Industry Classification r;.udu;[:| {(SEC Use Only)

7. Address of issuer’s principal office Pastal Code
16" FLOOR CITIBANK TOWEHR. 8741 PASEO DE ROXAS MAKATICITY 1226

&, Issuer's telephone number, including area code 831-4479
9. Farmer name, former address and [ormer fiscal year, if changed since last report
10, Securilies registerad pursuant to Scetions & and 12 of the Cade, or Sections 4 and § of the REA

I'itle of each Class MNumber of shares of common
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PART 1 - FINANCIAL INFORMATION

[temn 1. Financial Statements

The Unaudited Financial Statements of Prime Mediz Holdings, Inc. as al September 30, 2018 (with
comparative Audited Statements of Financial Position as at December 31, 20173 and Tor the three months
and nine months period ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 are in compliance with penerally accepted
accounting principles and there were no changes made in accounting policies and methods of
computation m the preparation of the interim financial statements.

Summary of stalements of financial position as al Scprember 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017:

September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017

{Unaudited) {Auvdited)  Increase (decrease)

Amouni Percentage
(F1000) (P 000y (PO00)

Currend gsscts Pol,609 16,803 44 806  266.65%
MNoncuarrent assels 1,589 .74 (70,125 -97.T7R%
Total Assets F63,198 BRE,S1T (25319 -2R.60%
“Current Liahilities  P219,887 P1O3,072 26815  13.80%
Nonewrent Liability 9,557 9,557 - (00
P229.444 202 624 26,815 13.23%
Capital Deficiency (166,246) (114,112)  (52,134)  45.69%
Total Liahilities and Capital Deficiency 63,195 Pﬂﬁ,_il? (25,315)  -28.60%

Summary of unaudited statements of comprehensive income for the three months and nine months
period ended September 30, 2078 and 2017

For threc months ended For nine monihs ended
September 3, Scptember 30,

2018 2017 2018 217
(P 000) (P00 (P 000) {(Fro00y

Revenues P528 P240 PLIZ9 P386
Lxpenses 49,833 271 53,263 19,654
" Loss before tax (49,305) (6.031) (52,134) (19,272)
_Provision for income Lax - - 2 i
Total comprehensive loss - P (49,305) P inEt) P (52,134) P{19272)




Summary of wnaudited statements of cash flows for the three months and nine months penod ended
seplember 30, 2018 and 2017

For three months ended  For nine mgnths cnel

September 31, September 3,
2018 2m7 2018 2017
(P 000) (Fro0u} (P7000) (P00
Cash provided by {used in) operating activitics 21,832 5805 40,808 7,021
Met increase {deerense) in cash 21,832 K.R08 40,808 7021
Clash al begiming of perjod 20,696 824 1,721} 2,702
Cash at end of period 42,528 9723 42,528 9,723

Item 2. Management™s Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Opcration

The company has not been actively operating other than the activitics connected with the transfer of the
Company’s remaining assets to the Philippine Depositary Insurance Corporation (FRIC) and the Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas (BSP). The Company also continues to pursue the cleanup of its books and the
settlement of its remaining obligations 1o pave the way for possible additional capital infnsion from third
party inveslors,

FINANCIAL CONDITION AND RESULTS OF OPERATION

Nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared with nine months ended Scptember 30, 2017

Results of operation Tor the nine months ended Seprember 30, 2018 and 2017 were net loss of P32.13
million and £19.27 million, respectively. As compared with same period last year, net loss for the current
period increased by P32.86 million or equivalent to 171%.

Significant changes in the income statement accounts for the nine months ended September 30, 2018
versus the same period last year are as follow:

Income

a. The Company’s income as of September 30, 2018 of P1.12 million is higher by PO million or 318%
compired with same period last vear, This increase 1s primarily due to the rental arising from lease
apreement entered into between the Company and Marcventures Mming & Development Carporation
(MMDC), an entity under commaon control, to lease the former’s transportation equipment 1o the latler,
for a fix consideration. The agreement commenced last January 7, 2015,

b. During the period, the Campany has recovered P0.25 million [rom account it has previously written off
compared Lo POTY million Last year, which also contributed to the increase in {olal income,

Expenses

Total expenses during the period amounts to P53.26 million, higher by P33.6 million or 171% compared
with same period last year. The movemnent in expenses are attributable to the following:

a. Professional fees increased by FO.73 million comparcd with same peried last year. Factors that
resulted to increase in this account are pavments of warious legal Tees, and annual listing fee
ammounting to PU26 million.



b.

The Company outsourced other activity during the period, resulting to increase in Outside Services by
PO.63 milhion compared with same period last year.

Increase in taxes and licenses of £1.07 million or 678% is primarily due to payment of real property
taxes,

Depreciation expense during the period i higher by P0.24 million compared with same period las
year. The increase is attributable to depreciation of the transportation equipment which was purchased
by the Company in the latter part of 2017,

The Company has nol renewed yet the management agreement with ils Parent Company (said
agreement is yet to be discussed by management), resulting to a decrease of #1732 million or
equivalent o 100% (as this account is nil during the period).

Rent expenses for the period is P2.62 million as compared to 2004 million last year or an increased
by 2.6 million. The increase 15 mainly duc to payment of arrears on association dues to Landeo
Busincss Park as well as penalties from years 2011 to September 2018 concerning the Legaspi

Property.

Other expenses increased by P20.95 million mainly due to the current year payment of compromise
settlement to Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas invelving a litipation.

The company sold its Legaspi Property in favour of Pacific Mall Corporation for PS1LE23.306.50.
While the sale resulted to loss of £24.9 million represenling the difference between the selling price
and fair markel value of the property as recognized in the books as well as taxes paid by the company
in view of the sale, the company was able to generate cash 1o defray the expenses Tor the elean-up
activity and 1o venture info other investments,

Three months ended September 30, 2018 eompared with three months ended September 30, 2017

Results of operation for the three months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 were net loss ol P49.31
million and P6.03 million, respectively.

Sigmificant changes in the income statement accounts for the three months ended September 30, 2018
versus the same period last year are az follow:

Income

The Company’s income tor the third quarter of 2018 of P0O.53 million is highee by PO2% million or
39949 compared with smme period last vear, This increase is primarily due to the rental ansing from
lease agreement entered into between the Company and Marcventures Mining & Development
Corporation (MMDC), an entity under cotnmon contral, 1o lease the former’s transportation equipment
to the latter, for a fix consideration. The agreement commenced lust January 7, 2018,

. During the period, the Company has recovered P0.22 million or 31% higher from account it has

previously written off which also contributed to the increase in total income.

Expenscs

Tomal cxpenscs during the period amounts to #4983 mitlion, higher by P43.56 million or 695%
compared with same period last year, The movement in expenses are attributable 1o the following:

.

Mare outsourced service-related expenscs were incurred during the period, resulting 1o ineresse in
professional fees by POOY million, compared with same period last vear.

N



b. Outside Services also increased by P0.03 million or equivalent to 71% as compared with last years
CRPCNSeS,

c. Compared with same period last year, taxes and licenses is higher by P0.83 million. More real
property taxes were paid during third quarter this year as compared last year in connection with the
sale of Legaspi property.

d. Depreciation expense during the period is higher by PO.08 million compared with same period last
year, The increase is attributable to depreciation of the transportation equipment which was purchased
by the Company in the latter part of 2017,

¢, Rent expense increased by B2.55 million this vear and is attributable mainly to Association Dues paid
for the Legaspi property.

T, The increased in Other expenses was brought by payment of the compromise scitlement of a case
filed by the Bangko Sentral ng Pilipinas amounting to P20 million.

The Company has not renewed vet the management agreement with its Parent Company (said
agreement is yet to be discussed by management), resulting to a decrease of P3.77 million or
equivalent to 100% (as this account is nil during the period).

i

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Total assets of the Company as at September 30, 2018 of P63.20 million is lower by P25.32 million
compared with December 31, 2017 balance. Movement is attributed to the following:

a  Coash
Cash increased by P40.81 million. The increase is mainly attributable to receipt of #4840 million
representing the proceeds of the sale of Investment property.

b, Receivables
Increase in receivables of P0.52 million or 21.28% is primarily due to unpaid rental from MMDC
{refer to analytics on Income section a).

e Advamces to related paviies
During the period, the Company received P4.86 million as payiment of advances but furiher lent
additional P4 million to related parties. The Company also received advances amounting to P20
million from pareni company.

d  Chher current assets
Increase in other current asscts is mainly due to recognition of Input VAT from purchases of goods
and/or services as well as increase in Creditable Withholding tax of P3.41 million.

e, Imvestment Property
The Legaspi property of the company was sold to Pacific Mall Corporation last September 20,
2018,

I Eguipment
Decrease in equipment of PG.25 million is atiributed to the depisciation recognized for the penod.

No additions were made during the period.

18 Diue 1o parent SO
See analytics on o, ddvrices fo related parties.

h Capital deficiency



The increase in capital deficiency of P52.13 million is mainly due to net loss during the period. The
Company's application for equity restructuring to reduce its delicit as at [}c::cmher_ 31, 2016, by
applying its APIC amounting to 2,11 million is approved last March 23, 2018 (see Note 1], hence,

APIC as at Seprember 30, 2018 1z already nil.
STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Nel cash provided by operating activities for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 amounts to
P40.81 million, while cash used in operating activities in same period lasl year was P7.02 million.
Incrense in cash from operating activities s the nel resubt of the following:

s Receipt of P4.86 million from related parties (payment of advances) and P20 million from parent
company.

» Receipt of cash from the proceeds of sale an Investment Property ammounting to P 48.40 million.

» Payment of operating expenses during the period,



HORIZONTAL AND VERTICAL ANALYSIS

September 30,  December 31,
2018 im7 Increase (Decrease)
o (Unaudited) {Audited) Amount Percentage
ASSETS
Current Asscis
Cash 42,527,919 1,720,231 40,807,688 2372.324%
Receivables 2,976,205 2453932 522272 21.2R%
Advances to related partics 11,606,938 12,420,000 {813,062) -6,55%
Other current assets 4,498,419 208,359 4,290,061 2058.98%
Total Current Assels 61,609,481 16,802,522 44,806,958 266.67%
Noncurrent Assets
Investment properties - 69,876,000 (62 876,0007  -100.00%
Available-Tor-sale (AFS) financial assets 300,000 300,000 - 0.00%,
Lquipment 1,288,770 1538, 150 (2494200 -16.22%
Total Noncument Assets 1,588,770 71,714,190 (701254200 97 T8
- Po3,198,251  PRES16,7IZ (25318.462) —_ZH;E[}E_
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liahilitics
Accred expenses and other current
lishililies P199.886,918  £193071,645 6,815,273 3.53%
Due fo parent company 210, 000,000 - 20,000,000 100.00%
- Total Carrent Liabilities 219886918 193,071,645 26815273 13.89%
Noncurrent Liabilities
Deferred tax halaliny 9,556.800 9,556,800 o 0.00%
~ Total Liabilities 229,443,718 202,628,445 20,815,273 13.23%
Capital Deficiency
Clapital stock 714,664,876 714,664,876 = (L00%
Additional patd-in capital {APIC) - 2114921869 (2,114,921 865 =100 00%;
Deficit (BR1,010,344) (2,943.795.478) 2,062,7T85,134 -70.07%
Cumulative unrealized sain on AFS
finaneial assets 100,000 10000040 - 000
Total Capital Deficiency ~ (166,245468) (114,111,733 (52,133,735] 45.69%
P63 148,251 PEBES16,712 (25318 462)  28.60%




FINANCIAL INDHCATORS

= | September 30, 2018 september 30, 2017 |
Nel loss (32133735 | (19272,292)
Quick assets 43,465,452 9,722,851
Current assets 61,609,481 40,582 2148
Total asscis 63,198,251 110,878,548
Current liabilities ] 219,886,918 | 206,852,386
| Total liabilities 229443718 i 215,886,856 |
| Stockholdersequity (166,245.468) (105,008,338)
Preferred stock ) 14,366,260 14,366,260
| Number of common shares outstanding 00,298,616 T00,298.616
| Number of preferred shares outstanding i 14,366,260 14,366,260
Current Ratinl/ i 0.28 — 0.2 |
Debt to Equily Ratio2/ {1.38) (2.050) |
| Assel to Bquity Ratiod! (0.38) (1.06)
Return on Assetsd/ ) (0.69) {0.028) |
Return on Equity5/ 0.37 - 0.202 |
Book Value per share _ ~ (0.26) per share (0.17) per share |
Eamings/Loss per share (basic) trailing 12 |
months (0,09 {(0.35} |

i Current assels divided by curvent labilities

24 Total Naldlities divided by eguity
3 Tal assets divided by equity

4 Net income (loss) divided by average assets
3 Netincome floss) divided by average egquity

Total common stockholder’s equity divided
Trailing 12 months Nei incomedloss) less
dividends paid on preferred stock 7/ weighied
ave. no. of common shaves owistanding

OTHER INFORMATION

There are no known trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that have a material

a
impact tm the Company”s liguidity,

b.  There arc no events that will trigger direet or contingent inancial obligation that is material w the
Company,

c. There are no material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations, and other
relationships of the company with uneonsolidated entitics, or other persons were created during
the interim period.

d. There are no material commitments for capiial expendiiures during ihe inferim period,

¢, There are no known trends, events or uncertainties that have ar are reasonably expected to have a
material impact on nel szles/ revenues! income from continuing operations.

[0 'There is no significant income or expense that did not anse from the Company’s continuing

aperations,



g. There is no seasonal aspeet that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operalion,

PART I - OTHER INFORMATION

The issuer may, at its option, report under this item any information not previeusly reported in a report on
SEC Form 17-C. 1f disclosure of such information is made under this Part 11, it need not be repeated in a
teport on Form 17-C which would otherwise be required to be filed with respect to such infonmation or in
a subsequent report on Form 17-0).

PART HI - FINANCIAL SOUNDNESS INDICATORS

Liguidity Ratio
a. Current Ratio
Total Current Assets’ Total Current Liabilities = 0,250

b, Ouick Ratio
Cuick assel/ Total Current Liabilities = (L19%

Solvency Ratin
a. Debt Ratio
Total liabilities { Total assets = 3.631

b, Debi o Equity Ratio
Total liahilities / Sharcholder™s Equity = (1.380)
Profitability Ratio
4. Retumn on Equity Ratio
Mol loss / Average shareholder’s equity = 0,372

b. Retum on Asseis
Met loss £ Average Total assers = {0.687)

c. Asset o Lguity Ratio:
Total Assets / Stockholders™ Equity = (01451

d. Asset Tarnover
Fevenue/Total Assets= 0018

e. Book value per share
Stockholder’s equity - preferred stock/No, of common shares outstanding = (1258}

0
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business I"r]anagn_mnnt Corp.)

STATEMENTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
L Nate (Unaudiled) { Audited)
ASSETS
Current Asscts
Cash 4 42,527,919 P1,720,231
Receivables 5 2,976,205 2,433,932
Advances to related parics 12 11,606,938 12,420 000
Oither curent assets 4,498,419 208,359
_ TotalCurrent Assets P61.609.481 16,802,522
Nopeurrent Assets
Investment properties fy P- 69,876,000
Avatlable-Tor-sale (ATFS) nancial assels 7 300,000 00,000
Equipment 5 1,288,770 1,538,190
Tolal Moneurrent Assels 1.58E,7T0 71,714,159
763,198,251 FHES16,712
LIABILITY AND CAPITAL DEFICIENCY
Curreni Liabilities
Acerucd expenses and other current habilioes o PI99.580.918 193,071,645
Duwe to parent company 12 20,000,141 -
Total Current Liabilities 219,880,918 193,071 645
Noncurrent ELiahility
Deferred tax lability PU.556.800 9,556,800
Total Liabilities P229,443,718 202 628 445
Capital Deficiency
Capital stock 11 £714,604.870 714,664,876
Additional paid-in capital {APIC) - 2114921 864
Deficit (881,010,344} (2,943,708 478)
Cumulative unrealized gain on AFS financial assets 7 100,000 100,000
Total Capital Deficiency P (166,245,468) (114,111,733}
63,198,251 58,516,712

See auoolpanEiRE Novcs o Finarca! Sialesmicinia,



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOMLE

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended
September 3, Scptember 30,
- Note 2018 2007 2018 2007
INCOME
Rental 11 P305.314 PEO.840 PRTT,457 P20G,52)
Recovery of accounts written-of! 219,000 167,328 247,202 167328
Interest income 4 3351 2,566 4,596 8,900
- P527.665 P239,734 P1,129,256 385,748
EXPENSES
Professional fees 393,528 P307.990) P1.946.074 P1,212,905
Chatside services 78,348 45874 1,212,726 STH,ORK
Taxes and licenses 835,271 25 1,227,598 157,777
Depreciation 8 R3,140 4,20 249,420 12,870
Rent 11 2,561,244 14,941 2,620,596 44,333
Association Dues - A6,305 - 170,520
Management fee 12 - 5,773,196 - 17,319,588
Others 20,985,425 38,353 21,110,283 160,747
Loss on sale of Investment E
Property 24,596,294 - 24,896.294 -
P49.833,254 76,271,075 P33,262.991  P19,658,039
NET LOSS P (49,305,589) P (6.031,341) P (52,133,735) P{19,272.291)
Basic and Diluted Loss Per Share 14 (0.07041) (0007040 (0.07445) (002800

See accompon i Moses to Faoinciod Siofemeis,



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC,
(A Subsidiary of RYM Husiness Management Corp.)

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

For the Nine Tﬂmtt]ls Ended Seplember 30,

= Note 2018 2007

CAPITAL STOCK 10
Common stock - P1 par value P701,298,6010 PROO2OR 616
Preferred stock - Bl par value 14,366,260 14,366,260
714,664,876 714 664 876

ADDITIONAL PAID-IN CAPITAL

Halance al beginning of the vear, as
previously reparted

2,114,921,869

2,114,921 869

Application of equity restructuring (2,114.921,86Y) -
Balance at end of petiod — 2,114,921 864
DEFICIT
Balance at beginning of vear, as

previously reported (2,943.798.478)  (2,915,362,792)
Application of equity restructuring 2,114,921,86% a8
Balance afler equity restructuring (R28.876,609) (2.9153062,792)
Met loss (52.133,735) {19,272,291)
Balanee al end ol period (BR1,010,344)  (2.934.635083)
CUMULATIVE UNREALIZED

GAIN ON AFS FINANCIAL

ASSETS 7 100,000 40000

(P166,245,468)  (PI05.008,338)

Jey acoawpaing Noedes to Mikanomd Niatesenss,



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Three Months Ended September 310,

R 2018 2017
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Loss before meome ax (F49.305,58% (Po.031.341)
Adjustments for:
Depreciation 83,140 4,290
Interest income {3,351) (2,566)
Orperating loss hefore working capital changes (49,225800)  (6,029,617)
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables (190,072 (72,000
Advances to related parties {7.360,000) -
Ohher current assets (4,026,747} 5,773,194
Increase (decrease) in:
Accrued expenses and other current linhilities 6,835,518 10,801,256
Due to related party 6,120,000 i
Net cash penerated from (used for) operations (P48,047.102) 10472535
Tnterest received 3,351 2,565
Net cash provided by {used in) operating aclivities (P48,043.751)  PI10.475400
CASII FLOWS FROM AN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Acquisiion of equipment - (F1577.000)
Sale of Investment Property P69, 876000 -
Net cash provided by (used in} investing activitics #6958 76. 000 (1,577,000)
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 21,832,249 5,95 400
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 20,695,670 B34, 450
P42,527.919 PO722.850

CASH AT END OF PERIOD

See AcrompEInving Nofos fo Fraanciad Statcimesis,
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PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.

{A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

UNAUDITED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

Nine Months Ended Scplember M,

Mot B 2018 2M7
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
ACTIVITIES
Loss before income tax {52,133,735) (19,272,292}
Adjustments for;
Depreciation i 249,420 12,870
Interest income 4 {4,590} {8,900}
Operating loss before working capital changes (51,888,911)  (19,268,322)
Decrease (increase) in:
Receivables (522.272) (60,990
Advances to related parties 813,062 20,000,000
Ohther current asseis {4,290.061) (3,773,196)
Increase (decrease) 1u:
Accrued expenscs and other current liabilities 6,815,273 13,691,504
Dhie to parent company 20,000,000
Met cash generated [rom (uscd Tor) operations (29.072.909) BS8E 987
Interest received 4590 B0
Net cash provided by {usced in) operating activitics {29.068,312) B,597,887
CASH FLOWS FROM AN INVESTING
ACTIVITIES
Acquisition of equipment - (1,577,000
Sale of Investment Properly - o #%.876.000 -
Net eash provided by (used in) investing activities 69,876,000 (1,577,000
NET INCREASE (DECREASE) IN CASH 40,807,684 TA20 8RT
CASH AT BEGINNING OF PERIOD 1,720,231 2,701,963
CASH AT ENIY OF PERIOD 42,527,919 9,722,850

Sew accompanping Notes fo Financial Maicmenis,



PRIME MEDIA HOLDINGS, INC.
(A Subsidiary of RYM Business Management Corp.)

NOTES TO UNAUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Corporate Information

Prime Media Holdings, Inc. {the Company) was incorporated and registered with the Philippine
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on February 6, 1963, On October 1, 2003, the SEC
approved the amendment of the Company’s articles of incorporation, changing its primary purpose
from a development bank to a holding company and to hold investments in the media industry. On
March 4, 2013, the SFC approved the extension of the Company™s corporate life for another 50
Vears.

On July 9, 1964, the Philippine Stock Exchange, Inc. approved the public listing of the Company’s
shares of stock. As al December 31, 2017 and 2016, 663,713,458 Company shares are publicly
listed.

The Company is a subsidiary of RYM Business Managemen! Corp. (the Parent Company), a
holding company repistered and domiciled in the Phnlippines.

On September 12, 2002, the Company agreed to transfer assets and liabilines arising from its
development bank operations to Banco de Ore Unibank, Ine. (BIXY) and Philippine Deposit
Insurance Corporation (PDIC) under a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA), As at December 31,
2017 and 2016, the Company has liabilities arising from the MOA which pertain mainly to the
esimated transfer taxes and remstation fees related to the transter of assets o BDOPDIC and
other related liahilities {see Note 9.

The financial statements of the Company as at December 21, 2017 and 2016 and for the three
vears ended December 31, 2017, 2016 and 2005 were approved and authorized [or issuance by the
Board of Directors (BODY on April 20, 2018,

Status of Operations

The Company is still exploning for a new business. Its current activities comprise mainly of
transferring assets related to its previous development hunk operations to BDO and PDIC. Thus,
the Company has continued to incur osses resulting in a capital deficiency of P114.1 million and
P83.7 million as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. The stockholders, however, have
continued Lo provide the necessary financial support to sustain Company operstions,  The
stockholders converted their preferred stock of P34.2 million into common stock in 2016,
converted their advances of P600.5 million to additional capital in 2014 and infused capital
agprepating £179.0 million in 2014 and 2013 to reduce the capital deficiency, On December 1,
2017, the Company submitted an application to the SEC for the Company’s equity restructuring to
redoce the capital deficiency.

On March 23, 2018, the SEC approved the Company™s equity restruciuring to reduce its deficit as
at December 31, 2016 from £2,915.4 million to PE00.5 million by applying its AFIC amounting to
P2,114.9 million.

On July 10. 2018, the Company has entered mto a Compromise Agreement with the Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas for the full and final settlement of its case. Upon execution of the Compromize
Agreement, the parties have agreed w deliver all documents and perfomm all acts necessary to
cause the relevant court 1o render s judement based on the said Agreement and terminate the case.
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The company sold #1s Lepaspi Property worth PA9.8 million in favor of Pacific Mall Corporation
for a consideration of P51.8 million in order to generate cash to defray the necessary expenses for
the clean-up aclivity and to venture into other investnents.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Preparation

The fnancial statements have been preparcd in compliance with the Philippine Financial
Reporting Standards (PFRS} issued by the Philippine Financial Reporting Standards Couneil and
adopted by the SEC, including SEC pronouncements.  This financial reporling framework
includes PFRS, Philippine Accounting Standards (PAS) and Philippine Interpretations from
International Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee.

Measurement Bases
The financial statements are presented in Philippine Peso, which is alse the Company”s funetional
currency. All values represent absolute amounts cxeepl otherwise stated,

The financial statements have been prepared on # historical cost basis, except for its investment
properlics and AFS financial assets which are carried at fair value, Historical cost 1s generally
hused on the fair value of the constderation given in exchange Tor assets.

Fair value is the price thal would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the transaclion dale.  The Cotnpany uses
valuation techniques that are appropriale in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available 1o measure fair value, maximizing the vse of relevant observable inputs and minimizing
the use of unohservable inputs.

The Company uses market abservable data to a possible extent when measuring the Fair value of
an asset or a liahility.  Fair values are cateporized into different levels in a fair value hierarchy
based on inputs used in the valuation techniques as tollows:

= Level 1 - Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active market for identical assets or Habilities,

e Level 2 - Valuation technigues for which the lowest level input that is significant to the Tair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable,

= level 3 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is sigmificant to the fair
value measurcment 1% unohservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognized in the financial statements on a recormng basis, the
Company delermines whether fransfers have occurred botween levels o the hicrarchy by
re-assessing categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as i whole) at the end of each reporting period.

For the purpose of Tar value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assels and
liabilities on the basis of the nature, characteristics and risks of the assel or hability and the level

of the fair value hierarchy as explained showve,

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring faiv values is included in Notes 6,
Foand 13,
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Adoption of New and Amended PFRS

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial year, except for
the adoption of the following new and amended PTRS which the Company adopted effective for
annual perinds beginning on or after Janvary 1, 2017:

e Amendments to PAS 7, Swrement of Cash Flows - Disclosure Initiative — The amendments
require enlitics 10 provide information that enable the users of Ninancial statements to evaluate
chimges in liabilities arising from financing activities,

o Amendments to PAS 12, Tncome Taves - Recognition of Deferved Tax Assets for Unrealized
Lasses — The amendments clarify the accounting for deferred tax where an asset is measured
al fair value and the fair value is below the asser’s tax base (e.p. deferred tax asset reluted w
unrealized losses on debt instruments measured at fair value), as well as certain other aspects
of accounting for deferred tax asscts.

The adoption of the forcgoing new and amended PTRS did not have any material elTect on the
financial statements of the Company, Additional disclosures have been included in the notes o
financial statements, as applicahle,

5

MNew and Amended PFRS in Issue But Not Yet Effective

Relevant new and amended PFRS which are oot wet effcctive for the wear ended
December 31, 2017 and have not been applicd in preparing the financial stalements are
summmarized below,

Effective Tor annusl periods beginning on or after January 1, 200 8:

s PFRS 9, Fruancial fnstruments — This standard will replace PAS 39, Financial Instruments:
Recogaition and Measwremeni (and all the previous versions of PFRS 9. It contaims
requirements [or the classification and measurement of financial assets and financial
lHahilities, impairment, hed ge accounting and derecognition,

PURS 9 reguires all recognized financial assets to be subsequently measured at amortized cost
or tair value (through profil or loss or through other comprehensive income), depending on the
classification by reference to the business model within which they are held and its contractual
cash flow characteristics,

For financial liabilitics, the most significant effect of PFRS 9 relates {o cases where the fair
vitlue option is taken: the amount of change in fair value of & financial Lability designated as
at fair value through profit or loss (FVPL) that s attributable to changes in the credil risk of
that liability is recognized in other comprehensive income (rather than in profit or loss]), unless
this creates an accounting mismatch,

For the impairment of finaneial assets, PFRS 9 introduces an “expected credil loss™ madel
based on the concept of providing for expected losses al inceplion of a contract. Tt will no
longer be necessary for there o be objective evidence of impairment before a credit Joss is
recoymized,

For hedpe accounting, PFRS 9 introduces a substantial overhaul allowing financial staternents
to better rellect how nisk management activities are undertaken when hedging finaneial and
non-financial risk exposures.

The derecogmition provisions are carried over almaost unchanged from PAS 389,
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*  Amendments to PAS 40, Investment Property - Transfers of Invesiment Property — The
amendments clarify that transfers to, or from, investment properly (including assets under
construction and development) should be made when, and only when, there is evidence that a
change in use of a property has oceurred,

Effective lor annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2019:

s I'FRS 16, Leases — This standard replaces PAS 17, Leases and its related interpretations. The
most significant change infroduced by the new standard is that almost all leases will be
brought onio lessees” statement ol fnancial position under a single model {except leasces ol
less than 12 months and leases of low-value assets), eliminating the distinclion between
operating and finance leases. Lessor accounting, however, Temains largely unchanged and the
distinction between operating and finance lease 1s retained.

Under prevailing circumstances, the adoption of the foregoing new and amended PFRS is not
expected 1o have any material effect on the fnancial stawements of the Company. Additiona)

disclosures will be included in the financial statements, as applicable.

Financial Asscts and Liabilities

Date of Reeopnition. Financial assets and liabilities are recognized in the statements of financial
position when the Company becomes a party to the contractual provision of a financial instrument.
Financial instruments are initially recognized at fair value. In the case of regular way purchase or
sale of financial asset, recopmition and derecognition, as applicable, is done using trade date
accounting.

Initial Recognition. Financial asscts and habiliies are recopnived nitially at Tair value, which is
the fair value of the consideration given (in case of an asset) or received {in casc of a liability).
The initial measurement of financial instruments, except for those designated at FVPL, includes
fransactlon cost.

“Day 17 Differences. Where the transaction in a non-active market is different from the fair value
af other ohservable current market transactions in the same instrument or based on a valualion
lechnigue whose variables include only dats from observable market, the Company recognizes the
difterence between the transaction price and fair valve (a “Day 17 difference) in the statement of
profit or loss, In cases where there 1s no observable data on inception, the Company deemed the
fransaction price as the best estimate of tair value and recognizes “Day 17 difference in profit or
lss when the inputs become obscrvable or when the instrument s derccognized.  For each
transaction, the Company delermines the appropriste method of recognizing the “Day 17
difference.

Classification.  The Company classifies its financial assets at initial recogmition under the
fillowing categories: (a) financial asscts at FVPL, (B) held-to-maturity (HTM) investments, (c)
loans and receivables and (d) AFS financial assets.  Financial liabilities, on the other hand, are
classified as either financial liahilities at TVPL or ather financial liahilities ar amortized cost. The
classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were acquired or
incurred and whether or not the instruments are quoted in an active market.

As at Seplember 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company does not have financial assets
and habilities at FYPL and HTM investments.

AFS Finamcial Assets. AFS financial assets are nonderivative financial assets that are either
designated in this eategory or not classificd in any of the other categories. These are purchased
and held indefinitely, and may be sold in response 1o hguidity requirements or changes 1n market
conditions.



Afler initial measurcment, AFS financial assets is subsequently measured at fair value. The
unrealized pains and losses ansing from the fair valvation of AFS financial assets are reported in
the statements of comprehensive income and in the equity section of the statements of financial
position. These changes in fair value are recognized in equity until the investment s sold,
collected, or otherwise disposed of or until the invesiment is determined to be impaired, at which
time the cumulative gain or loss previously reported in equity are included in profit or loss.

As at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the Company classified its proprietary
membership share as AFS financial assets,

Loans and Receivables.  Loans and receivables are financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities and that are nal quoted in an active markel. These are nol entered
into with the intention of immediate or short-term resale and are not classified or designated as
AFS financial assets or financial asset at FVPL, Louns and receivables are ineluded in current
assets if marrity s within twelve months from reporting date. Otherwise, these are classified as
noncurrenl assets,

After initial measurement, loans and receivables are subsequently measurcd at amortized cost
using the effeetive interest method, less allowance for impaiment, if any,  Amortized cost 15
calculated by taking into account any discount or preniium on acquisition and any transaction cost
which are directly attributable in the acquisition of the fnancial instrument.  The amortization is
included in profit ar loss,

As at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this catepory includes cash, receivables
{excluding advances to officers, employees and service providers) and advances to related partics,

Chher Financial Liahilities at Ameorvitzed Cost. Financial labilities are classified in this category il
these are not held for trading or not designated as at FVPL upon the inception of the liability.
These inchude liabilities arising from operations or through borrowing.

After initial recognition, other financial Rabilitics are subscquently measured at amorizcd cost
using the effective intercst method, Amortized cost is calculated by taking mto account any
related issuc costs, discount or premivn. Gains and losses are recognized in profit or loss when
the linbilities are derecogmized, as well as when there is amaortization process.

As at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, this catepory includes acerued expenses and
other current Habilities (excluding statutory payables), and due to parent company.

Offselling of Financial Asseis and Liabilities

Financial assets and liabilitics arc ofTset and the net amount reporicd in the statements of fnancial
position if, and only 10, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognized amounts
and therc 1% an intention to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liahiliy
simultaneously. This is not generally the case with master netting agreements where the related
assels and liahilities are presented gross in the statements of financial position.

Impairment of Financial Assets

The Company assesses al cach reporting date whether there is ohjective evidence thal a financial
asset of group of finuncial assets is impaired. A financial asset or group of financial assets is
deemed impaired if], and only if, there 15 objective evidence of impaioment as a tesull of one or
more events that eccurred afier the minal recosmtion of the asset (an meurred “loss event’) and
that loss event {or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial assel or
group of financial assets that can be reliably estimared.

The carryving amount of the impaired account is reduced to the extent that it exceeds the asset’s net
realizable value. Impairment losses are recognized in full in profic or loss, in a subsequent petiod,
the amount of accumulated impairment losses has decreased becanse of an event oceurring aller
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impairment was recognized, the decline is allowed to be reversed to profit o loss 1o the extent that the
resulting carrving amount will not excesd the amorizcd cost determined had no impairment been
recomized,

Loans and Receivable. The Company assesses at each reporting date whether objeclive evidence
of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually significant. or
collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no
objeclive evidence of impaimment exists for an individually assessed financial assel, whether
significant or not, the asset is included in a group of fnancial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively assessed for impairment. Those
characteristics are relevant to the estimation of future cash flows for groups of such assets by
being indicative of the deblor’s ability to pay all amounts due according to the contractual terms of
the assets being evaluated. Assets that are mdividually assessed for impairment and for which an
impairment loss is or continues to be recognized are not included in a collective assessment of
impairment,

If' there is objective evidence that an impairment loss has been incurred, the amount of the loss is
mensured as the dilTerence between the asset’s carrving amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the assets” original effective interest rate. Time value is
generally not considered when the effect of discounting iz not material. The carrying amount of
the assct shall be reduced directly or through the use ol an allowance account. The amount of loss
shall be recopnized in profit or loss.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the estimated impairment loss decreases becanse of an
evenl occurring atter the impairmen! was Tecopmized, the previously Tecogmized impairment loss s
reduced by adjusting the allowance account.  Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is
recognized in the profit or loss, to the extent thal the camying amount of the asset does not execed its
amortized cost at the reversal date,

AFS Finaneial Assets. Tor equity investments classified as AFS financial assels, impairment
would include a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the investments below their
cost. Where there s evidence ol impairment, the cumulative loss - measured as the difference
between the acquisiion cost and the current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial
assel previously recopnized in profil or loss - 3s removed from equity and recognized in profic or
loss, Impairment losses on equity investments are not reversed through profit or loss. Increases in
tair value aller impairment are recognized directly in the other comprehensive income and
presented in the statements of changes in equity,

Derecognition of Financial Asscts and Liabilitics

Financial Assets. A finuncial asset {or where applicable, a part of a finaneia! asset or part of a
group ol similar financial assers) is derecognized by the Company when:

e the righl W receive cash flows from the asset has expired;

e the Company tetaing the right 1o receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an
obligation to pay them m full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through™
arrangement; or

e the Company has transferred its right to receive cash flows from the asset and cither (a) has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the assets, or (b) has neither wransferred
nor retained substantially all the risk and rewards of the assets, but has transferred control over
the aszel.

When the Company has transferred its right 1o receive cash fows from an asset or has entered into
a pass-through arranpgement, and has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
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rewards of the assel nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recogmized 1o the extent of the
Company’'s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing invalvement that takes the form ol a
guarantee over the transterred asscl, iF any, 1s measured at the lower of oniginal carrying amount of
the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that the Company could he required to pay.

Financial Liahilitfies, A financial Hability is derecogmized when the obligation under the lisbility
15 discharped or cancelled or has expired. Where an existing financial liability is replaced hy
another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liahility
arc substantially modificd, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecapnition of the
original liability and the recognition of the new liability, and the difference in the respective
carrying amount is recognized m profit or loss,

A modification is considered substantial if the present value of the cash fows under the now
terms, including net fees paid or received and discounted vsing the original effective interest rate,
is different by at least 10% from the discounted present value of remaining cash flows of the
original hability,

The fair value of the modified financial liability is determined based on its expected cash flows,
discounted usimg the interest rate at which the Company could ruise debt with similar terms and
conditions in the market. The difference berween the carrying amount of the original liahility and
tair value of the new liability is recognized n the statements of comprehensive income.

On the other hand, if the difference does not meet the 10% threshold, the original debt iz not
extinpuished but merely modified. In such case, the carrying amount is adjusted by the costs or
fees paid or received in the restructuring,

Oiher Corrent Assets

Other current assets mainly consist of prepayments which represent expenses paid in advance and
recorded as assets before these are utilized. Prepayments are apportioned aver the period covered
by the pavment and charged to profil or loss when incurred.  Prepayments thal are expected to be
realized for no more than twelve months after the reporting date are classified as other current
assets, Otherwise, these are classified as other noncurrent assets.

Investment Properties

Imvestment propertics, accounted for under the fair value model, are property held either w cam
rentals or for capital appreciation, or both, but ot for sale in the ordinary course of business, use
in the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative purposes,

Investment properties are measured initiallv at cost, including transaction costs, The carrying
amount includes the cost of replacing parl of existing investmen! properties at the tdme that cost is
incurred and if the recognition criteria are met, and excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of
Investment properties,  Subsequent 1o initial Tecognilion, investmenl properiies are stated at fair
value, which reflects market conditions at the reporting date as determined by independent
appraisers. Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment propertics are
included i the profit or loss in the vear in which they arise,

Transfers are made to or from investment property only when there is & change in use. For a
transfer from investment property to owner occupied property, the deemed cost for subsequent
accounting 14 the fair value at the date of change in use. 1 owner occupied property becomes an
investmen! property, the Company accounts for such property in accordance with the policy an
property, plant and cquipment up to the date of change in use.

Investment properties are derceognized when either they have been disposed ol or when the
investment properlies are permanently withdrawn from use and no further economic benefil is
expected from s disposal,  Any gain or less on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property 1s reengnized in profit or loss in the year of retirement or disposal,



Equipment
Equipment are stated at cost less accunwlated depreciation and impairment in value, i1 any,

The initial cost of equipment comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its infended use.

Expenditures incurred afler the equipment have been put into operation, such as repairs,
maintenance and overhaul costs, are normally charged to operations in the year the costs are
incurred. In situations where it can be clearly demonsirated that the expenditures have resulted in
an increase in the future economic benefits expected o be oblained from the use of an ilem of
computer equipment beyond its originally assessed standard of performance, the expenditures arc
capilalized as additional costs of equipment. The cost of replacing a component of an item of
equipment is recopnized if it is probable that the future economic benefits embodied within the
component will flow to the Company, and its cost can be measured reliably, The carmying amount
of the replaced component is derecognized.

When parts of an item of equipment have different uselul lives, they are accounted for as separate
ilems {major components) of equipment.

Depreciation 1s caleulated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of the equipment
of 5 years,

The estimated useful lives and method for depreciation are reviewed periodically to ensure that the
periods and method of depreciation arc comsistent with the expected pattern of economic henelils

[rom equipment.

When assets are retired or otherwise disposed of, the cost and the related accumulated depreciation
and any tmpaitment in value are removed from the accounts. Any resulting gain or loss is credited
to o charged against current operalions,

Impairmeni of Nonfinancial Asseis

The Company assesses at cach reporting date whether there i an indication that nonfinancial
assets may be impaired when events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying ameount
of an asset mav not be recoverable. If anv such indication exists and if' the carrving amaount
exceeds the estimated recoveruble amount, nonfinancial assets are written down Lo it recoverable
amount, which is the greater of fair value less cost to sell and value in use. The fair value less cost
e sell is the amount obiainable from the sale of an asset in an anm’s length transaction.  In
assessing valuc in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to present valne nsing a
pretax discount rate that reflects current markel assessments of the tme value of money and the
risks specific to the asset. Impairment losses are recognized in profit or loss.

An assessment is made al each reporting date as to whether there is any indication that previously
recognized impairment losses may no longer exist or may have decrcased. I such indication
exists, the recoverable amount is estimated, A previously recognized impairment loss is reversed
only il there has been o change in the estimates used 1o determine the asset’s recoverable amaounl
since the last impairment loss was recopmized, In such instance, the carrying amount of the assel
15 increased o ils recovergble amount.  However, that increased amount cannot exceed the
carrving amount that would have been determined had no tmpairment loss been recognized for the
asset in prior years. Such reversal is recopnized in profit or loss,

Equity
Capital Stock, Capital stock is measured al par value for all shares issucd.

APIC. Proceeds andfor fair value of considerations received in excess of par wvalue, if any, are
recogmized as APIC. Incremental costs directly atrributable to the issuance of new shares are



treated as deduction from APIC,

Degficit.  Deleil represents the cumulative balance of the Company’s results of operations net
dividends declared, if any.

Bevenue Recopnition
Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that economic bencfits will flow 10 the
Company and the amount of revenuc can be measured reliably. Revenue is recognized as follows:

Rental. Rental income is recognized using the straight-line method over the term of the lease.

furerest ncome. Interest income is recopnized in profit or loss as it accrues, taking inle account
the effective yield on the asset.

Recovery of Assets Writien-off and Other fncome. Income from other sources is recognized when
the amount is actually received.

Expense Recognition
Fxpenses constitute cost of administering the business. These costs are expensed upon receipt of
poods, utilization of services, or when the expense is incurred.

Leasces

The determination of whether an arrangement is or containg a lease is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception date whether the fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on
the wse of a specific asset or assets, and the arrangement conveys a right to uvse the asset. A
regssessment 15 made alier inception of the lease only if one of the followang apphes:

a. there 15 a chunge in contractual terms, other than a renewal or extension of the arranpement;

b. & renewal option is exercised or extension granted, unless the term of the renewal or extension
was inilially included in the lease term;

. thereis a change in the determination of whether fulilment is dependent on a specified asset,
ar

d. there 15 a substantial change to the asset.

Where reassessment is made, lease aceounting shall commence or cease from the date when the
change in circumstances gave rise to the reassessment for scenarios (a), (c) or (d) and at the date of
renewal or extension period for scenario (b,

Operating Lease - Company as a Lessor. Leases where the Company relains substantially all the
risks and benefits of ownership of the asset are classified as operating leases, Initial direct costs
incurred in negotiating an operating lease are added o the carrying amount of the leased asset and
recognized on a struipht line basis over the lease term on the same basis as rental income,

Operating Lease - Company as a Lessee. Leases where the lessor retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of the asset are classified as operating lease. Operaling lease pavments
are recognired a5 an expense in profic or loss on a straighi-line basis over the lease term.

Income Taxes

Current Fax. Current fax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be
recovered from or paid to the taxation authorties. The tax rate used w compute the amount is the
one that has been enacled or substaniively enacled at the reporhing dale.

Deferved Tax. Deferred tax is provided on temporary differences at the reporting date hetween the
tax buses of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes.



Deferred tax liabilitics are recognized for all taxable lemporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carryforward benefits of any unused tax
credits from the excess of minimum comporale ineome tax (MCIT) over the regolar comporate
income tax and any unused net operating loss carryover (NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary diffcrences and
carryforward benefits of unused MCIT and unused NOLCO can be uilized.  Deferred tax,
however, is not recognized when 11 arises from the initial recognition of an assel or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the (ransaction, aftects neither the
accounling profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax is recognized in profit or loss except to the extent thar it relates to a business
combination, or items directly recognized in equity as other comprehensive income.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the
extent that it s no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
parl of the deferred tax asset 1o be utilized. Unrecognized deferred tax assets arc reassessed al
each reporting date and are recognized to the extent that 11 has become probable thar fulure faxable
prodfil will allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Delerred tax assets and Hahilities are measured at the tax rate that are expected to apply to the
period when the asset is realized or the liability is settled, based on tax rate thal has been enacted
or substantively enacted al the reporting date.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset, if a legally enforceable right exists to offset current
lax asscls apainst current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authorty,

Value Added Tax (VAT)
Revenues, expenses and assels are recognized net of the amount of VAT, except:

& where the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services 1s not recoverable from the taxation
authority, in which case the tax is recognized as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or
as parl of the expense item as applicable: and

e receivables and payables that arc staled with the amount of tax included.

The net amount of VAT recoverable from the taxation authority is mcluded as part of “Other
current asset” account in the statements of financial position.

Loss Per Shure

Basic loss per share is computed by dividing net loss for the vear attcbutable to common
stockholders by the weighted average number of common stock outstanding during the vear, with
retroactive adjustments for any stock dividends declared or stock sphit

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted averare number of common stock
oulstanding to assume conversion of all dilutive potential common stock.

Where the loss per share effcel of potential dilutive common stock would be anti-dilutive, basic
and diluted loss per share are stated at the same amount.

Seement Reporting

An operaling segment is a component of the Company that engases in business acivities from
which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues and expenscs that relate to the
transactions with any of the Company’s other components, The Company has only one sepment as
holding company.
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Related Parties

Parties arc considered to be related i one party has the ability, directly or indirectly, to control the
olher party or exercise sigmificant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
commen significant influence,

Provisions _
Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a
result of a past event, it is probable that an oulflow of resources embodying economic benetits will
be required to settle the obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
abligution,

Provisions are made using the best estimates of the amount required to settle the obligation and are
discounted to presen! values using a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time vilue of money and the risks specific to the obligation. Changes in estimates are reflected in
prodit or loss in the period they arise.

Contingencies

Contingent liabilities are nol recognized in the financial statements. They are disclosed in the
notes to financial statements unless the possibility of an outflow of resources embodying
eeanomic benefits is remote. Confingent assets are not recognized in the financial statements but

are disclosed when an inflow of economic henefits is probable.

Events after the Reporting Date

Post year-end events that provide additional information about the Company’s financial position ai
the end of reporting period (adjusting events) are reflected in the financial statements. Post vear-
end events that are non-adjusting are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

Significant Judgments, Aceounting Fstimates and Assumptions

The preparation of financial statements in accordance with PFRS requires management to make
judgment, estimates and assumplions that affect the amounts reported in the financial statements,
The judgment and estimates nsed in the fnancial statements are based wpon management’s
evaluation of relevant facts and circumstances as at the reporting date, While the Company
believes that the sssumptions are reasonable and appropriate, sipnificant differences in the actual
eaperience or significant changes in the assumptions may materially affect the estimated amounts.
Actual results could differ from such estimates,

The estimales and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Rewisions to
accounling estimates are recognized i the peniod i which the estimate is revised il the revision
affects only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision alfects
both current and future periods.

Judgments
In the process of applying the Company’s accounting policies, management has made the

following judgment, apart from those involving estimates, which have the most significant effect
omn the amounts recognized in the lnmmeial statements,

Aswessing the Company's Abilitv to Comtinue av a Going Coreern, The Company has incurred
continuous losses resulting in a capital deficiency of #114.1 million and PH5.7 million as al
December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectivelv. Management believes this trend to continue for the
twelve months after reporting date. As discussed in Note 1, the stockholders provide continuing
necessary financial support to the Company while new business opportunities are not vet
available, Based on this, the fnancial statements are prepared on a going concern basis of
accounting,
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Classifving Financial fastruments,  The Company classifies a financial instrument, or its
component parls, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity
instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement and the definitions of
a financial asset, a financial liability or an equity instrument. The substance of a financial
instrument, rather than its legal form, governs its classification in the statements of financial
position.

The Company classified its proprietary membership shares as an AFS financial assets
(see Note 7).

Accounting for Lease Commitments: Company as a Lessor. Management exercises judgment in
determining whether substantially all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of the assets
held for lease are retained by the Company. Lease contracts where the Company retains
substantially all the risks and benefits incidental to ownership of the leased item are aceounted for
as operating leases. Otherwise, these are considered as finance leases.

The Company, as a lessor, has entered into property subleases where it has determined that it
retains all the significant risks and benefits of ownership of those properties. As such, the lease
agreemenis are accounted for as operating leases.

Rent income amounted to P0.87 million and $0.21 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively (see
Noie 11),

Accounting for Lease Commitments: Company as a Lessee. The Company, as a lessce, has
various operating lease agreements. The Company has determined that the risks and benefits of
ownership related 1o the leased properties are retained by the lessor. Accordingly, the lease is
accounted for as an operating lease.

Rent expense amounted to P2.62 million and P0.04 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively (see
Mote 1.

Classifving Investment Properties and Owner-Occupied Properties. The Company determines
whether a property qualifies as invesiment property. In making its judgment, the Company
considers whether the property generates cash flows largely independent of the other assets held
by an entity. Owner occupied properties generate cash flows that are attributable not only to the
property but also to the other assets used in the production or supply process.

Some properties comprise a portion that is held to earn rentals for capital appreciation and another
portion that is held for use in the production or supply of enods or scrvices or for administrative
purposes. If these portions cannot be sold separately, the property is accounted for as an
investment property only if an insignificant portion is held for use in the production or supply of
goods or services or for administrative purposes. Judoment is applied in determining whether
ancillary services are so significant that a property does not qualily as investment property. The
Company considers each property separately in making its judgment,

The investment properties amounting to P69.9 million located at Legaspi City, Albay was sold by
the company on September 20, 2018. (sec Notc 6).

Evaluating Contingencies. The Company is a party to certain lawsuits or claims arising from the
ordinary course of business, However. the Company’s managemnent and legal counsel believe that
eventual liabilitics under these lawsuits or claims, if any, will not have a material effect of the
Company’s financial statements,

Estimates and Assumpiions

The key estimates concernming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the
reporting date, that has a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts
of assets and liabilitics within the next financial vear, are described below.
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Estimating Liabilities Related fo Previows Development Bank Operations.  The estimated
lighilines related to previeus development bank operations of the Company is based on the
management’s best estimate of the amount expected to be incurred to settle the obligation.

The liahilitics arising from the MOA amounted to P171.1 million as ar September 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017 (see Note 9).

Estimating Impeairment Losses on Receivables and Due from Related Parties. The Company
mamtams allowance for impairment losses at a level considered adequate to provide Tor potential
uncollectible receivables. The level of this allowance is evaluated by management on the basis of
factors that affect the collectibility of the accounts, These factors include, but are nol limited to.
the length of the Company’s relationship with the debtor, the debtor’s payment behaviour and
known market factors. The Company identifies and provides for specific accounts that are
doubtful of collection and reviews the age and status of the remaining receivables and establishes
a provision considering, among others, historical collection and write-ofT experience.

Impaimment losses on receivables amounted to P2.1 million in 2017. Allowance for impairment
losses amounted P62.4 million as at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, The carmying
amount of receivables amounted 1o P2.98 million and P2.3 million as at September 30, 2018 and
December 31, 2017, respectively (see Note 5).

Determining Fair Value of Investment Properties. The Company engaped an independent
appraiser to determine the fair value of its investmen! properties. In 20017 and 2016, the fair value
of investment propertics was based on the valuation performed on March 1, 2018 and April 3,
2017, respectively, Managemen! evaluated that the fair value of investment property determined
on appraizal date approximates the fair value as at reporting date since there were no significant
changes in the condition of the property and economic environment hetween those dates, The fair
value was determined using the market data approach in 2017 and 2016, Market data approach
mvolves the comparison of the Land to those that are more or less located within the vicinity of the
appraised property and are subject of recent sales and offerings, Adjustments were made (o arrive
at the market value by considering the location, size, shape, utility, desirability and time element.

Further information about the assumptions made in measuring Tair value of nvestment properties
are discussced in Notes 6 and 15,

Gain on fair value chunges which was recogmized in the statements of comprehensive income
amounted 1o P1.7 million and P1.9 million in 2017 and 201 6, respectively. {see Note 6),

Assessing Impairment of Nonfinancial Assers, The Company assesses impairment on nonfinancial
assels whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrving amount of an asset
may not be recoverable. The faclors that the Company considers imporiant which could trigger an
impairment review include the following:

* symificant underperformance relative 1o expected historical or projected future operating
results;

» significant changes in the manner of use of the acquired assets or the stralegy for overall
business; or

* significant negative indusiry or ecanomic trends.

Mo impairment losses were recoghized in 2008 and 2017,

The carrying amonnt of the Company” s nonfinancial assets are as follows:
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September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
Note {(Unaudited) _{Audited)

Investment properties 5 u P69, 876,000
Equipment 8 P 1,288,770 1,538, 19H)
Crther current assets 4,498.419 218,354

Assessing Impairment of AFS Financial Assets. The Company treals AFS financial assets as
impaired when there has been a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value below ifs cost or
where other objective evidence of impairment exists. The delermination of what 15 “significant”
or “prolonged” requires judgment. The Company treats “significant™ generally as 20% or more
and “prolonged” as greater than 12 months for quoted equity securities. In addition, the Company
evaluates other factors, including normal volatility in share price for quoted instruments and the
future cash flows and the discount factors for unguoted instruments.

Mo impaimment losses were recognized in 2018 and 2017, The carrying amount of AFS financial
assets amounted to POL3 million as at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 (see Note 7).

Assessing Realizability of Deferved Tax Assers. The Company reviews its deferred tax asscls at
each reporting date and reduces the carrying amount to the extent that it is no longer probable thal
sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asscts fo be
utilized.

The Company’s unrecognized deferred tax assets amounted to P44.6 million and P36.2 million as
at December 31, 2017 and 2016, respectivelv. Management believes that there will be no
sufficient furure taxable profits against which these deferred tax assets can be utilized.

Cash
This account consists of:

September 30, 2008 December 31, 2007

(L naudiied) [Audited)
Cash on hand 5277 P5.277
Cash in banks _ 42,522,642 1,714,954
¥ 42,527.919 F1.720.231

Cash in hanks earn interest at prevailing bank deposit rates. Interest income from cash in banks
amounted to P4,596 and P3.900 as at September 30, 2018 and 2017, respectively.

fh

Receivables

This account consists of:

Mode September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017

(Unuudited) [ Audited)

Loans receivable P62,277,740 Pa2 270,740
Advances 1o officers, employees and

service providers 2,165,007 2,126,335

Rent receivable 11 037,532 453,932

65,380,279 6 B3H, 007

Less allowance for impairment losses 62, 404075 62,404,073

P2,976.205 P2,453,932
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Loans receivable are related to the Company’s previous bank operations. The unimpaired balance
of loans receivable amounting to #2.0 million is left under an escrow fund as al September 30,
2008 and December 31, 2017,

Advances to officers, employees and service providers represent unliguidated. noninterest-bearing
advances for processing of the transfer of title of properties to PDIC and BDO. These are
liquidated upon the accomplishment of the purposes for which the advances were granted.

Movements in allowance for impairment losscs are as follows:

2018

Advances to
officers, cmplovecs

Loans receivable  and service providers  Rent receivable Total

Balance al beginning of

period Po0,277,740 72,126,335 - PO2A04,075
Provision ot - - _
Balance ar end of period Pol,277,740 P2,126,335 P P62 A 078

The Company recovered some accounts written-off in prior years amounting to P0.25 million and

PO.17 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Investment Properties

Movements in this account are as follows:

September 30,

2018 December 31, 2007

{Unaudited) {Audiled)

Cost P38.020,000 F38,020,000
Movement on fair value changes:

Balance at beginning of period 31,856,000 30,115,000

Gain on fair value change - 1,741,000

Sale of Investment Property {69,876,000) -

Balance at end of period 31,856,000 31,856,000

— POR,E76,000

This account represents parcels of commercial land Tocated in Legazpi City, Albay. which are held
for capital appreciation, The same property was sold to Pacific Mall Corporation for a

consideration of F51,823,.306.50 last September 20, 2018,

The fair values of the investment propertics as at December 31, 2017 and 2016 are based on
valuations performed by accredited independent appraiser. The appraised value of the investment
propertics were arrived af vsing the market data approach. In this approach. the value of the land
was based on sales and listings of comparable property registered within the vicinity. This
requires the adjustments of comparable property by reducing reasonable comparative sales and
listings to a common denominator.  This was done by adjusting the differences between the
subject property and those actual sales and listings regarded as comparable,  The properties used
as bases of comparison arc situated within the viciniiy of the subjeci properiy. The comparison
was premised on the factors of location, size, and shape of the lot, time element and others.

Market Data Approach

Significant Unobservable Inputs
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Price per square meter
Value adjustments

F20,000-$22 257
=5% to 7%

The significant unohservable inputs to fair valuation are as follows:

Price per Squave Meter:

estimated valuc prevailing in the real estate market depending on the
location, area, shape and time element,

Falue Adjustments: adjustments are made to bring the comparative values in approximation to the
investmen! property taking into aceount the location, size, architectural features and ete.

Markel Data Approach invelves the comparison of the land to those that are more or less located
within the vicinity of the appraised property and are subject of recent sales and offerings.
Adjustments were made to armive al the market value by considering the location, size, shape,

utility, desirability and time element

Seasitivity Anelvais. The factors considered in determining the fair value of the property are the
(a) location of the property with reference to quality neighborhood, (b} size, (¢} physical
characteristics such as shape, topography and road frontage; and {d) time element.

|

a\Fﬁ_ Financial Asscts

The Company’s AFS financial assets consist of a club share in Valley Golt & Country Club. The
i value of the club share is determined by reference (o published price quotations in an active

market.

MMovements in this account are as Tollows:

September 30, 2018 December 31, 2017
o = (Unaudited) (Audited)
Cost - . F200,000 200,000
Unrealized gain (loss) on fair value changes
Balance at beginning of period 100,000 A0, 000
Tair value change - 60,000
Balance gl end of period (LIRS 100 1)
F300,000 P300.000

H

Equipment

Movemenls in this account are as follows:

September 30, 2018
(Unaudited)

Computer  Transportation

Equipmeni Fquipment Total
Cost
Balance al begnmng of period PE5.800 PLS77.000  PL662,800
Additions - -
Hilance at end of period B5.800 1.577.000 1.662 800
Aceumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of period 45,700 THESN 124,610
Diepreciation 12,870 236,551 249.420
Halanee at end of period 58,630 315400 374,030
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Net Carrving Amounl P27170 P1,261.600 71,288,770

Diecember 31, 20017 {Aundited)
Computer  Transporialion

Hyuipment Equipment Total
Cost .
Balanee at beginning of vear PES, 800 P PR35, 800
Additions - 1,577,000 1,577,000
Balance at end of year &5,R00 1,577,000 1,662 800
Accumulated Depreciation
Balance at beginning of year 28,600 s 28,600
Depreciation 17,160 THES0 96,010
Balance al end of vear 45,760 Th 850 124,610
Net Carrving Amount P,040 PIAGR IS0 P1.538,190

9. Accerued Expenscs and Other Current Liabilities
This aceount consists of:

September 30, 2008 Decemnber 31, 2017

(Unaudited) { Audited)

Laahilities arising from the MOA P171,104,972 P17, 104,972
Dividends payable 10,985,443 10,985,443
Rental deposits 5972642 5,972,642
Accrued expenses 1.663.296 1,763,356
Oihers HLT60.565 3.245232
199,886,918 P193,071,645

Liabilities arising from the MOA perlain to estimated transfer taxes and registration fees related 1o
the transfer of assets from its developement bank operations to BDOTDIC and other related
labilitics, primarily from unremitied collection of assipmed receivables and sale of Toreclosed
properties for the account of PDIC (see Note 1), This account also includes provision for
probable losses to cover estimated losses from claims. As allowed under PAS 37, Prongsions,
Contingent Linbilitics and Contingeni Assets, certain information is not disclosed wntil final
sertlement as it might prejudice the Company’s position on the matter.

Dividends payable pertains to the Company's dividend for comulative, nonparicipating,
nonvoting, redeemable and convertible preferred stock that were declared prior o the Company's
incurrence of deficil.

Fental deposits represent long-outstanding rental deposits that have not been claimed by the
Company”’s previous tenants.

Accrued expenses pertain to accrual of outside services, professional fees and association ducs,
among others. These are normally setiled in the next fmancial year,

Others nelude statutory pavables and refunds of tenants related to the Company's previous
operations, These are noninterest-bearing, unseeurcd and are normally seuled in the next financial
year or upon demand.



1. Capital Stock

The movement in capital stock are as follows:

September 301, 2018 (Unaudited) December 31, 2007 {Avdied
MNumber of Fumber o
Shares Ampunt Shire Amuunt
Commun stock - #1 par valoc
Authorizod 3,000 B0, 000 T30 AWM D 300 TG LA LR TR
subscrihed:
Bulance ar beginning, of poriod TOOZ9H, 6106 TO02UH,6 146 T 29 e s TOC 25 AL
Comeersinn of preterned
o corman sock = 2 = o
Balance &t end of ool T 298 610 T, 298,616 TLINE GG TG, 2UH,01 6
Preferred stock - B par value
Autheried 20040, 00K 200k D00, 000 ERHTTRN T 2000000
Iszaed and outstanding:
Balance at beginning of pericl 14,3400, 24041 14,366,260 14,268 261 14,366,260
Consersion of preferrsd
0 cormmnn arnck - - - o
Balance &l end of peniod 14,364,260 14, 3,260 = 4,308,260 1,360 200
Tid 664 876 P74, 604,876 1400 HTE PTIA0040ETS

The Company has 1,598 and 1,603 stockholders as at September 30, 2018 and December 31,
2017, respectively.

The following summarizes the information on the Company’s issued and subscribed shares as at
Seplember 30, 201H:

Number of shares issued  Percentase of

= and subscribed shares
Non-public shareholdings:
a.  Relaled parlies 875,733,986 B2.21%
b, Affiliates, direelors and officers 2,005 0,005,
Public sharcholdings 124,562,625 17.7%%
Total TOO29R616 TN

The high and low trading prices of the Company's stock are as follows:

Ouarter ~ ~ High Low
Januvary to September 2018

Firsi P1.68 1.10
Second 1.56 1.09
Third 1.66 1.15
January to December 2017

First Pl.26 1.0
Second 1.17 .76
Third 1.65 092
Fourth 1.98 1.2

The preferred stock has the following salient features:

a. Cumulative, nonparticipating, nonvoting, redesmable and convertible at the option of the

Company,

b, Cash dividend rate inipally at 4.50% per annom based on par wvalue, which shall bhe
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automatically adjusted to 9.00% per annum upon full payment of the subscription price.
¢, The Company may, at any time at its oplion, wholly or partially redeem the oulstanding
preferred stock plus accrued dividends thereon. When such call for redemption is made, the

holders of the preferred stock may opt 1o conver! the preferred stock 1o common stock,

On October 10, 2001, the BOD approved an option to stockholders of preferred stock of extending

the maturity of shares for another five vears for a 2% additional dividend on the 9% regular

dividend.
11, Leases
On February 8, 201, the Company enlered inlo cancellable lease agreement with MMDC for its
Toyota Hilux for a peniod of twenty one months from Tanuary 7, 2018 10 October 7, 2019,
Rent income amounted to POLES million and PO.2T million in 2018 and 2017, Rent receivahle
amounted o #0.9 million and #0.5 million as at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017,
respectively (sce Note 51,
Related rent expensce amounted to P2.6 million and P0.04 million in 2018 and 2017, respectively.
12. Related Party Transactions

Outstanding balances and transaction with related parties are as follows:

Parcut Company and Other Related Pariy

— Amaunl of Transaclion Dutsranding Dalance
INature of September 30, 2018 2017 September 3, 2018 M7
o Transaction {Unawdited) [Audited) (Loandited) [ Audited)
Advanerss to related parties
Entity under commot
Coatrol Advances FI0406,937.70 P, 300,10 PINGGRITI0 P2 440,000
Due from Parent Company Advances - 200, 0H0ED, CHOGH - i, | 220,00
Momtrade
Managerment
Parent Company fer P P 13.097.784 E- ¥

Ourstanding balances are unsecured, noninterest-bearing, pavable on demand and sectlement
accurs in cash, The Company has not made any provision for impairment losses relating to the
amounts owed by related parties. This assessment is undertaken at each reporting date by taking
into censideration the financial position of the related party and the market al which the related
parly operates,

O Decernbor 22, 2015, the Company entered into a management agreement with the Parent
Company to oversee and supervise the Company’'s business marters until December 31 2007,

Key Manasement Personnel
The Company has no key management personnel. Irs accounting and administrative functions are
provided by a related party at no cost to the Company.




15. Commitments and Contingeneies

4. In the normal course of the Company's prior operations, there are outstanding commitments,
pending litigations and contingent liabilities which are nol reflected in the financial stalements,
The Company does not anticipate significant losses as a result of these transactions.

b As discussed in Nowe 1, under the MOA dated September 12, 2002 between the Company and
BDOPDIC, the Company agreed to transfer its assels and liabilities from its development
banking operations. The Company apreed to hold BDO free from any contingent claims, labor
and minority issues and concerns arising from related assets and labilities still manaped by the
Company until these are assumed by BDO. Further, the Company agreed 1o inderrmily B0
agains! losses, claims and damages BDO) may suffer in the event such contingent claims, labor
and minorily issues affect BDOYs rights under the MOA.

The Company has accounted for separately, assets from itz development banking operation
pursuznt o the MOA. It still has in ils possession titles of real estate properties from its
development banking operations with an aggrepate fair value of P327.8 million and P542 4
million as at Decemnber 31, 2017 and 2016, respectively. Moreover, the Company has cash of
P13.9 milhon as at December 31, 2017 arising from the proceeds of sale of a property.

¢. The Company is a defendant in lepal actions arising from normal business activities,
Minagement believes that these actions are withow! merit or that the ultimate liability, if any,
resulting from these will not materially affect the Company’s financial position and results of
operations,

d. On July 20, 2018, the Company has entered inwo a Compromise Apreement with the Bangko
Sentral ng Pilipinas tor the full and final settlement of its case amounting to P20.0 million,

14. Loss Per Share
The basic and diluted loss per share were computed as follows:

September 30, 20018  December 31, 2017

{Unaudited) {Andited)

Met loss (F52,133,735) (P28 A35 680}
Less dividend rights of preferred stock for

the year - 1.581.671
Laoss atiributable 1o common siockholders (52,133,735) (PI0,017 357}
Divided by weighted averape number

of cornmon stock TO0,298.616 TOO298 616
Loss per share - basic and diluted _ (POLD7) {004

The conversion feature of the Company’s preferred stock has potential antidiluive effect
(i, il decreases loss per share). Therefore, difuted ioss per share is equal 1o basic Ioss per share,

L5, Financial Risk Management Objectives and Policies

The Compuny’s principal financial instruments comprise of cash in banks, receivables {excluding
advances to officers, employees and service providers), due from reluted parties, AFS financial
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asscts, acerved expenses and other current labilities (excluding statutory payables).

The main risks arising from the financial instruments of the Company are credit risk and liquidity
risk. The BOIY reviews and approves policies for managing the risks.

Credit Risk

Credit risk is tht risk of loss that may arize on outstanding financial instruments should a
counterparly default on ils obligation. The Company’s exposure to credit risk arises primarily
from cash in banks and receivables (excluding advances to officers, employees and service
providers) and due from related parties.  The carrying amount of the financial assets represent the
Company’s maximum exposure Lo credit risk in relation to financial assets.

The aging anulyses of financial assets as at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 are as
Fisliovws;

September 30, 2HE (Unaudited)

Meither Past Past Due But Mot ITmpaired
Due Mor Less Than Past Due and
Imipaired 30 Thays 31-60 Days Impaired Total

Cash in banks ™ 42,522,642 r- r— r- 42522 6d2
Receivables* 2837532 - - 601,277,740 63,215,272
Advances related parties 11,606,435 - - - 11,60, 938
ATS financial asscts 304,000 — - - 300,000

a7 367.112 - - Po0, 277,740 T 117644 852

Fixciiding adveeces fo officers. erplovees ard service providers arosing fo P22 million

Drecember 31, 2007 { Audited)

Meither Past Fast Due But ot lmpaired
T Mar Less Than Fast Due and
Lenpaired A Davs 310 Diave Impairgd Talal
Cash in banks 1714954 i [ 1 PIT14. 954
Receivables* 2,453,912 s i 60,277,740 62,731,672
Advances o related partics 12420000 - - L2420, M0
ATS financisl asses 00,000 - - UL
P16, 888 8RR = P- Po0277.740 177166626

Hevoheding advaness fo offfcers, smployees and service providees amowsing fo P25 million,

Credit Ouality of Financial Assets.  The credit quality of the Company’s financial assels are being
managed by using intemal credit ratings such as high grade and standard grade.

High grade - pertains o counterparty who is not expeeted by the Company (o default in settling its
obligations, thus credit risk exposure 1s minimal.

standard prade - include financial assets that are considered moderately realizable and some
accounts which would require some reminder follow-ups 1o oblain settlement from  the
connterparty.

The Company has assessed the credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor
impaired as high grade.

Receivables are classified as substandard grade since these are receivables from third parties. The

Company assessed these rcceivables as uncollectible and provided allowance for impairment
losses amounting to Pa0.3 million as at Septernber 20, 2018 and December 31, 2017,

Liguidity Risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will not be able o setile or meet its financial
obhpgations when they fall due.  The Company aims to maintaim flexibility by maintaining
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sufficient cash 1o mect all foreseeable cash needs.

The Company also maintains a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility. The policy
ol the Company is to first exhaust lines available from affiliated companies before local bank lines
are availed ol. The Company seeks to manage its hiquid funds through cash planning on a weekly
basis. The Company uses historical figures and experiences and forceasts from its cash receipts
and dishursements, As part of its liquidity risk management, the Company regularly evaluates it
projected and actual cash flows, It also continuously assesses conditions in the financial markets
for opportunities to pursue fund raising activities.

As at September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, accrued expenses and other current hahilities
{excluding statutory payables) amounting o P199.9 million are generally due and demandable.

Fair Values
The following table presents the carrying amounts and fuir values of the Company”s assets and
liahilities measured at fair value and the corresponding fair value hierarchy:

September 30, 2018 (Unaudited) December 31, 2007 {Audited)

Carrying Carrying
Amuount Fair Yalue Amount Fair Value
Financial Assels
Cash P42,527.919 P42,527,919 1,720,231 Pl1,720,231
Reccivahles® 1,037,532 2,037,532 24335832 2,453,932
Advances to related parties 11,606,938 11,606,938 12,420,000 12,420,000
AFS financial assets 3010000 300,000 00, 008 300,000

PS7372,389  PSTATLIBY  PIORUA163  PI6EDL163

Monfinancial Assei
[nvestment propertics - - POO_RTO000 Fa 876,000

Financial Liabilities
Accrued expenses and other current
liahilitigs®* PI9OBRG91E  PI9ORRG91I8  PIVIU51. 236 PI95.051.236
Duc to parent company 200,000,000 20,000,000 3
- P219.886,918  PI19.886,918  FI02031.236  PI93.031,236
“Ercluding aovarces fo afficers, emplnvess med seevice providors,
" rclsfing slatvior: payabies

Current Financial Assety and Liahilittes, The carrying amounts of cash, receivables {excluding
advances frimm offeers, employvees and service providers), due from relaled parties and accrued
expenses and other current lahilities (excluding statutory payables) approximate their fair values
due to the shorllerm nature and maturities of the transactions. The fair value measurement of
current financial assets and labilities is classified as Level 3 (Significant unobservable inputs).

AFS Invesiment. The fair value of this financial asset is detenmined by reference to quoted market
bid prices al the close of business at the reporting date.  The fair value measurement of AFS
investment is classified as Level 1 (Quoted in an active market),

fvestment Properties. The fair value of investment propertics 15 determined based on valuations
performed by aceredited independent appraiser. The appraised value of the investment properties
were arrived at using the market data approach.  The Tair value measurement of investment
propertics is classified as Level 3 (Significant unobservahle inputs).

Capital Managzcment

The primary objective of the Company’s capital management 15 to safeguard the Company's
ahility to continue its operations as 4 poing concern and to maximize shareholder value,  The
Company manages 115 capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of chanpes in




economic conditions. To maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust
dividend payment to sharcholders, return capital to shareholders, or issue new stock. No chanpes
were made in the ohjectives, policies or processes for the years ended December 31, 2017, 2016

and 2015,
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